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CORPORATE PROFILE
A EER

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability on 22 February 2013. The Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are a fast-growing manufacturer of recycled copper
products, also known as copper semis, in Southwest China. The shares
of the Company were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 21 February 2014 (the
“Listing Date”).

We process recycled scrap copper and, to a lesser extent, electrolytic
copper, to manufacture a range of copper products, including copper
wirerods, copper wires, copper plates and copper granules. Beginning
in 2013, we have also sold a range of communication cables and power
transmission and distribution cables using copper wirerods that we
produce as the principal raw material. We are increasing our production
capacity and plan to broaden our product range and pursue
opportunities for further vertical integration. Beginning in 2015, we have
also extended our product range to aluminium products. In light of
favourable development trends in China and our advantages in raw
material supply, facility location and preferential governmental policies,
we believe we are well positioned to become a leading integrated
recycled copper product supplier in China covering the key value-
creating activities in the industry chain.

We currently own and operate four production facilities for recycled
copper products. The facilities of our subsidiaries Mianyang Jinxin
Copper Co., Ltd. (“Jinxin”), Mianyang Tongxin Copper Co., Ltd.
(“Tongxin”), Sichuan Baohe Xinshiji Cable Co., Ltd. (“Baohe Xinshiji”) and
Mianyang Baohe Taiyue Communications Cable Co., Ltd. (“Baohe
Taiyue”) are located in Mianyang, Sichuan Province and the facility of our
subsidiary Hunan Yinlian Xiangbei Copper Co., Ltd. (“Xiangbei”) is
located in Miluo, Hunan Province. We are also operating our trading
business of aluminium products in Mianyang, Sichuan Province.

This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available on
the Company’s website at http://www.cmru.com.cn/.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of language(s) (either
English only or Chinese only or both languages) of Corporate
Communications.

Shareholders may send their request to change their choice of
language(s) of Corporate Communications by notice in writing to the
Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar of the Company with
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Ltd. at 17M Floor
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of China Metal
Resources Utilization Limited (“CMRU” or the “Company”), | hereby
present the audited consolidated annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the twelve months ended 31
December 2016.

China’s GDP growth rate declined from 6.9% in 2015 to 6.7% in 2016,
which was the slowest in the past 26 years. The continued slowdown in
China’s economy was also reflected by the drop in copper consumption
which has been a crucial measure of the country’s economic growth.
During the year, the copper market industry faced a challenging
operating environment as copper stockpiles were still heavily
accumulated and weakened liquidity of our customers.

Thanks to the Group’s successful strategy of actively mitigating the risks
arising from the production of copper-related products which would
have a longer turnover days and subject the Group to higher risk of
fluctuation of copper price. By more actively engaging in trading activities
of electrolytic copper during the year, the Group generated a significant
increase in sales revenue by 175.5% to RMB4,933.6 million. In addition,
given an increase in government subsidies and increase in interest
income derived from the advances to suppliers, other revenue increased
by 30.7% compared to that of 2015. The combination of these factors
has significantly improved the gross margin of the Group. The gross
profit of the Group was amounted to RMB42.9 million in 2016, as
compared to a gross loss of RMB139.4 million in 2015.

Despite the sluggish market demand for recycled copper, the Group
recorded an increase in the sales of recycled copper products and sales
of communication cables during the year. Revenue from recycled copper
products recorded an increase of 26.8% which was mainly an increase
of 38.4% in the sales volume of recycled copper products. The increase
in the sales of communication cables was partly due to a slight increase
in sales volume of metric tons, and partly due to an increase in the
average selling price with the strategic changes in product mix during
the year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHE

On 4 July 2016, the acquisition of the remaining 70% non-controlling
interests of Mianyang Xinhuan Aluminium Company Limited (“Xinhuan
Aluminium”) was completed. After the acquisition, Xinhuan Aluminium
became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Through
this acquisition, the Group will be able to expand into the aluminium
business, thus providing wider product portfolio to the existing and
potential customers. This also allows the Group to capitalize the synergy
effect by making use of the Group’s existing sources of raw materials,
logistic system and technical know-how.

In order to raise funds to strengthen the working capital and to finance
the future development and expansion of the Group, the Group
completed the issuance of 135,000,000 new shares to Hong Kong
Zhongliang Recycling Mining Investments Limited during the year. The
net proceeds of such new issuance amounted to approximately
RMB300 million.

Being the second year of the 13th Five-Year Plan, the “Guiding Opinion
on Accelerating the Development of Recycled Resources Industry” (B85
IR B A B IREXERANIBEEE R) jointly issued by the Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology, Ministry of Commerce, and
Ministry of Technology on 25 January 2017 marked a significant step by
the Chinese government to step up the support to the resources
recycling industry, with metal recycling being one of the key areas to
develop. The document set out very exciting targets for recycled
resources industry by 2020: scrap copper consumption to reach 150.0
million tonnes, recycled copper production to reach 4.4 million tonnes,
recycled aluminium to reach 9.0 million tonnes. The Group is ready to
tap on the opportunities arise from the huge demand for recycled metal
products in the near future.

On the other hand, since the third quarter of 2016, property market was
heating up and housing market in major cities in China has started to
improve and its activities have increased significantly. We are cautiously
hopeful that the recent recovery in housing market of China will soon
translate to improvements in demand of basic materials like copper and
aluminium which will help to further improve our business. Meanwhile,
the Group will be preserving our financial strength in order to take full
advantage of any improvements in the market environment to strengthen
our business and increase profitability. The Group shall also continue to
seek suitable acquisition opportunities which are more likely to arise
under the current market situation.
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Thanks to the outstanding leadership skills of our management team as
well as our proven track record over the years, the Group is glad to have
been selected as a constituent of five stock indexes managed by the
Hang Seng Indexes Company Limited (“Hang Seng Indexes”) in March
2016: the Hang Seng Global Composite Index and the Hang Seng
Composite Index Series including the Hang Seng Composite Index,
Hang Seng Composite Index — Materials, Hang Seng Composite
MidCap & SmallCap Index and Hang Seng Composite SmallCap Index.
We believe that having a constituent status in these indexes can further
enhance our reputation and position in the international capital market
and ultimately improve our investors’ confidence in the Group’s outlook.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board and the management, | would
like to thank our entire staff for their dedication and contribution to the
Group during the year. | would also like to thank our shareholders,
investors, customers, suppliers and business partners for their strong
support.

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
Mr. Yu Jianqiu

30 March 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THERWE S

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the second half of 2016, despite the recovery in China’s economy
which was mainly fueled by the buoyant property market, the copper
market was still unleashing its stockpiles accumulated in previous years.
Furthermore, the weakened liquidity of our customers resulted in several
cases of overdue trades balances and consequently we had to reduce
sales to certain of our customers in order to minimise credit risks. In
order to tackle such situation, the Group took measure to improve its
liquidity by increasing the scale of copper products trading activities. As
a result of such strategy, the Group recorded an increase in sales
volume of copper products in 2016, which translated into an increase in
turnover by 175.5% as compared with that of 2015.

In August 2016, the Company completed the issuance of 135,000,000
new shares to a strategic business partner. The net proceeds of such
new issuance amounted to approximately RMB300 million. Furthermore,
the Company has been selected by Hang Seng Indexes Company
Limited as a constituent of the following indexes, with effect from 14
March 2016: (1) Hang Seng Global Composite Index; (2) Hang Seng
Composite Index; (3) Hang Seng Composite Industry Index — Materials;
(4) Hang Seng Composite MidCap & SmallCap Index; and (5) Hang
Seng Composite SmallCap Index.

FUTURE PROSPECTS/OUTLOOK

China’s gross domestic product in 2016 grew by 6.7% from a year
earlier. The growth rate decelerated as compared with 6.9% in 2015 and
was the slowest in 26 years. The Chinese government has warned that
China’s economic growth trend is likely to be flat at least for the next
year or two. It is therefore expected that the current weak market
environment is unlikely to improve significantly in the short term. Under
such situation and expected trend, we will be operating cautiously in
order to minimize business risks.

Whilst demand for recycled copper and aluminium products is expected
to remain sluggish and market liquidity continue to be tight, we are
cautiously hopeful that the recent recovery in the China housing market
will soon translate to improvements in demand of basic materials like
copper and aluminium which will help improve our business. Meanwhile,
we will be preserving our financial strength so that we will be able to take
full advantage of any improvements in the market environment to
strengthen our business and increase profitability. We shall also continue
to seek suitable acquisition opportunities which are more likely to arise
under the current market situation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our revenue represents the fair value of consideration received or
receivable for sales of goods and services in the ordinary course of
business. Revenue is shown net-of-VAT and other taxes, returns and
discounts after eliminating sales within our Group.

THBFWER S

Bt % O B8

Wz
BAMKRSEERAEREXREERTREEEN R
R# B WU B R FE - AR
MERIEER L EMMHRIE  RENTHN) RS H
SENMEAHEEITHE -

2016
2016 &

2015
20154
RMB’000
ARETT

RMB’000
AR®T T

Sales from trading of electrolytic copper (Note) B RRE 555 E (FizE) 3,522,236 584,108
Sales of recycled copper products HEBERER 1,367,891 1,078,879

Sales of power transmission and HEXRLES
distribution cables 3,099 70,616
Sales of communication cables HEREEE 35,832 29,398
Sales of scrap materials SHEREZEM K 447 15,755
Sales of aluminium products $H & a2 i 3,055 10,834
Contract manufacturing income & REERA 1,065 1,160
4,933,625 1,790,750

Note The Group has entered into trading activities of electrolytic copper beginning in 2015
whereas the Group is considered the principal of the transactions as it controls the
electrolytic copper before they are sold to the customers. The gross inflows of the
trading activities are therefore recognised as revenue.

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to
RMB4,933.6 million, representing an increase of 175.5% from
RMB1,790.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. The increase
in sales volume was principally from the increase in trading of electrolytic
copper, such sales had a shorter turnover days and hence lower risk
from fluctuation of copper price.

Revenue from recycled copper products amounted to RMB1,367.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2016, representing a slight
increase of 26.8% from RMB1,078.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2015. It was mainly an increase of 38.4% in the sales volume
of recycled copper products from 29,113 metric tons for the year ended
31 December 2015 to 40,282 metric tons for the year ended 31
December 2016, with a decrease of 8.4% in average selling price from
RMB37,060 per ton for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
RMB33,960 per ton for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THERWE S

Revenue from sales of power transmission and distribution cables
amounted to RMB3.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2016,
mainly representing a decrease of 95.6% from RMB70.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015, this reflected a decrease of 95.8% in
sales volume from 1,795 metric tons for the year ended 31 December
2015 to 75 metric tons for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Revenue from sales of communication cables amounted to RMB35.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2016, representing an increase
of 21.9% from RMB29.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2015.
This increase was a result of an increase of 2.6% in sales volume from
1,400 metric tons for the year ended 31 December 2015 to 1,437 metric
tons for the year ended 31 December 2016, and an increase of 18.7%
in average selling price of RMB20,994 per metric ton for the year ended
31 December 2015 to RMB24,930 per metric ton for the year ended 31
December 2016. The increase in the average selling price was primarily
caused by changes in product mix.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2016 totaled RMB4,890.7
million, representing an increase of 1563.4% from RMB1,930.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2015. The increase was mainly due to the
increase in sales from trading of electrolytic copper in 2016 amounted to
RMB2,938.1 million compared with that in 2015.

Direct materials cost continue to be the largest component of the
Company’s cost of sales, accounting for over 95.0% the total cost of
sales for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016.

Our gross profit was RMB42.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2016, as compared to a gross loss of RMB139.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015. Our gross profit margin for the year ended
31 December 2016 was 0.9%, as compared to a gross loss margin of
7.8% for the year ended 31 December 2015. The improvement in gross
margin was mainly due to the significant increase in sales from trading of
electrolytic copper, the gross margin of which was targeted to be
positive in a short period of trading cycle.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other revenue

Other revenue increased to RMB179.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2016 from RMB137.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2015. The increase was mainly due to the increase in
government subsidies and increase in interest income derived from the
advances to suppliers.

Other net loss

Qur other net loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
RMB227.3 million as compared to a net loss of RMB254.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015. Our other net loss for the year ended
31 December 2016 mainly comprised an impairment loss of investment
in associates amounting to RMB100.3 million, and a net impairment loss
of trade debtors amounting to RMB124.6 million (a further impairment
loss of RMB153.1 million netting of a reversal of RMB28.5 million). Our
other net loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 mainly comprised
an impairment loss of trade debtors amounting to RMB112.8 million, an
impairment loss of property, plant and equipment of RMB54.3 million, an
increase in fair value of derivative component of convertible bonds of
RMB77.1 million and an impairment loss of goodwill of RMB16.1million.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December
2016 were RMB20.3 million, representing an increase of 146.6% from
RMB8.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. The increase
was primarily due to the service fees of RMB7.2 million in relation to the
sales to Sichuan Changhong Electric Co., Ltd. under a yearly sales
contract in 2016.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2016
were RMB158.9 million, representing a decrease of 1.4% from
RMB161.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. The decrease
was primarily due to a decrease in professional fee.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THERWE S

Finance costs

QOur finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2016 were
RMB134.0 million, representing an increase of 17.9% from RMB113.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2015. The increase was
primarily due to an increase in the interest on convertible bonds. The
liability component of convertible bonds is subsequently carried at
amortised cost that increases over time by the amount of effective
interest, net of coupon interest paid. The interest charge recognised in
profit or loss on the liability component is calculated using the effective
interest rate on the amortised cost of the liability component, as such,
the interest charge recognised thereof also increases over time during
the life of the convertible bonds.

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2016, the capital structure of the Group mainly
consisted of shareholders’ equity, bank and other borrowings and
finance leases and convertible bonds. There is no material seasonality of
borrowing requirements for the Group.

On 17 August 2016, pursuant to the adjustment provisions of the
conversion price as stated in the terms and conditions of the convertible
bonds, the conversion price of HK$1.40 per ordinary share has been
adjusted to HK$1.39 per ordinary share as a result of the issue of the
135,000,000 ordinary shares. All other terms of the convertible bonds
remain unchanged. The adjustment has become effective as of 17
August 2016, being the date on which the 135,000,000 ordinary shares
were issued.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THBFWER S

The following table sets forth the interest rate profile of the Group’s  TER&FIAEB F EEFRTTR B HOF RIF

interest-bearing borrowings at the dates indicated: i
As at 31 December 2016 As at 31 December 2015
M2016512831H 2015612 31 A
Weighted Weighted
average average
effective effective
interest rate % Amount interest rate % Amount
IR INAEF 19
BEFIE % -] EBRFE% ok
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMET T ARETT
Fixed rate borrowings: TRMEN
Bank loans and other borrowings #8717 & 5% & E A& 7% 8.72 681,536 9.40 661,510
Obligations under finance leases BATRE T & F 6.67 24,658 6.88 38,282
Liability component of gk EREE EEH
convertible bonds 34.35 211,810 34.35 166,488
Loan from a related party B HER - - 5.00 83,780
Total fixed rate borrowings TEENBE 918,004 950,060
The following table sets forth the maturity profile of the Group’s interest- & & 71| AN S B 5T BAE A PR B B E0 2 H315
bearing borrowings at the dates indicated: I

As at 31 December 2016
R2016 512 431 H
Obligations Liability
Bank and under component of
other finance convertible Loan from a

borrowings lease bonds related party Total
BITR WEHEHET WRRESHH
HAtifa BfE EEHs HBEHLIEX wst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T

Within one year or —FRREDKEER

repayable on demand 681,536 13,322 211,810 - 906,668
After one year but within -~ — A HBERFEIARA

two years - 11,336 - - 11,336
After two year but within -~ A HBRFIAR

five years - - - - -
More than five years BBhF - - - - -

681,536 24,658 211,810 = 918,004
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THERWE S

As at 31 December 2015
201512 H31 H

Obligations Liability
Bank and under component of
other finance convertible Loan from a
borrowings lease bonds  related party
RiTk WEHET TRRESH
H &K BIE BEHS  BEAIEX S
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TRT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
Within one year or —FRYEERER
repayable on demand 661,510 15,192 - 83,780 760,482
After one year but within -~ —4E LA FEMRE AR
two years - 12,462 166,488 - 178,950
After two year but within -~ WL HERE LR
five years - 10,628 - - 10,628
More than five years BBARTF - - - - -
661,510 38,282 166,488 83,780 950,060

On 17 August 2016, 135,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 were
issued at a price of HK$2.58 per share by the Group to Hong Kong
Zhong Liang Recycling Mining Investments Limited (&8 R B4 A
& B RN T]). The total gross proceeds from the issue of these shares
amounted to HK$348,300,000 (equivalent to RMB299,960,000).
Proceeds of HK$13,500,000 (equivalent to RMB11,500,000),
representing the par value of the share issued, were credited to the
Company’s share capital. The remaining proceeds of HK$337,439,000
(equivalent to RMB288,460,000) were credited to the share premium
account.

On 25 October 2016, share options were exercised to subscribe for
57,300,000 ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration of
RMB56,545,000, in which RMB5,004,000 and RMB51,541,000 were
credited to share capital and share premium respectively.
RMB17,855,000 was transferred from share based compensation
reserve to share premium account.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
(excluding pledged deposits of RMB55.9 million) amounted to
RMB164.1 million (as at 31 December 2015: RMB82.6 million).

The Group’s inventories decreased by RMB40.8 million to RMB208.2
million (as at 31 December 2015: RMB249.0 million). During the year
ended 31 December 2016, the inventory turnover days were 17.1 days
as compared with 67.2 days for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
decrease in inventory turnover days was mainly due to the increase in
sales from trading of electrolytic copper and the turnover days of such
sales were shorter.

Trade debtors and bills receivable decreased by RMB191.2 million to
RMB261.7 million as at 31 December 2016 (as at 31 December 2015:
RMB452.9 million). Trade debtors and bills receivable turnover days
decreased to 26.4 days as compared to 122.3 days in 2015. The
decrease in receivable turnover days was primarily contributed to the
sales from trading of electrolytic copper, the credit period of which we
grants to the customers is shorter.

Trade and bills payable increased by RMB29.8 million to RMB90.8
million as at 31 December 2016 (as at 31 December 2015: RMB61.0
million), the payable turnover days were 5.7 days, compared to 9.2 days
in 2015. The decrease in payable turnover days was primarily
contributed to the increase in trading of electrolytic copper which has a
shorter credit period granted by the suppliers. Furthermore, we endeavor
to keep our trade and bills payable turnover days relatively low mainly
because our prompt payment pattern enhances our suppliers’
willingness to supply raw materials to us and therefore helps us secure
raw materials.

The Group’s total interest-bearing borrowings decreased by RMB32.1
million to RMB918.0 million as at 31 December 2016 (as at 31
December 2015: RMB950.1 million). The overall decrease was mainly
due to the repayment of RMB83.8 million in relation to loan from a
related party and repayment of RMB13.8 million in relation to obligation
under finance lease, net of the increase of RMB20.0 million in relation to
bank and other borrowings and the increase of RMB45.3 million in
relation to the liability component of convertible bonds.

THBFWER S
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THERWE S

Bank loans and other borrowings included three entrusted loans of
RMB100.0 million each (in total: RMB300.0 million) from Mianyang
Science Technology City Development Investment (Group) Co., Ltd. (4%
SRR E R E (RE) BRAF]) (“Mianyang Development Group”).
Pursuant to the entrusted loan agreement signed among Mianyang
Tongxin Copper Co., Ltd. (4% % i &% i £ B R 2 & ) (“Tongxin”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Mianyang Development
Group and the entrusted bank, the entrusted loans expired on 27
August 2016, 23 September 2016 and 18 November 2016 respectively.
Mianyang Development Group, the entrusted bank and Tongxin have
signed a memorandum of understanding, pursuant to which, the
entrusted loan would not be repayable until further agreed otherwise.

At the date of the Company’s results announcement for the year ended
31 December 2016, the Company was negotiating with the convertible
bonds holder in relation to a possible conversion of the convertible
bonds (“2015 CB”) which were issued on 13 April 2015 and to be
matured on 13 April 2017. As disclosed subsequently in the
announcement of the Company on 12 April 2017, the Company received
a conversion notice from the 2015 CB holder on 11 April 2017 in respect
of 50% of the principal sum of 2015 CB or USD16.3 million. On 12 April
2017, the Company has fully repaid the remaining 50% of the principal
sum of 2015 CB equivalent to USD16.31 million. On 18 April 2017, the
Company has issued 90,881,295 shares to the 2015 CB holder.

As announced in the Company’s announcement dated 24 November
2016, the Company was in advanced negotiation with an investor in
relation to a possible subscription for convertible bonds (“2017 CB”) with
a principal amount of HK$200 million. The negotiation was still under the
progress as at the date of the Company’s results announcement for the
year ended 31 December 2016. As disclosed subsequently in the
announcement of the Company on 12 April 2017, such issuance of
2017 CB in a finalized principal amount of HK$250 million was
completed. Part of the proceeds of 2017 CB equivalent to USD16.31
million was used to repay 2015 CB that matured on 13 April 2017, the
remaining balance will be used for general working capital purpose.

The Group maintains a strong relationship with its bankers. None of the
Group’s bankers have demanded the Group for early loan repayment.
Subsequent to 31 December 2016, the Group is able to refinance the
borrowings when they fell due through its existing bankers. In addition,
the entrusting party of the entrusted loans of RMB129 million as at 31
December 2016 has confirmed to waive the Group’s obligations arising
from the breach of loan covenants.

In view of the above arrangements, the Directors are satisfied that if the
above measures are successful the Group will be able to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due for the next twelve months
from the end of the reporting period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THBFWER S

The following table sets forth certain financial ratios of our Group as of ~ TREFHIARFTRBHAEENE TR :
the dates indicated:

As at 31 December

MW12H831H
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Current ratio TRENEL R 1.0 1.1
Quick ratio BN & 0.8 0.9
Debt to equity ratio* EIERE S &R~ 113.7% 126.0%
Net debt to equity ratio* SRS TAREZSH R ¢ 93.3% 115.0%

Total interest-bearing debts/Total equity * BETBES R
# (Total interest-bearing debts less cash and cash equivalents)/Total equity # (st EBRAS RIS EEER) 1Bk

Current ratio and quick ratio as at 31 December 2016 is relatively stable 720164 12 A 31 B # /B bt 3= K 3R &) Lt 4R
as compared to that at 31 December 2015. L2015 12 A 31 BIRFFALIET ©

The improvement in debt to equity ratio and net debt to equity ratio as at A 20164F 12 431 A ' EEEm L X RFEE
31 December 2016 as compared to 31 December 2015 were mainly  # b KL 20155 12 A1 HE MR E » £
because of (i) the overall decrease in the Group’s total interest-bearing ~ ZRE &) A E BT E(E AR TEEERLR D K (i)

borrowings and (i) the issue of new ordinary shares during the year. REFERBEITHE R
Charge on assets EEEF

The following table sets forth the net book value of assets under pledge ~ T&R#IINFATBEEHME TRITEE - BT
for certain banking facilities, bills payable facilities, obligations under ZiERE - MEHEETHEEEAFENEE
finance leases and outstanding futures contracts as at the dates indicated: & #I{EL IR IR E EREFE -

As at 31 December
M12H831H
2016 2015

2016 £ 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T

Property, plant and equipment WE - BB MR E 202,891 214,270
Lease prepayments GEN=S NN 90,936 53,390
Inventories T8 29,000 53,063
Government grants receivable JE U BT 8 B 8,550 8,550
Deposits with guarantee companies RIERDRBTFR 6,000 8,000
Deposits with banks RERTTHIESR 20,900 22,982
Deposits with lessors of finance leases REERERRMNER 5,320 5,320
Deposit with other companies REMAFEER 28,506 22,904

392,103 388,479
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THERWE S

Commodity risk

The major raw materials used in the production of our recycled copper
products are scrap copper. We are exposed to fluctuations in the prices
of raw materials as well as finished goods which are influenced by global
as well as regional supply and demand conditions. Fluctuations in the
copper prices could adversely affect our financial performance. The
Group uses copper futures contracts to mitigate part of its exposure
against price fluctuations of copper. The market value of futures
contracts is based on the quoted market price as at the date of
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group did not have
outstanding copper futures contracts as at 31 December 2016 (as at 31
December 2015: Nil). Net loss of RMB28,000 was recognized for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: net gain of RMB6.1 million).

Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of a majority of the entities within our Group is
RMB and most of the transactions are settled in RMB. However, we are
exposed to currency risk primarily related to the cash and cash
equivalents and loans from a related party, both of which are
denominated in HKD and the convertible bonds that are denominated in
USD. The balance of cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December
2016 including HK$9.3 million and USD9,135 (in total equivalent to
approximately RMB63,368) were held in banks in Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s bank loans and other borrowings
and obligations under finance leases were denominated in RMB but the
convertible bonds were denominated in USD, with an aggregate
principal amount of USD32.6 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB200 million at the date of the issuance). The Group did not commit
to any financial instruments to hedge its foreign exchange exposure
during the year ended 31 December 2016. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the Company incurred an exchange difference on
translation of financial statements of non-PRC entities equivalent to
RMB17.5 million, part of which was resulted from translating the
convertible bonds from USD to RMB.

Significant investments held

Except for investments in subsidiaries and associates, the Group did not
hold any significant investment in equity interest in any other companies
during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies

On 4 July 2016, a subsidiary of the Company China Recycling Aluminium
Limited (“Recycling Aluminium”) completed the acquisition of the remaining
70% non-controlling interests of Mianyang Xinhuan Aluminium Company
Limited (“Xinhuan Aluminium”) from Sichuan Jinxunhuan E-commerce
Limited with a cash consideration of RMB3,100,000. Upon completion,
Recycling Aluminium legally and beneficially held 100% equity interest in
Xinhuan Aluminium, with the right to appoint all members of the board of
directors of Xinhuan Aluminium. Accordingly, Xinhuan Aluminium became
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

On 29 January 2016, Tongxin, a subsidiary of the Company, completed
the acquisition of the remaining 35% non-controlling interests of Jin
Xunhuan from Tianjin Jili Recycling of Renewable Resources Co., Limited
with a cash consideration of RMB8,200,000. Upon completion, Tongxin
legally and beneficially held 100% equity interest in Jin Xunhuan, with the
right to appoint all members of the board of directors of Jin Xunhuan.
Accordingly, Jin Xunhuan became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, save as disclosed above, the
Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

Capital expenditures

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s capital expenditures
represent additions to property, plant and equipment (including
construction in progress) of approximately RMB40.2 million (2015:
RMB125.1 million). The capital expenditures were mainly financed from
internal resources.

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2016, the capital commitments in respect of the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment and lease prepayments on
lands contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements amounted to RMB40.9 million (as at 31 December 2015:
RMB76.0 million).

Contingent liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2016.

THBFWER S
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THERWE S

Events after the Reporting Period

On 11 April 2017, the Company received a conversion notice from the
2015 CB holder in respect of the conversion of the 2015 CB in the
principal amount of USD16,300,000. As disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 24 October 2016, pursuant to the adjustment
provisions of the conversion price for the 2015 CB as stated in the terms
and conditions, the initial conversion price of HK$1.40 per share has
been adjusted to HK$1.39 per share due to the issue of the subscription
shares. As a result of such adjustment to the conversion price, the
shares to be issued by the Company upon conversion of the 2015 CB
shall be increased from 90,555,555 shares to 90,881,295 shares. On 18
April 2017, the Company has issued 90,881,295 shares to the 2015 CB
holder accordingly. On 12 April 2017, the Company has fully repaid the
remaining principal sum of the 2015 CB equivalent to USD16,310,000.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 12 April 2017,
the issuance of 2017 CB in a principal amount of HK$250 million was
completed. Part of the proceeds of 2017 CB equivalent to USD16.31
million was used to repay 2015 CB which matured on 13 April 2017, the
remaining balance will be used for general working capital purposes.

Save as disclosed above and disclosed in note 36 to the financial
statements, there is no material subsequent event undertaken by the
Company or by the Group after 31 December 2016 and up to the date
of release of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yu Jianqiu (8T#%K), age 52, is the founder of the Group and the
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Yu is primarily responsible for the overall business and
strategy of the Group. He also serves as a director in all of the
subsidiaries of the Company except Fanmay Limited (“Fanmay”) ,China
Recycling Aluminium Limited (“Recycling Aluminium”) and Shanghai
Bujiang Metal Material Limited. Through his personal interests and
holdings in Epoch Keen Limited (“Epoch Keen”), Mr. Yu is a major
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Yu has over 20 years of
experience in corporate operations and management in the
petrochemical, automobile and renewable energy sectors. He was the
chairman and principal executive officer of Gushan Environmental Energy
Limited (“Gushan”), a company whose American depositary shares were
listed on the New York Stock Exchange from December 2007 to
October 2012. Mr. Yu also founded a number of subsidiaries of the
Gushan group between 1996 and 2008. Mr. Yu received his degree of
Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) from Hautes
Etudes Commerciales de Paris on 13 December, 2010. In 2002, he was
elected as a member of the Fuzhou Committee of the 10th Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Committee and a member of the Santai
County Committee of the 11th Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Committee. He was appointed as a director of the Company on 22
February 2013 and redesignated as an executive director on 16 August
2013.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFAEREER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (Continued)

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun, Wilson (B{£15), age 51, is an executive director
of the Company. He is in charge of the corporate and strategic
development of the Company. Mr. Kwong is also a director of our
subsidiaries: Engen Investments Limited, Fanmay, True Excel Holdings
Limited, Alpha Legend Holdings Limited, Alpha Business Investments
Limited, Alpha Universe Group Limited and Recycling Aluminium, and a
director of our associates companies: Deda Holdings Limited and
Hongkong Fujian Investments Limited. Mr. Kwong was the president of
Gushan. He is also an independent non-executive director of C.banner
International Holdings Limited, the principal business of which is the
manufacture and sale of branded fashion footwear, since 26 August
2011, China Quitfitters Holdings Limited, the principal business of which
is the design, manufacture, marketing and sale of apparel products and
accessories in China with a focus on menswear, since 8 June 2011, and
Shunfeng International Clean Energy Limited, the principal business of
which is the manufacture and sale of solar wafers, solar cells, solar
modules and related products as well as developing and operating solar
power plants, since 16 July 2014, which are listed on the Stock
Exchange since 23 September 2011, 9 December 2011 and 13 July
2011, respectively. Mr. Kwong has over 10 years of experience in
corporate finance and equity capital markets in Asia, having previously
worked at a number of investment banks in Hong Kong. Prior to joining
Gushan in 2006, he was the managing director of investment banking
and he held the position as the head of Hong Kong and China equity
capital markets at CLSA Equity Capital Markets Limited since March
2004. From 2002 to 2003, Mr. Kwong was a director and the head of
equity capital markets for Cazenove Asia Limited, an investment bank.
After graduating from University of Cambridge, England with a bachelor’s
degree in Arts in 1987, he qualified as a chartered accountant in the
United Kingdom in 1990. Mr. Kwong is currently an associate member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Kwong was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 16 August 2013.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (Continued)

Mr. Huang Weiping (& {& 3¥), age 56, is an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Huang co-founded Xiangbei in 2010 and is currently a
director and the general manager of all our subsidiaries in China except
Shanghai Epoch Keen Metal Trading Limited ( /82 & BHEAR A
&) and Sichuan Epock Keen Recylcing Co Limited (P9)118iE B4 &R
/W ¥ A& B A 7)) Mr. Huang is in charge of the overall operation,
production technology and engineering of the Group. Mr. Huang has
more than 10 years of experience in the PRC metal material industry.
Prior to the establishment of Xiangbei, Mr. Huang was a manager at
Fujian Lingzhi Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. (& & HIRE R
BBR A7), the principal business of which is the design and construction
of environmental projects, from 2009 to 2011, Fuzhou Kebi Chemical
Materials Co., Limited (f& M & b & T #7 ¥t & BR 2 &), the principal
business of which is the manufacture and sale of synthetic wax, from
2006 to 2009 and Tricon Chemicals Inc., the principal business of which
is the trade of chemicals and metal materials, from 2001 to 2005. He is
a fellow member of the Investment Casting Institute and an executive
member of China Precision Casting Branch Association of China
Foundry Association (1 Bl 5 3& 1 & 15 & 15 & 5 &). Mr. Huang also
serves as an executive member of the Chinese and Foreign
Entrepreneurs’ Club of Fujian Province (1824 F/MPEREEE) and
the Association of Entrepreneurs of Private Companies of Fuzhou City
(BINTRECZERTE). Mr. Huang received his degree of Executive
Master of Business Administration (EMBA) from Hautes Etudes
Commerciales de Paris on 6 July 2015. Mr. Huang was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 16 August 2013.

Ms. Zhu Yufen (%R £%), age 54, is an executive director of the Company.
Ms. Zhu has over 20 years of experience in accounting and financial
management. She is primarily responsible for the financial reporting and
accounting affairs of the Company. Ms. Zhu is also the vice president in
charge of the finance of Jinxin, since July 2009. Prior to joining Jinxin, she
was a vice general manager and the head of finance department of
Mianyang Santai Vise Co., Ltd. (43F% = & % & $f AR 2 7l), the principal
business of which is the manufacture and sale of vises, from 1978 to 2009.
Ms. Zhu was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 16
August 2013.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFAEREER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny (Z & &), age 49, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. He was an independent director of
Gushan. He was the chief financial officer of NetEase.com, Inc., one of
the China’s leading internet and online game service providers from
2002 to 2007. Prior to joining NetEase.com, Inc., Mr. Lee worked in the
Hong Kong office of KPMG for more than ten years specializing in
auditing international clients. Mr. Lee currently serves as a director on
the board of NetEase.com, Inc., which is listed on the NASDAQ Global
Select Market. He also serves as an independent non-executive director
of New Oriental Education & Technology Group Inc., the provider of
private educational services in China, and Concord Medical Services
Holdings Ltd., the principal business of which is the operation of a
network of radiotherapy and diagnostic imaging centers in China, both
of which are listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee was also
an independent non-executive director and the chairman of the audit
committee of Qunar Cayman Islands Limited, a Chinese search-based
online travel company, which is listed on NASDAQ Global Market,
between June 2012 and January 2016. Mr. Lee graduated from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and was awarded the Professional Diploma
in Accounting in November 1990. He is a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lee was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on 16 August
2013.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
(Continued)

Mr. Pan Liansheng (F&& ), age 52, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Pan is engaged in non-ferrous metal and
carbon fiber composite materials research and possesses rich
knowledge on the non-ferrous metal industry. Mr. Pan also worked for
the Third Research Institute of the then Ministry of Astronautics of the
PRC (*BIfi A T2 #8% =5tk ), which is involved in the research of
aerospace metals and carbon fibre composite materials, between 1990
and 1993, focusing on research relating to non-ferrous metal and carbon
fiber composite materials. From 1993 to 1994, Mr. Pan was seconded
to Sanwa Machinery Trading Co., Ltd., the principal business of which is
the design and manufacture of electrical machinery. From 1996 to 1998,
Mr. Pan worked as an assistant professor at Waseda University. From
1998 to 2008, Mr. Pan worked as a chief researcher in the research and
development center of Toshiba Ceramics Co., Ltd. (R 2 BEEKRI @1t),
the principal business of which is the research and production of high-
end electronic ceramic and silicon semi-conductors. From 2008 to April
2018, Mr. Pan worked as the general manager at Toshiba Ceramics
Co., Ltd. Currently, Mr. Pan is the Chairman of Thinkon Semiconductor
Technology (Shanghai) Corporation (5 B3 B8R (L&) AR A a)),
the principal business of which is the supply of semiconductor material
technology, a position which he has held since April 2013. Mr. Pan
graduated with a bachelor’s degree from Beijing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics where he focused on research relating to
non-ferrous metal and carbon fiber reinforced composite in 1985. He
further obtained his doctorate degree from Waseda University in 1998.
Mr. Pan was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 16 August 2013.

Ms. Ren Ruxian (£ & 1), age 41, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. Ms. Ren is currently the senior finance director
of Letv Holding Limited, an internet company based in Beijing China. Ms.
Ren has over 16 years working experience in finance management and
financial reporting, including in 2 international audit professional firms
and in the internet industry, during which she acted as the acting chief
financial officer of Changyou.com Limited, a NASDAQ listed company, in
2014. Ms. Ren was awarded a Master in Economics and Bachelor in
Economics from the Finance School of Renmin University in 2001 and
1998, respectively. Ms. Ren is currently a member of each of The
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute of
Certified Management Accountants. Ms. Ren was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 30 November
2015.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFAEREER

CHANGE IN DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
Pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules, the Company set out the
changes in information about Directors during the year 2016.

1. Mr. Huang Weiping is currently director and the general manager
of all our subsidiaries in China except Shanghai Epoch Keen Metal
Trading Limited (_E/8 #5258 $HE B R 2 7)) and Sichuan Epock
Keen Recylcing Co Limited (PU)I| B2 B A ERFAZEER A A).

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan, age 57, is the company secretary of the
Company. Mr. Cheung has over 20 years of experience in financial
management. Mr. Cheung was the financial controller of Gushan since
March 2006. Mr. Cheung also served from April 2001 to March 2006 as
the qualified accountant and company secretary of Goldigit Atomtech
Holdings Limited (currently known as Jinchuan Group International
Resources Co. Ltd), a developer and producer of pesticides in China
which is listed on the Stock Exchange since 23 October 2003. Mr.
Cheung has been an independent non-executive director of Tian Shan
Development (Holding) Limited, a property developer in China, since 16
June 2010, Beijing Chunlizhengda Medical Instruments Co., Ltd., the
principal business of which is the research and development, production
and sales of implantable orthopedic medical devices, since 11 March
2015, Gold-Finance Holdings Limited (<& 3 1% }& & R 2 & , formerly
known as Nga Chun Holdings Company Limited (¥ 5 #5 i% A [R 2 &),
the principal business of which is the provision of building services in
Hong Kong as a subcontractor, since 3 February 2016, which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 15 July 2010, 11 March
2015 and 16 October 2014. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Cheung obtained a
diploma in fabric manufacturing from the Hong Kong Polytechnic in
1981. He was appointed as the company secretary on 8 March 2013.
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The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated results of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016. Further
discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a description of the
principle risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis section. The discussions forms
part of this directors’ report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is a manufacturer of recycled copper products, also known
as copper semis, in Southwest China. Beginning in 2013, the Group
started to sell a range of communication cables and power transmission
and distribution cables using copper wire and copper rods produced by
the Group as the principal raw material. Beginning in 2015, the Group
also extended its product range to aluminium products and entered into
trading activities of electrolytic copper.

DIRECTORS

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the directors of
the Company were as follows:
Executive Directors Appointed on

Mr. Yu Jiangiu (Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)

22 February 2013 and redesignated as
an executive director on
16 August 2013 and reelected on
6 June 2014 and 6 June 2016
16 August 2013 and reelected on
6 June 2014 and 6 June 2016

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

Mr. Huang Weiping 16 August 2013 and reelected on
9 June 2015
16 August 2013 and reelected on

9 June 2015

Ms. Zhu Yufen

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Pan Liansheng 16 August 2013 and reelected on

9 June 2015

Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny 16 August 2013 and reelected on
6 June 2016

Ms. Ren Ruxian 30 November 2015 and reelected on
6 June 2016
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors and senior management of the
Group are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Each of the independent non-executive directors has confirmed his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors to be
independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in notes 14, 15, 22 and 32 respectively to the financial
statements and in this annual report, no director had a material interest
in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors”, there was no
change to any of the information required to be disclosed in relation to
any director pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules since the Listing Date.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were (j)
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO, or (i) otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code”) were as follows:

(1) Long position in the shares of the Company
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held shareholding®
EEHA 51wty FERGEE BABEREIHEO®
Mr. Yu Jiangiu Beneficial owner 30,964,000 1.35%
BEMEAE Em#EB A
Interest in a controlled corporation® 1,006,390,400 43.80%
T EEER O
Mr. Huang Weiping Interest in controlled corporations® 310,317,000 13.51%
HEMEA SR AEERO
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson Beneficial owner 3,272,600 0.14%
BEELE Em#EB A
Notes: MIEE -
1) The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the (1) AR RLBRE B BRUARRARR2016F

number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2016.

() The shares were held by Epoch Keen, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Yu
Jiangiu.

) The shares were held by First Harvest Global Limited, Gold Wide Enterprises
Limited and Ocean Through Limited. All these companies are wholly-owned
by Mr. Huang Weiping.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

@)

Long Position in the underlying shares of the

Company

EERFETHRAEBRAQFTREA
*}Eﬂiﬁé HYBR 40 R AR BA AR 0 MY fE 52
;' n(/ég)

2 RELFTHEEROGHETR

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held shareholding™
EEfA 510 RmtE FEROGHE BOERASLEO
Mr. Huang Weiping Beneficial owner® 667,000 0.03%
|mEFEE EmlaA®
Ms. Zhu Yufen Beneficial owner® 3,334,000 0.15%
KEFLZ+ EmlaA®
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson Beneficial owner® 5,000,000 0.22%
EREEEE EmlaA®
Mr. Pan Liansheng Beneficial owner” 1,000,000 0.04%
EER S E EmlaAD
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny Beneficial owner® 1,000,000 0.04%
BEM LA EmlaA®
Ms. Ren Ruxian Beneficial owner® 1,000,000 0.04%
(Ezeg ke EmlaAO

Notes: MisE -

(4 These equity derivatives were share options granted to Mr. Huang Weiping (4) ZERATTETABBREBEARR B

)

under the Share Option Scheme of the Company on 2 July 2014. Please see
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” for further details.

These equity derivatives were share options granted to Ms. Zhu Yufen under
the Share Option Scheme of the Company on 2 July 2014. Please see the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” for further details.

These equity derivatives were share options granted to Mr. Kwong Wai Sun
Wilson under the Share Option Scheme of the Company on 7 May 2015.
Please see the section headed “Share Option Scheme” for further details.

These equity derivatives were share options granted to Mr. Pan Liansheng
under the Share Option Scheme of the Company on 7 May 2015. Please see
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” for further details.

These equity derivatives were share options granted to Mr. Lee Ting Bun
Denny under the Share Option Scheme of the Company on 7 May 2015.
Please see the section headed “Share Option Scheme” for further details.

These equity derivatives were share options granted to Ms. Ren Ruxian under
the Share Option Scheme of the Company on 31 May 2016. Please see the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” for further details.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, so far as is known
to any director or the chief executive of the Company, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were (i) recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO, or (i) otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Saved as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, no rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company were granted to any director or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, nor were any such rights exercised by
them, nor was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors, or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate during the year ended 31 December 2016.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, the following persons (not being a director or
chief executive of the Company) had 5% or more interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO:

(1) Long position in the shares of the Company

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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EEREROIEFVER

BRNAEREMB D WEEI - REE20164F
12ANBLEFE SERTENESHES
& B ZEBHKRB 18N FRBEALRAT]
By B S T A M RN SRR R F 1T
ERZEEN - TERARRREEMHER
AFHEZH NS ESHRERBZRBIAM
18FRHF X MEM A E AN B RS S R -

FTERRAAQ ARG RAEER S
Ay ROKR R

R2016F 12 A31 H » IA QG IRIEFFH L H
EI&PIE336IKETHFENSLMATREEE - A
TALT(WIERRREESIHZESITHAL) AR
NEIBRGOKEEROFPEES% I EHER

kA -

(1) RERXARGHHFR

Capacity in which

interests are held

HURERENSH

Number of
shares held
BEERE

Percentage of
shareholding
BERBEILEO

Hong Kong Zhongliang Recycling
Mining Investments Limited

BATRBEELREGRRAR

RIUMNB R IR EZERAREE AT

RILMNEEREERBREERNF]

RLEREANBEEEEEEEE
Z88¢

Silver Harvest Holdings Limited

SRIERARDF

Cheung Siu Fai

SR

Beneficial owner

EmBEAA
Interests in a controlled
corporation
REHEE R
Interests in a controlled
corporation
REHEERER
Interests in a controlled
corporation
REHEE R
Beneficial owner
EREAA
Interests in a controlled
corporation
SEHEES

135,000,000

135,000,000

135,000,000

135,000,000

120,737,200

120,737,200

5.88%

5.88%

5.88%

5.88%

5.26%

5.26%
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
(1) Long position in the shares of the Company (Continued)
Notes:

@)

)

@

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the
number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2016.

Hong Kong Zhongliang Recycling Mining Investments Limited is wholly-owned
by RN A EIER AR EE AT, 74.00% equity interest of R MR
BEZEREREMTERA isheld by RIWMNBIBEREZERAEREERA,
62.00% equity interest of JRILMBEHILEHRBRET AR is held by R
BHREANBREEEEEEEZ8E. Accordingly, each of JRILIMIEAEE
EREREERA, RLUMNEBEREBRERET LR, RILEEKABM
BEAEEBEEZ B € is deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by Hong Kong Zhongliang Recycling Mining Investments
Limited.

Silver Harvest Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Cheung Siu Fai.
Accordingly, Cheung Siu Fai is therefore deemed to be interested in the
shares of the Company held by Silver Harvest Holdings Limited.

Long position in the underlying shares of the
Company

FERRRARD TR G K AEBER 5
HEZRARE &)

(1) REQXTWROBHER (&)
B -

(1) ABAPHERERN2016F12A31 HHAREE
BEBEBRARDFREITRMNER -

@  BEETERBARAREBRA R BIRILINGE
REEERBEREERARZERS  MRL
MEREEZERBERET AR AZLMNES
REERAREMRAFAET74.00% 84 )R
IWNEBEREZERBREMT A B HRILFER
BRNBEEEEEBEEEE B®IFH62.00%
A - Fut - RN R IREERBRET
AE RN EBREERBREMT AR
RUEKREANBEEEEBERZEYR
BHEAREEPRBERAREABRAT
BAENARARBRDPEGER

@  UREBRERAFERIEZERES - Bt

FOBBR AR RITBEER A TH5H 0K
DA P B -

2 RELFHEEAROGHEFAE

Approximate

Capacity in which Number of percentage of
interests are held shares held shareholdings!"
HEUBEREENEH BFERY #BMOERESHEO
China Huarong Asset Management 4(i)  Persons having a security 362,000,000 15.76%
Co., Ltd. interests in shares
PREEREEESERNDBRAA HRHOBEMERZ AL
4(ji)  Interests in a controlled 180,519,643 7.86%
corporation
REHEE R
Mianyang Science Technology City 5  Persons having a security 310,317,000 13.51%

Development Investment (Group)
Co., Ltd.

mEMEHERRE (RE)BRAR

interests in shares

HEROhAEAESZ AT
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

(2) Long position in the underlying shares of the
Company (Continued)

Notes:

(4)()  On 30 March 2015, Epoch Keen Limited entered into a share charge with
Huarong (HK) International Holdings Limited (“Huarong”) pursuant to which
Epoch Keen Limited agreed to charge by way of first fixed charge all its rights,
title, interest and benefit in 362,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company in
favour of Huarong as the secured party. Huarong is wholly controlled by China
Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd.

(4)(ii)  Assuming full conversion of the convertible bonds at an initial conversion price
of HK$1.4 per share, the convertible bonds will be convertible into
approximately 180,519,643 new shares (subject to adjustment). The
conversion price had been adjusted to HK$1.39 per share on 24 October
2016.

According to the disclosure forms filed by China Huarong Asset Management
Co., Ltd. on 31 March 2015, the following interests in shares of the Company
were held as follows:
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FERRRARD TR G K AEBER 5
HEZRARE &)

(20 MAEQXTEERODNEE (&)

Wi

@) 201543 A30H  BEARAGREERF
75) BB RRAA IR A A (T2 ]) 5T — B D
B Bt BEARARRENE—BETE
HREC 5 R H R A A 5] 362,000,000 A% 3
Rz PRBERER - PR - #Em RFa - DAAHR
—IMEREAZHA  c ERmEPEERE
ETEROAERDRZELES -

@) BERAILBREFRVLHLEEGRA4BTE
gt - AR E 5 A 80 4 49180,519,643
A& FT A (AT T %) o HIREBE R 2016 F 10
R24BAERERA1.39%T -

BERREREETEREGBRA K 2015
E3A3 RERMBBERR  BAEALR
B Rz T -

Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling shareholder % control Direct interest Number of shares

SEEENER BRERRNMS BB BHEYE% HiEEz(R/B) RAEE

Huarong Real Estate Co., Ltd. China Huarong Asset Management 100 N Long position 180,519,643

Co., Ltd.

EREBXEERAMERA HREREEERERNERDE B e

Huarong Zhiyuan Investment & China Huarong Asset Management 100 N Long position 180,519,643
Management Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd.

ERBEREEBREREEAA TREREEEERNEBRAA i e

Huarong (HK) International Huarong Real Estate Co., Ltd. 88.1 Y Long position 180,519,643
Holdings Limited

5 (FE) BIRERAR DA EREXEREMERA = e

Huarong (HK) International Huarong Zhiyuan Investment & 1.9 Y Long position 180,519,643
Holdings Limited Management Co., Ltd.

g (FE) BIRIERAERDE ERRERAEEAREERA = e

(5) On 15 August 2014, Silver Harvest Holdings Limited, Ocean Through Limited,
First Harvest Global Limited and Gold Wide Enterprises Limited, shareholders
of the Company, has each entered into share charges in respect of their
respective shareholding of 103,205,200, 39,401,600, 167,952,400 and
102,963,000 shares of the Company in favour of Mianyang Science
Technology City Development Investment (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Mianyang
Development Group”) as the secured party. On 10 November 2014, Epoch
Keen entered into a share charge with Mianyang Development Group,
pursuant to which Epoch Keen agreed to charge by way of first fixed charge
all its rights, title, interest and benefit in 200,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company in favour of Mianyang Development Group as the secured party. On
31 December 2015, share charges were released for Silver Harvest Holdings
Limited and Epoch Keen Limited in respect of 103,205,200 and 200,000,000
shares of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the directors
had not been notified by any person (not being the directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had 5% or more interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

(5) R2014F8 150 » BiRIERBER AR ~ 3+
EBERAR - BURKBRAALESELE
BERAR(HAERRRRR) EERBEENAE
A & 2103,205,200 8% + 39,401,600 f%
167,952,4000% 102,963,000 15 2 12 -
LER—AOGERENEREE (SE) A
BAR ([R5 EREEDEAZE AT
AREE - 2014511 A10H » BZHEEB 5
EREBETTIROAR Bt BEREN
FE-EBEETHLDAANEBERELRARA
200,000,000 i @Ak 2 FR B #ER - FTEHE -
R RFaE WA - NEEEESEEA
F#@E A R20156F12A31 8 QiRIER A
RABERBEZAERAAIAIRARA 2
103,205,200 % % 200,000,000 % 7] 37 #9 % 1
1B AR -

B EXATIREEESN - R2016 512 A31H » #
BEMAL(LFARAEFTHSZSTRAR)
HEESFHENARRRMNLAEROTERR
BESRPEEAEIBRATHFENS M
PTRCE% 5% SIA L HIREEE SRR o
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2016, none of the directors or their respective
associates had any business or interests in businesses which compete
or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 477 employees
(2015: 832). The Group’s staff costs for the year ended 31 December
2016 were approximately RMB76.2 million (2015: RMB79.4 million). The
Group offers its staff competitive remuneration packages. In addition,
discretionary bonuses and share options may also be granted to eligible
staff based on individual and Group’s performance. The Group is
committed to nurturing a learning and sharing culture in the organization.
Heavy emphasis is placed on the training and development of individual
staff and team building, as the Group’s success is dependent on the
contribution of all functional divisions comprising skilled and motivated
professionals. The Group is also committed to social responsibility as
seen in its employment of disabled staff and providing appropriate
working conditions and protection to them.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (for the year ended 31 December 2015:
nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 2 June
2017 to 6 June 2017, both days inclusive, during which no transfer of
shares can be registered. To qualify for the attendance and voting at the
AGM, shareholders must ensure that all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 1 June 2017.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), or the laws of
the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages
86 and 87 respectively of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 12 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 29
to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS

Bank Loans and other borrowings of the Company and the Group as at
31 December 2016 are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

The directors’ emoluments are determined by the Board with reference
to their duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group. Details of the directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial statements
respectively.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up to develop the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for remuneration of the directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance of the directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.
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PENSION SCHEMES

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (the “PRC Schemes”) organized by the local
authorities whereby the subsidiaries are required to make contributions
to the PRC Schemes based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
salaries. Contributions to the PRC Schemes vest immediately. Under the
PRC Scheme, retirement benefits of existing and retired employees are
payable by the relevant scheme administrators and the Group has no
further obligations beyond the annual contributions.

The Group enrolled all employees in Hong Kong in the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF”) (together with the PRC Schemes, the
“Retirement Benefit Schemes”), which is a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
consolidated income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF. The Group contributes 5% of the relevant
payroll costs to the MPF subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$25,000, and which contribution is matched by the employees. The
assets of the MPF are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. Contributions from the employer are 100%
vested in the employees as soon as they are paid to the MPF and
subject to certain conditions being met, all benefits derived from the
mandatory contributions must be preserved until the employee either
reaches the normal retirement age of 65 or meets certain specified
conditions whichever is earlier.

The Group’s contributions to Retirement Benefit Schemes charged to
the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December
2016 were RMB2,918,000 (2015: RMB6,280,000).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or
existed during the year.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 29 to the
financial statements and the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s distributable reserves available
for distribution amounted to RMB432,058,000, calculated in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Law (2012 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Suppliers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
—  the largest supplier: 11% of cost of sales

— five largest suppliers combined: 36% of cost of sales

Sales
—  the largest customer: 16% of revenue

— five largest customers combined: 50% of revenue

The scrap copper that we process comes from a variety of sources,
including used household appliances, electrical equipment and
transportation equipment, used cables and wires and scrap materials
from certain industrial manufacturing processes. We purchase our scrap
copper mainly from domestic suppliers located near our production
facilities and elsewhere in other provinces of China. We conduct rigorous
quality control tests at different stages of our production processes,
including rigorous quality tests of our raw materials. Before entering into
a business relationship with a new supplier, we conduct diligence on the
supplier’s background and reputation in the market to assess its
suitability. In addition, we physically inspect each delivery of raw
materials to ensure its compliance with contract specifications, including
purity and copper content.

Maintaining strong relationships with our customers is important to us
and we believe that our customers’ willingness to work with us reflects,
among others, our record of producing high quality products that meet
industry standards and customer requirements.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and five largest suppliers.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There were no continuing connected transactions during the year ended
31 December 2016.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) to provide incentive and/or reward to eligible persons for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of, our
Company. The Share Option Scheme was conditionally approved by a
written resolution of the then shareholders of the Company on 28
January 2014 and has came into effect upon the Company’s listing on
21 February 2014.

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive and/or
reward to Eligible Persons for their contribution to, and continuing efforts
to promote the interests of, our Company.

Who may join

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer options (“Options”) to
subscribe for such number of Shares in accordance with the terms set
out in the Share Option Scheme to any director or employee of the
Group and any other person (including a consultant or advisor) who in
the sole discretion of the Board has contributed or will contribute to the
Group (“Eligible Persons”).

Further details of the Share Option Scheme

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of our Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares
in issue as at the Listing Date (i.e. 209,832,160 shares) (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”). Our Company may at any time as the Board may think
fit seek approval from our shareholders to refresh the Scheme Mandate
Limit, save that the maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of our Company shall not exceed 10%
of the shares in issue as at the date of approval by shareholders in
general meeting where the Scheme Mandate Limit is refreshed.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Our Company may seek separate approval from our shareholders in
general meeting for granting Options beyond the Scheme Mandate
Limit, provided that the Options in excess of the Scheme Mandate Limit
are granted only to the Eligible Person specified by our Company before
such approval is obtained. The maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other scheme shall not
exceed 30% of our Company’s issued share capital from time to time.
No options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of our Company if this will result in such limit
being exceeded.

The Scheme Mandate Limit was refreshed by a resolution passed at the
annual general meeting held on 9 June 2015. The maximum number of
options that can be granted by the Company was refreshed to
210,514,560 share options.

The total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme of the Company in 2015 was 210,514,560 shares, which was
approximately 9.15% of the issued share capital as at the date of this
annual report.

No Option may be granted to any one person such that the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of Options granted and
to be granted to that person in any 12-month period up to the date of
the latest grant exceeds 1% of our Company’s issued share capital from
time to time.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board shall be
entitled at any time within 10 years after the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme to offer the grant of an Option to any Eligible
Person as the Board may in its absolute discretion select to subscribe at
the subscription price for such number of shares as the Board may
(subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme) determine (provided
the same shall be a board lot for dealing in the shares on the Stock
Exchange or an integral multiple thereof).

Subject to the terms of the Scheme, the Board may in its absolute
discretion when offering the grant of an Option specify such conditions,
restrictions or limitations in relation thereto in addition to those set forth
in the Share Option Scheme as the Board may think fit when making an
offer to an Eligible Person (including, without limitation, as to any
performance criteria which must be satisfied by the Eligible Person and/
or the Company and/or its Subsidiaries, and any minimum period for
which an Option must be held, before an Option may be exercised, if
any), provided that such conditions shall not be inconsistent with any
other terms or conditions of the Share Option Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)

An Option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the
Eligible Person and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer letter
comprising acceptance of the offer of the Option duly signed by the
grantee together with a remittance in favor of our Company of HK$1.00
by way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by our Company
on or before 30 days after the offer date. To the extent that an offer is
not accepted within the time stated in the offer for that purpose, it shall
be deemed to have been irrevocably declined and shall immediately
lapse.

The subscription price in respect of any particular Option shall be such
price as the Board may in its absolute discretion determine at the time of
grant of the relevant Option (and shall be stated in the letter containing
the offer of the grant of the Option) but the subscription price shall be at
least the highest of:

(@  the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the offer date, which must be a business day;

(b) the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and

(c) the nominal value of a share.

An Option shall be exercised in whole or in part within the option period
which is the period to be determined and notified by the Board to the
grantee during which period the Option may be exercised and in any
event shall not exceed ten years commencing from the date on which
the offer in relation to such Option is accepted.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme (i.e. 28
January 2014), after which no further options will be granted or offered
but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any
subsisting Options granted prior to the expiry of the 10-year period or
otherwise as may be required in accordance with the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BRETE 2
Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued) BREEZESHIE (&)
Movements of the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 HE2016FE12 831 B ILFE - BAREETE 2
December 2016 are as follows: EHEIT
Price of share of
the Company
ERRRGER
Number Number of
of shares shares at the atthe
options Lapsed/ options Exercise grant  exercise
held at Granted Exercised cancelled held at 31 price date date
1 January during during during December  Exercise period of share of share of share
Category Date of grant 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016  of share options options options options
#2016 % 120165
1A1A 12A318
BEZ  R2016F  R2016F  R2016F Rz BRE BRE BRE BRE
BREHE Bl (i:d BRERE &8 i RHEAH TRAS
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Directors
£
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 7 May 2015 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 7May2015to6May 2025 1.68 1.68 -
BEERE 201565878 201565870
202545760
Mr. Huang Wai Ping 2 July 2014 2,000,000 - (1,333,000) - 667,000 2 July 2014 to 1 July 2024 113 1.07 -
BENRE 2014 F7 A28 2014F7H28E
2024%7R18
Ms. Zhu Yufen 2 July 2014 10,000,000 - (6,666,000) - 3,334,000 2 July2014to1July 2024 1.13 1.07 -
REALL 2014%7H28 2014 67A2AZ
2024%7R1A
Mr. Pan Liansheng 7 May 2015 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 7 May 2015 to 6 May 2025 1.68 1.68 -
BEBEE 2015%5A7H 201555 7AZ
2025%5A6H
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny 31 May 2016 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 7 May 2015 to 6 May 2025 1.68 1.68 -
FTERRE 201655A31H 201565A7RF
202555 A6H
Ms. Ren Ruxian 31 May 2016 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 31 May 2016 to 30 May 2026 3.66 3.05 -
Bzt 2016%5A318 201655 A81HE
2026458308
Eligible persons other
than directors
EZZMIRERAL
Eligible persons other 2 July 2014 79,450,000 - (49,301,000) (3,194,000) 26,955,000 2 July 2014 to 1 July 2024 113 1.07 -
than directors
BRMIABRAL 201457H28 201457R28%
2024%7R1A
Eligible persons other 7 May 2015 92,750,000 - - (3,280,000) 89,470,000 7 May 2015 to 6 May 2025 1.68 1.68 -
than directors
BERMABRAL 201565878 201565870
202555 A6H
Eligible persons other 23 July 2015 7,600,000 - - - 7,600,000 24 July 2016 to 2.16 1.67 -
than directors 23 January 2017
BERMABRAL 201567 A 230 201657A24BZ
20171 R 23R
Eligible persons other 31 May 2016 - 32,130,000 - (400,000) 31,730,000 31 May 2016to 3.66 3.05 -
than directors 30 May 2026
BRMABRAL 201665A318 201665A318Z
20265 A30H
Total 198,800,000 33,130,000 (57,300,000)  (6,874,000) 167,756,000
@t
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BRETE 2

Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued) BRETE2ESFHE (&)

The key terms and conditions related to the grants under the share  EdRIEEIRET 2R HEREBSREN =B (50
option scheme are as follows; all options are to be settled by the — R{&HIT © FTAEREE S BERI MM
physical delivery of shares. b=

Number of
Grant date/ instruments Contractual life

employees entitled in thousands Vesting conditions of options

BRHBH ARERZESE IAHE (TH) BEGH BRESHFH

Options granted to

directors
RTESHNBRE
— On 2 July 2014 24,000 One third on the first anniversary, one third on 10 years
— R2014F7H2H the second anniversary, and the remainingon 10
the third anniversary of the grant respectively
=R —RERENE—BF -
EORZ—REBFRHEBRE=ZRF
— On 7 May 2015 8,000 Same as above 10 years
— R2015F5A7H il 104F
— On 31 May 2016 1,000 Same as above 10 years
— 201655 A 31 H A = 104

Options granted to

employees

BRFEENBRE

— On 2 July 2014 89,000 Same as above 10 years
—R201457 A 2H A - 104
— On 7 May 2015 94,360 Same as above 10 years
— R2015F5A7H A - 104F

— On 31 May 2016 26,930 Same as above 10 years
— 2016 5 A 31 H il 104F
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BIRETE (e
Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued) BRESTE v EZHE(E)

Number of
Grant date/ instruments Contractual life

employees entitled in thousands Vesting conditions of options

BHEH ERERZEE IAHE(TH) BE&EML BRESHTES

Options granted to
certain eligible

participants
BFETEERSHEA
9 B iR R
— On 28 July 2015 7,600 On the first anniversary of the date upon which Six months
— 201547 A23 H the share options are accepted subject to commencing from
the grantees remaining as eligible persons the expiry of the
at the date of vesting first anniversary of
REREEEANE—RAFEH - the date of
WEEARGBEBAENAGERAL acceptance and
expiring on the
last day of the
6 month-period
A BT E B
FREMABES
7 E A HA R & 1%
—HBHRIEZNEA
— On 31 May 2016 5,200 On the first anniversary of the date upon which 10 years
— R 20164F5H31H the share options are accepted subject 104

to the grantees achieving the

pre-determined annual sales target
REREEEMNNFE —BFEER -

MARABRTKIEETFEHEBIR

Total share options
granted

ERHBRELAE 256,090

The fair value of the Relevant Share Options granted were estimated as BB EEERE A LTERNEFE AHEA
at the dates of grant using a binomial model, taking into account the —IEXNEAEE - DZERHBBEEREZ(1F
terms and conditions upon which the Relevant Share Options were — ZX &4 o

granted.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)
The following table sets out the inputs to the model used:

BRETE (2
BRES B ES RS ()
TRHFIHERE R > 8 ABUE

23 July 2015*
Share options
2 July 2014 7 May 2015 granted to
Grant date Share options granted to Share options granted to 2015
201457820 2015%5A7H TH23R* 31 May 16 Share options granted to
BREAH BRERT BRERT BRERT 20165 A 31 BERERT
Certain Certain
Executive Other Executive Other eligible Executive Other eligible
directors employees directors employees  participants directors employees  participants
ETREK ETRER
HTES HitiES HITES HitfEg8 8% HTES HitES 2%
Fair value at measurement R EREZATE
date (HK$) (1) 0.44 0.39 0.71 0.58 2.23 1.22 117 1.45
Share price (HKS) BREGET) 1.07 1.07 1.68 1.68 1.67 3.05 3.05 3.05
Exercise price (HK$) 11EE (BT) 1.13 1.13 1.68 1.68 2.16 3.66 3.66 3.66
Expected volatility BERRE 45.54% 45.54% 46.20% 46.20% 49.43% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%
Expected life BHEH 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 1.5 years 10 years 10 years 10 years
106 10F 105 105 155 105 106 10F
Expected dividends BHRS 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 1.47% 1.47% 1.47%
Risk-free interest rate ERBFE
(based on Hong Kong (ABRINEES
Exchange Fund Notes) ZRFIRAEE) 2.059% 2.059% 1.745% 1.745% 0.239% 1.286% 1.286% 1.286%
Exercise multiple IfRfEE 28 22 28 22 - 28 22 -
Post-vesting exit rate BRERAX 0% 5.44% 0% 16.12% - 9.22% 9.22% -

MERCABERBEEZSHMARTESE -

No other feature of the Relevant Share Options was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

BRABERE 2 BEZRR Z AR AR G K&
ZHEEBR LAFRERHBETER R AR
T IR ARRNBEEH A FEMTE
FREAFE -

The value of the Relevant Share Options is subject to the limitations of
the binomial model and a number of assumptions which are subjective
and difficult to ascertain. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

EZEANERET S RIB R B ERE B
P B 75 R R B 5 2(s)(i) K M 3E 30 A A E A
B A2014F7 A2H ~ 201565 A7H 2015
F7H28HK2016F5 A31 B2 -

Further details relating to the Share Option Scheme and share options
granted thereunder are set out in note 2(s)(ii) and note 30 to the financial
statements and the announcements of the Company dated 2 July 2014,
7 May 2015, 23 July 2015 and 31 May 2016.
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PLEDGE OF SHARES BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 30 March
2015, the same day, Epoch Keen entered into a share charge (2015
Share Charge”) with Huarong, pursuant to which Epoch Keen agreed to
charge by way of first fixed charge all its rights, title and interest in
362,000,000 ordinary shares in the Company (representing 17.20% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the 2015
Share Charge) in favour of Huarong as the secured party.

The 2015 Share Charge has been entered into as security for the
liabilities of the Company under a subscription agreement in relation to
the issue of convertible bonds due 2017 entered in to between the
Company and Huarong on 27 March 2015. This share charge has been
released on 19 April 2017.

On 29 June 2015, Epoch Keen entered into a share charge with
Changhong (Hong Kong) Trading Limited (“Changhong Share Charge”)
pursuant to which Epoch Keen agreed to charge by way of first fixed
charge all its rights, title, interest and benefit in 147,000,000 ordinary
shares in the Company (representing 6.98% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of Changhong Share Charge) in favour of
Changhong (Hong Kong) Trading Limited as the secured party to secure,
amongst others, the repayment of the prepayment amount from Sichuan
Changhong Electric Co., Ltd (“Sichuan Changhong”) to Tongxin under
an annual sales contract entered into between Tongxin and Sichuan
Changhong on 16 June 2015. Changhong (Hong Kong) Trading Limited
is wholly controlled by Sichuan Changhong. The share charge has been
released on 22 August 2016.
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EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share Option Scheme

Details of the Share Option Scheme of the Company are set out in the
section above headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEMES”.

Convertible Bonds Subscription Agreement

On 27 March 2015, the Company entered into the subscription agreement
with Huarong relating to the issuance of convertible bonds by the
Company to Huarong in an aggregate principal amount of
USD32,610,000 expiring at the second anniversary date of the issue date.

The obligations of Huarong to subscribe and pay for, and the obligations
of the Company to issue, the convertible bonds are conditional upon,
among other things, the fulfillment of certain conditions as stated in the
announcement of the Company dated 27 March 2015.

On 13 April 2015, the Company completed the issuance of convertible
bonds to Huarong in an aggregate principal amount of USD32,610,000.
The convertible bonds bear a fixed interest rate of 10% with interest to
be paid on a quarterly basis. The convertible bonds will expire at the
second anniversary of the issue date and are convertible into ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued share capital of the Company at
an adjusted conversion price of HK$1.40 per share (subject to
adjustment). Subject as provided in the terms and conditions, the
bondholder(s) shall be entitled to convert, in whole or in part, the
convertible bonds into shares of the Company on any business day from
the issue date up to and including the day preceding the maturity date.
The terms and conditions of the convertible bonds restrict the exercise
of conversion right up to an aggregate principal amount of the
convertible bonds of USD16,300,000, which is convertible to
approximately 90,555,555 ordinary shares of the Company (based on a
condition in the terms and conditions which provides that based on the
agreed exchange rate, the principle amount of the convertible bond shall
be deducted by USDO0.18 upon the issue of one conversion share).

On 17 August 2016, pursuant to the adjustment provisions of the
conversion price as stated in the terms and conditions of the convertible
bonds, the conversion price of HK$1.40 per ordinary share has been
adjusted to HK$1.39 per ordinary share as a result of the issue of the
135,000,000 ordinary shares. All other terms of the convertible bonds
remain unchanged. The adjustment has become effective as of 17
August 2016, being the date on which the 135,000,000 ordinary shares
were issued. Based on the adjusted conversion price, the convertible
bonds is convertible to approximately 90,881,295 ordinary shares of the
Company.
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EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS (Continued)
Convertible Bonds Subscription Agreement (Continued)

The Directors are of the view that the convertible bonds issue represented
a good opportunity for the Company to raise funds to strengthen its
financial position and to finance the Group’s future development and
expansion, including the acquisition of interest in Baohe Fushan. The
Directors consider that raising funds by way of issuing the convertible
bonds would enable the Company to obtain funds with a lower financial
cost considering the recent debt and equity market conditions. In addition,
the Directors are of the view that an investment by Huarong and China
Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd., a reputable institutional investor, in
convertible instrument of the Company represents a recognition in the
investment value of the Company, and would contribute to building a long
term relationship with the Investor group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries, of the listed securities of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. Yu Jiangiu and Epoch Keen, being controlling shareholders of the
Company, entered into a deed of non-competition (“Deed of Non-
Competition”) dated 6 February 2014, details of which have been set out
in the paragraph headed “Non-Competition Undertaking” in the section
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

The Company has reviewed the annual declaration from the parties on
compliance with their undertaking under the Deed of Non-Competition.
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status of
compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the Deed of
Non-Competition have been complied with by the parties.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, the directors of the Company
confirmed that based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company had
maintained sufficient amount of public float as required under the Listing
Rules and agreed by the Stock Exchange.

AUDITORS

KPMG has been appointed as auditor of the Company in 2016. KPMG
shall retire in the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If any shareholder is unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any rights
in relation to the Shares, it is advised to consult an expert.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to article 164 of the Articles, every Director is entitled to be
indemnified and secured harmless out of assets of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which any of them, their or any of their heirs, executors or administrators,
shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act, done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in
their respective offices or trusts (except such is incurred or sustained
through his own fraud or dishonesty). Such provision is currently in force
and was in force throughout the financial year ended 31 December
2016.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining the
highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. To the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group in relation to its business including
health and safety, workplace conditions, employment and the
environment. The Group understands that a better future depends on
everyone’s participation and contribution. It has encouraged all
employees to participate in environmental and social activities which
benefit the community as a whole.

The Group itself is operating in the environmental protection industry by
virtue of recycling scrap metal materials in the society. Contributing to
resolve a significant part of pollution problem in the vicinity of our plants,
the Group was highly praised and encouraged by the local governments.
The Group is also committed to social responsibility as seen in its
employment of disabled staff and providing appropriate working
conditions and protection to them. The Group also advocated
conservation of resources in office and encouraged employees to
develop good habits, conserve resources and energy to build a green
and comfortable office environment.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group did not donate to
any charitable organization (2015: RMB379,000).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has applied
the principles of and is in compliance with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set forth in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules save as disclosed below.

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
Chief Executive should be clearly established and set out in writing.
Currently, Mr. Yu Jiangiu is both the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. As Mr. Yu is the founder of the Group and has
extensive experience in operations and management, the Board believes
that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr. Yu taking up both
roles for continuous effective management and business development of
the Group.

Code provision A.6.7 provides that the independent non-executive
Directors and non-executive Directors should attend general meetings of
the Company. Code provision E.1.2 provides that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting and also invite the
chairmen of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any other
committees (as appropriate) to attend. In their absence, he should invite
another member of the committee or failing this his duly appointed
delegate, to attend. These persons should be available to answer
questions at the annual general meeting.

Due to other business engagements, an executive Director was not able
to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 6 June
2016. In the future, the Company has arranged and will continue to
arrange to furnish all Directors with appropriate information on all general
meetings and take all reasonable measures to arrange the schedule in
such a cautious way that all Directors can attend the general meetings.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIRED STANDARD
OF DEALINGS IN SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding the directors’
securities transactions on terms not less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
After specific enquiry made by the Company, all directors confirmed that
they had complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code and the code of conduct regarding the directors’ securities
transactions throughout 2016.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors would like to take this opportunity to express our sincere
thanks to all the shareholders and business associates for their
continuous support and the entire staff for their dedication and
contribution to the Group during the year.

By order of the Board

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited
Chairman

Yu Jiangiu

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in
the Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group recognizes the vital importance of good corporate
governance to the Group’s success and sustainability. We are
committed to achieving a high standard of corporate governance as an
essential component of quality and have introduced corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of our
business.

Since the Listing Date, the Company has applied the principles of and is
in compliance with all code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code as set forth in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules save as disclosed
below.

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
Chief Executive should be clearly established and set out in writing.
Currently, Mr. Yu Jiangiu is both the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. As Mr. Yu is the founder of the Group and has
extensive experience in operations and management, the Board believes
that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr. Yu taking up both
roles for continuous effective management and business development of
the Group.

Code provision A.6.7 provides that the independent non-executive
Directors and non-executive Directors should attend general meetings of
the Company. Code provision E.1.2 provides that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting and also invite the
chairmen of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any other
committees (as appropriate) to attend. In their absence, he should invite
another member of the committee or failing this his duly appointed
delegate, to attend. These persons should be available to answer
questions at the annual general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREIWE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(Continued)

Due to other business engagements, an executive Directors was not
able to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 6
June 2016. In the future, the Company has arranged and will continue to
arrange to furnish all Directors with appropriate information on all general
meetings and take all reasonable measures to arrange the schedule in
such a cautious way that all Directors can attend the general meetings.

Key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company as
well as details relating to the foregoing deviation are summarized below.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for overall management and control of the
Company. The Board’s main roles are to provide leadership and to
approve strategic policies and plans with a view to enhancing
shareholder value. All Directors carry out their duties in good faith and in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions
objectively, and acting in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all
applicable laws and regulations are followed.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

Directors have full and timely access to consult with the Company’s
senior management independently. Any Director and Board Committee
may request independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making reasonable
request to the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD (continued)

Responsibilities (Continued)

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day
management and operation of the Group to the senior management of
the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the
Board has established three Board committees, namely the audit and
corporate governance committee (the “Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
(together, the “Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to the
Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this annual report, the directors of the Company were
as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Jianqgiu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

Mr. Huang Weiping

Ms. Zhu Yufen

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny

Mr. Pan Liansheng

Ms. Ren Ruxian

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors” in this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELIRE

BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has been in
compliance with the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with the requirement of Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of independent non-
executive directors representing at least one-third of the Board.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Director has confirmed his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers each of them to be independent.

All Directors have brought a wide range of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Moreover, through active participation in Board meetings,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests
and serving on Board committees, all independent non-executive
directors make various contributions to the effective direction of the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The directors have been provided with the relevant training to ensure
that they have a proper understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and that they are fully aware of their responsibilities and
obligations as a director of a listed company as well as the compliance
practice under the Listing Rules.

The attendance record of professional trainings received by the Directors
is as follows:

Date of attendance of

Director director’s training

21 December 2016
21 December 2016
21 December 2016
21 December 2016
21 December 2016
21 December 2016
21 December 2016

Mr. Yu Jiangiu

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson
Mr. Huang Weiping

Ms. Zhu Yufen

Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny
Mr. Pan Liansheng

Ms. Ren Ruxian

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Yu Jiangiu is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. As Mr. Yu is the founder of the Group and has extensive
experience in corporate operations and management, the Board believes
that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr. Yu taking up both
roles for continuous effective management and business development of
the Group.

The Board considers that the current structure of vesting the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELIRE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The appointment of independent non-executive directors, subject to re-
nomination and re-election by the Company in general meeting, shall be
for a term of two years unless previously terminated in accordance with
the terms and conditions specified in their appointment.

The director’s fee specified in the letter of appointment of each of
independent non-executive Directors are HK$200,000 per annum.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and/or industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advice to the Board.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

None of the directors who is proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has any service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The rules and procedures governing the appointment, retirement, re-
election and removal of directors are set out in the Articles of Association
of the Company. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
the Board structure, size and composition and making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors.

Independent non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. In accordance with the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”), at least one third
of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that each Director shall
be subject to retirement at an AGM at least once every three years.

Any new director appointed to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board shall be subject to re-election at the
next AGM after his appointment.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than
fourteen days will be given for all regular board meetings to provide all
directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the
agenda for regular board meetings.

For other Board and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice will
generally be given. The agenda and accompanying board papers are
dispatched to the directors or Board committee members at least three
days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to
review the papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings. When
directors or Board committee members are unable to attend a meeting,
they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given an
opportunity to make their views known to the chairman prior to the
meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings are/will
be recorded in sufficient detail to include the matters considered by the
Board and the Board committee and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board committee meeting will be sent to the directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting
is held.

According to the Articles of Association, a Director shall not vote nor be
counted in the quorum on any resolution of the Board approving any
contract or arrangement in which he or his associates is materially
interested.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELIRE

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT
MEETINGS

The annual general meeting was held on 6 June 2016 whilst 12 Board
meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2016 and the
attendance of the individual directors at these meetings is set out below.

Annual
general

Board
meeting
attendance

meeting

Name of director Notes attendance

Mr. Yu Jiangiu 1/1 9/9
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 1/1 12/12
Mr. Huang Weiping 1/1 10/10
Ms. Zhu Yufen 0N 12/12
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny 1/1 12/12
Mr. Pan Liansheng 1/1 12/12
Ms. Ren Ruxian 11 12/12

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions by
Officers on terms no less exacting than those set out in the Model Code
as its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.
Specific enquiry has been made of the Company’s directors and all the
existing directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the period
from 1 January 2016 to the date of this annual report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All Board committees have been established with defined written terms
of reference, which are posted on the Company’s website
“http://www.cmru.com.cn” and are available to shareholders upon
request. All Board committees report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny, Mr. Pan
Liansheng and Ms. Ren Ruxian (Chairperson) who are all independent
non-executive directors. The functions of the Nomination Committee
primarily are to: (i) review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (i) identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships; (iii) assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors; (iv) make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman of the Board and the chief executive;
and to (v) determine the policy for the nomination of directors, the
nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted to select
and recommend candidates for directorship.

On 16 April 2014 the Nomination Committee adopted a board diversity
policy in compliance with code provision A.5.6 (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). The Board Diversity Policy applies to the Board and sees
increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage. The Nomination
Committee will review annually the structure, size and composition of the
Board and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, and will
make recommendation to the Board on the measurable objectives for
achieving board diversity. The Company aims to maintain an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board that are relevant to the
Company business growth.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELIRE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2016 to, inter alia, (i) review the size and composition of the
Board; (ii) assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors and to review that re-appointment of directors; and (jii) discuss
other matters related to the foregoing.

Number of
attendance/

Eligible
to attend

Name of director

Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny 1/1
Mr. Pan Liansheng 2/2
Ms. Ren Ruxian (appointed on i7al

30 November 2015)

The Nomination Committee recommended Mr. Huang Weiping, Ms. Zhu
Yufen as executive directors, and Mr. Pan Liansheng as independent
non-executive directors of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny, Mr.
Pan Liansheng (Chairperson) and Ms. Ren Ruxian who are all
independent non-executive directors.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee include the following: (i) to
make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all directors’ and senior management’s remuneration and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy; (ii) to review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives; (i) either to determine, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management, or to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management; (iv) to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of non-executive directors; (v) to consider salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries;
(vi) to review and approve compensation payable to executive directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive; (vii) to review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of directors
for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms
and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; (vii) to ensure that no
director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own
remuneration; and (ix) to determine the policy for the remuneration of
executive directors, assess performance of executive directors and
approve the terms of executive directors’ service contracts.

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2016 are set out in note 9 to the financial statements
contained in this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELIRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued) YMEES )
Remuneration of senior management other than Directors for the year EHZE2016FE 12 31 BILFEFEENSHRE
ended 31 December 2016 are as follow: BEFMIMT

Number of executive

TRABHE

2016 2015
A48 37 Y 5 ) 2016 & 20154

Total remuneration bands

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000

£ 2 1,000,000 7T

1,000,001 & 7T 2 1,500,000 7T
1,500,001 /& 7L 2 2,000,000 7 7T
2,000,001 # T ZE 2,500,000 4 7T
2,500,001 # T E 3,000,000 7 7T
3,000,001 77T & 3,500,000 %8 7T
3,500,001 # 7T = 4,000,000 4 7T
4,000,001 7T E 4,500,000 4 7T

3 meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during the year REZE2016F 12831 BILFE  HFWEE S
ended 31 December 2016 to review the existing remuneration packages 2177 Z X &% UWEZARRZEELSHE
of Directors and senior managements of the Company, to recommend  I2[E > ZFHElEB - EHIREEREULRES
the proposed grant of share option and to recommend the remuneraton ABIEENSREIEE 2 FEE8 - T2z
packages for Directors and senior managements of the Company. The #HElEF B E L2 EE =S4 o
recommended remuneration packages have been approved by the

entire Board.

EHE
8

Number of

attendance/
Eligible to attend

Name of director A R B

Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny 3/3 RN S A 3/3
Mr. Pan Liansheng 3/3 EEB A 3/3
Ms. Ren Ruxian 2/2 g g 2/2
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDIT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee comprises Mr. Lee
Ting Bun Denny (Chairperson), Mr. Pan Liansheng and Ms. Ren Ruxian
who are all independent non-executive directors.

In relation to reviewing the Company’s financial information, the Audit
and Corporate Governance Committee’s duties mainly are to (i) review
the financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the financial officers of the Group or external
auditors before submission to the Board; (i) review and monitor the
external auditors’ independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of
the audit process; (iii) make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and (iv)
review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management system.

In relation to its corporate governance functions, the Audit and
Corporate Governance Committee’s responsibilities are (i) to develop,
review and update the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices and to make recommendations to the Board, (i) to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management, (iii) to review and monitor the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, (iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees and directors,
and (v) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

ERELIRE

ERREREREES

ERhEEXEARZEEBRREFERAEE(E
7)) EEBEERELEZ L - 2EERBL
FMITESE -

?ﬁ%&ﬁﬂi’“ﬁﬁ’lﬁﬂ%’éﬁﬂﬁﬁ% C BRREEE
ALREENIZRARR  ((NEXEEGH

%Bﬁ$‘$l@ﬂ“#&2€&#&i I & AN 5 E

BABSINSZ B 2 A EAHIEER

HE (Vs WESEINEZ S s BT - &
B R EZRIE R (VR BENE
GINEZHBMEESRIES (iv) B 5] A

NREFBHRESE - ABEEHE - RREE
HEETERARBRL

MREGEERBEMNS  ERLEEERZE
SORES  ()VHF - B RERARBHD
FERHELFRIMEESELEZ ()R
AREREERAREBENFIRFEREE
BR (i) RERARRRETERIER
MERBEREER © (VHIR] - B RERER
RETIRESNHRTTARERTM k)
AARFRREETEEEATIRRALEE
SRR E E R

Annual Report 2016 / —Z — /N F4F 1R a



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREIWE

AUDIT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE (continued)

ERREEERE

Three meetings of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee FRERLPEEAREZES@HRIT=REH
were held during the Year. The work performed by the Audit and BEBZEEILEELSEZEENAFEEITHIES
Corporate Governance Committee during the Year included the  #ELAT&IHE :

following:

reviewed the annual report and results announcement of the
Company for the years ended 31 December 2015;

reviewed the interim report and interim results announcements of
the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2016;

reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and other financial reporting matters;

reviewed the results of external audit and had discussion with
external auditors on any significant findings and audit issues;

reviewed the results of internal audit and had discussion with
internal auditors on any significant findings and internal control
issues;

discussed with the external auditors before the audit commenced,
the nature and scope of the audit and the respective relevant

issues; and

considered and approved the service contract of the auditors for
the Year.

Number of

attendance/
Eligible to attend

Name of director

Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny 3/3
Mr. Pan Liansheng 3/3
Ms. Ren Ruxian 3/3

There had been no disagreement between the Board and the Audit and

o EHRARQRFEHE2015F 1231 B ILF
ERFREFEENE

° FBI AR AIE E 201646 A 30 H 1L/
AR HRE R A RS

o  EHAKHEMRMANGBERRIE G
iR mEE

o  EHIINEHBZRAER  UREAEARERRL
BT EEEINEZBANETT A M

o  EHAIEZNER jﬁdﬁ&ﬂi?@*iﬁ
R E A P B0 5 1 =B B A D A A i
S

o NEZFAREINEZBEN
HENBEANSEREE &

EZH

o ERIEAFENZEEIRESL

EHE

R

A R B

ST 3/3
EEB LA 3/3
it 3/3

HE2016F12A31BILFE EFCHEZ

RERERZBGZHLEN I

Corporate Governance Committee during the year ended 31 December
2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

KPMG was re-appointed as our external auditor by shareholders at the
2016 AGM until the conclusion of the 2017 AGM. It is primarily
responsible for providing audit services in connection with the annual
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the remuneration paid or payable to KPMG is set out
below:

Audit services (audit fee for the year ended
31 December 2016 and 2015)

Internal control consultancy fees NEBESIE R E

ERELIRE

BB &

EFEH G EBEN 2016 FIRFBEF RS
IR EE RIMEZEIAD - EHIE 2017 FARFIE
FRER/L - BT EREBERNEFRAMBR
RIBFHEZIRT

TSN T REEH SR BRSSO
BT

Year ended
31 December
2015
HZE2015F
12 H31H
IEEE
RMB’000
ARETT

Year ended
31 December
2016

B Z 2016 F

12A31H
IEFE
RMB’000
AR®TR

ENZRIE (R ZE 2016 F K 20154
12A31BIEFEZERE)

2,750 2,496
334 441

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 which give a true and
fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group’s
results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are
put to the Board for approval. The Company provides all members of
the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
positions and prospects.

The Directors have made an assessment on the liquidity position of the
Group as to whether the Group is able to continue as a going concern
for at least the twelve months from the end of the reporting period. The
material uncertainties considered by the Directors are set out on Note
2(b) to the consolidated financial statements. The Directors are in the
opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statement on a going concern basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREIWE

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board to
maintain an adequate internal control system to safeguard shareholder
investments and Company assets and review the effectiveness of such
system on an annual basis.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Company and considers the internal control
system to be effective and adequate.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against its directors.

The Board has established an internal audit function, which reports
directly to the Audit Committee to determine whether the internal control
procedures are properly carried out throughout the year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an
ongoing basis. Such risk management and internal control systems are
designed for managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board
has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of risk
management and internal control to the Audit and Corporate
Governance Committee. The Audit and Corporate Governance (on
behalf of the Board) oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems, and management has provided a confirmation to the
Risk Management Committee (and the Board) on the effectiveness of
these systems for the year ended 31 December 2016.

During 2016, the Group has engaged an external consultant to provide
assistance in the development of a structured approach to risk
management and perform internal control review.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Main features of the risk management and internal control
systems

The Group’s risk governance structure and the main responsibilities of
each level of the structure are summarised below:

Board

Determines the business strategies and objectives of the Group,
and evaluates and determines the nature and extent of risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives;

Ensures that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems; and

Oversees management in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.

Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

Assists the Board to perform its responsibilities of risk management
and internal control systems;

reviews the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices (including risk management policy) and to make
recommendations to the Board;

Ensures the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions; and

Considers key matters on risk management and internal control,
and reports and makes recommendations to the Board.

B peE

ERELIRE

ER KRR ()

REREERABEZEFENETREH

AEBEZABREARBALRBEASEENT
ZRE[IMOT

Efi%A

EAEBEZ XBREEBER - MFHEL
%EK%ILW%% B IR 6 FTRE B R
MR IEE MIZE

BMRAEERZIRGERA
REERABEESE &

BRE R R

EEEREEYHRREEMANIEILHE
G BHERER -

BEERLEREREZRE

HESS ﬂ HREBERE MR E R
R E

B ARRNEEERBRELEHR (B
B\ b B IR BUR )&ﬁﬁ%gﬂfﬂj@m3
BRAEE LS - NBEZ LI TFER
B mETHNER  ETEREL

B - BITIEFIRRIE - URBEBEHE &
EZEAHRAREENAMERETENS
BREER YRNEETSERRELE

N
2
=

Annual Report 2016 / —Z — /N F4F 1R e



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREIWE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Main features of the risk management and internal control
systems (Continued)

Management

Designs, implements and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems;

|dentifies, evaluates and manages the risks that may potentially
impact the major processes of the operations;

Monitors risks and takes measures to mitigate risks in day-to-day
operations;

Gives prompt responses to, and follow up on risk management
and internal control matters; and

Provides confirmation to the Board and Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.

Internal control consultant

Reports to the Audit Committee the findings of the internal control
review and makes recommendations to the Board and
management to improve the material systems deficiencies or
control weaknesses identified.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

For the purpose of handling and disseminating inside information in
accordance with the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group has taken
various procedures and measures, including arousing the awareness to
preserve confidentiality of inside information within the Group, sending
blackout period and securities dealing restrictions notification to the
relevant directors and employees regularly, disseminating information to
specified persons on a need-to-know basis and regarding closely to the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities
and Futures Commission in June 2012.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group was in compliance
with all the laws and regulations applicable to the business operations of
the Group.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company also
recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which enables shareholders and investors to
make the best investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at “http://www.cmru.com.cn”, where extensive information and updates
on the Group’s business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public access.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELIRE

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS (Continued)

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests to
the Company as follows:

Address: Unit 908, China Merchants Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong
(For the attention of Corporate Communications Department)
Fax: +852 2587 7199
Email: ir@cmru.com.cn

Enquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

The Board welcomes views of shareholders and encourages them to
attend general meetings to raise any concerns they might have with the
Board or the management directly. Board members and appropriate
senior staff of the Group are available at the meetings to answer any
questions raised by shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationship
with its investors.

Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them informed of the Group’s
developments.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there had been no change in
the constitutional documents of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan,
whose biography details are set out in the section headed “Directors and
senior management” in this annual report. Mr. Cheung has been
informed of the requirement of the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, and he
confirmed that he had attained no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and
voting.

Under article 58 of the Articles of Association, the Company’s
shareholders may convene an extraordinary general meeting or put
forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings pursuant to the Articles of
Association. Any one or more shareholder(s) holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary, require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition.

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands
and the Articles of Association.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director, the procedures
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the Company and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

The Company has not made any changes to its Articles of Association
throughout the year ended 31 December 2016. An up-to-date version of
the Articles of Association is available on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website. Shareholders may refer to the Articles of
Association for further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will be
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (http://www.cmru.com.cn) immediately after the relevant
general meetings.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HERELERE

This is China Metal Resources Utilization Limited’s (referred to in this
report as “Group” or “the Group” or “the Company”) (Stock code: 1636)
first annual Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) report. The
report covers the financial year ended 31 December 2016 and discloses
information on the Group’s ESG management approach, strategy,
priorities and objectives.

The report explains how the Group complies with the “comply or explain”
provisions of the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (HKEX ESG Reporting Guide).This report has been
reviewed and approved by the Group’s Board of Directors.

The content of the report focuses on material sustainability areas —
based on the Group’s most significant economic, environmental and
social impacts, as well as the areas that are of the greatest interest or
concern to stakeholders — identified through a comprehensive
materiality assessment, which included stakeholder engagement.

REPORTING SCOPE

This report covers the Group’s core businesses, including recycled
copper products, power transmission and distribution cables,
communication cables and aluminum products. Investment in associates
of the Group are not covered by this report.

This report highlights the Group’s sustainability effort in environmental
area and social area.

@ China Metal Resources Utilization Limited / 2 B4 B & J8 M A AR A 7
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

MATERIALITY

We conducted a comprehensive materiality assessment that included

focus groups,

interviews and a survey of internal and external

stakeholders to identify issues that reflect significant economic,
environmental and social impacts of our business, and the issues that
matter most to our stakeholders. Based on the results of this
assessment, we have identified the following 3 material areas for
inclusion in this report: Environmental Area, Social Area and Community

Investment.

(A) Environmental Area

Environmental policies and performance

The Company regularly keeps track of the latest national and
regional environmental laws and regulations, complies with
relevant laws and rules such as the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China (74 % A R KR
1R (R # %), the Environmental Impact Assessment Law of
the People’s Republic of China (FF I A R KB R IE 2 25T
{&)%) and the Prevention and Control of Environmental Noise
Pollution of the People’s Republic of China (Fh#E A R HF1E
IR 35 05 3 B 08 JK), and takes various measures to
achieve better performance in environmental protection that
covers daily production activities. During the year, the
Company has not been subject to any fines or related
litigation in relation to environmental pollution.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
actively promoted the use of new technologies, new
processes and new materials to maximize material savings,
environmental protection and pollution reduction.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BR ERE

aRE

MATERIALITY (Continued)
(A) Environmental Area (Continued)

Savage of resources

To save the usage of electricity, the plant reduce usage of
the air conditioning system and gradually shift to use energy
saving lamp which can meet our lighting requirement.

We are committed to follow environmentally responsible
practices and have adopted measures to lower the impact
and risk of our operations on the environment. We monitor
our compliance with applicable environmental regulations
relating to noise and solid waste discharge and have
established an environmental control system pursuant to the
applicable regulations.

Our environmental control system consists of three major
components, namely dust precipitation system, smoke
reduction system and wastewater processing system. Dust
precipitation system and smoke reduction system are used
for removal of dust and smoke generated in our production
processes, and wastewater processing system is used for
wastewater treatment and disposal.

In addition, we have adopted environmental protection
manuals to govern environmental related matters of the
Group, including standard procedures for waste
management. We also have an environmental officer at each
of our operating subsidiaries to ensure implementation and
compliance of the environmental protection manuals.

(B) Social Area

Employment policy

The Company regularly keeps track of and updates the laws
and regulations of the relevant countries and regions of the
employees, strictly abides by the relevant laws and
regulations such as the “Labor Law of the People’s Republic
of China” (P A RELMBE L EYX) and the “Labor Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China” (13 A R A1 E 44
g4 [JX), and sign labor contracts with all regular
employees to protect the legitimate rights and interests of
employees. We audit and verify staff identity during the
recruitment process to ensure that no child labor is
employed. We does not employ any staff aged under 16.
During the employment process, the applicants should
provide their identity card as a proof.

e China Metal Resources Utilization Limited / 2 B4 B & J8 M A AR A 7

BEEM )
(A) F%@%ﬂi

(B)

R
BAHNRE  BEASEREAR
% LESRBTHTRMEAR
SREVRTREE -

RPN ERIREAENHE
WERBEER DML ELR
REKNTERRER - BHMEES
SREETHET RERERYH
WEBREAREER - WREE
FUERRAIRIBIEHI B4 -

BMRRES RGE = EE 25
DK BIRERS  BRERZR
BREIKEBIRRL - BREE R RIE
RERRZGEARERTBMOEER
MARESNEE  M5KERRL
BN EEMBEE K o

AN HPIERARRTFMAEE
AEBNREEBEE  BEEY
EENRERF - BFIMESEE
MEARRE -—BRREME  BR
Bt S BT IRRTFAM

?iﬁ’%ul*%

ERBUR

KRG EHER THEEENEEM
EHRBEBERRMERNEREER
BB TR EARLFBE LS EER
FEAREMELHARESHEE
EERER  WEABERBETEH
ELFAER - REBTAFER -
RBEBAREF  RMEEIHHE
ERERR BRI EBEWNE
T o B MEBR M 16 R EAE
T RERBRES - KB EERME
WERNEDE - AEZAR -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BT -HERELIRS

MATERIALITY (Continued)
(B) Social Area (Continued)

Employment policy (Continued)

We support equal opportunities. Our employment practices
do not discriminate on grounds of gender, disability,
pregnancy, family status, religion, age, sexual orientation,
national origin, trade union membership or other conditions
recognized in law. About 25% of our staff aged over 45. All
new employees are advised of relevant policies and
guidelines of the Group. The employee induction process for
new hires includes extensive guidance on anti-corruption
measures and the whistle blower policies.

We attach great importance to the protection of rights and
interests for employees, strictly comply with the relevant
provisions of national and local employee rights and
interests. The provisions of the Company’s constitution
expressly specifies the working hours, rest and leave, labor
protection and so on to encourage employees to maintain
work-life balance and ensure that the whole company is free
of any compulsory labor.

Protection to employees

The Company has been committed to providing employees
with a safe working environment, paying tremendous
attention to employees’ own health, strictly abiding by the
relevant laws and regulations such as the “Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China” (F 2 A R 2L F1E 45 &)%) and
the “Regulations on Work-Related Injury Insurance” ( T{&{x
Bex R 131)).

The Company has bought a commercial supplementary
insurance for employees on top of the national requirements
of acquiring five insurance policies and contributing housing
provident funds. In the event of industrial accidents, the
Company will submit an application to the local human
resources and social security department to identify the
employment injuries for employees.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HERELERE

MATERIALITY (Continued)
(B) Social Area (Continued)
—  Training policy

We consider growth of our employees as the key to
sustainable business growth. We recruit personnel from the
open market and a large number of our employees are
disabled persons. We provide technical as well as
operational training to our new employees and on-going
training for all employees.

Assurance for Quality Goods

—  Product quality control
We have devoted effort on quality control of product. To
assure the quality of product. We have performed several
quality check before the products delivered to the
customers.

We are committed to ensure that our products are safe and
comply with the industrial standard.

Warehouse for storage are always clean and do not omit
pollutants and other pollution sources.

—  Warehouse management
We delivered our products on a “first-arrive, first-leave”
system.

—  Supply chain management
We have also devoted efforts on quality control of the raw
materials purchased to ensure their quality meet the
requirement of our production. The inhouse team of the
Group possesses extensive experience in the comprehensive
screening and examining the supply chain and quality of raw
materials.

(C) Community Investment
We are committed to fostering positive relationships with the
communities in which we operate, including by engaging in
volunteer work to support their long-term development.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

N

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
China Metal Resources Utilization Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Metal
Resources Utilization Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 86 to 201, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with
any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VR

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2(b) to the
consolidated financial statements, which discloses that the Group
incurred a net loss of RMB311,618,000 for the year ended 31 December
2016 and, as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by RMB16,510,000. Note 2(b) also discloses that the
Group had convertible bonds with principal amount of USD32,610,000
that would mature on 13 April 2017 and overdue entrusted loans of
RMB 299,116,000 which constituted cross breach of other interest
bearing borrowings. As stated in Note 2(b), these conditions indicate
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to
be communicated in our report.

Recognition of trading revenue

Refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies in note 2(v) on page 120.

The Key Audit Matter

BRELEER

BEEECERANERTRERR
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNTEEZSER

The Group’s principal activities are the manufacturing, sale and
trading of copper and related products.
EEENIZEBREDRIANAEBERNEE HERES -

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
trading revenue included the following:
BEERAGESEXERIARANEZEFERET

5|58

In response to the decrease in the demand for copper products
and the reduction in value added tax refunds, the Group e
significantly reduced its manufacturing activities during the year
ended 31 December 2016 and has focused on the trading of
electrolytic copper and related products.
REHMERST K TRIIBERERNRINRE X SEEEEE
2016 F 12 ABIBIEFEERBRIELEELRZY  WEFIR
ERANBEAERNES -
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obtaining an understanding of the processes
relating to the recognition of trading revenue
and assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
over the recording of trading revenue;
THREZSHEXERIREENIE T R CHE
5 & E MR A BBV RRET - BT IR E
LT RIE



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Recognition of trading revenue (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter
BEEXEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded total
revenue of RMB4,933 million of which trading revenue accounted
for RMB3,522 million, representing 71% of total revenue.
BHZE2016F12A31ALFE - EEERFESEEARE
4,933,000,0007t * HHE 5 & ¥ 50E AR 3,5622,000,000 7T
IHEREETEN 7T1% o

As part of its trading businesses, the Group purchases electrolytic
copper and related products from suppliers through online copper
trading platforms and the underlying goods are kept in
independent warehouses before delivery to the customers.
Trading revenue is recognised when the delivery order is provided
to the customer upon which the risks and rewards of the
ownership of the copper products sold are considered to have
been transferred.

ERHEBEZEBN - EEEBRBERRNESFEMHERE
B E BRI NMABEER  MBBEMRINTER ZAIFR
REBEYHRERN - EREFIRHIEEER (BMERERNAE
e K Bl mAR RO EBR) BRE 5L X -

We identified recognition of trading revenue as a key audit matter
because revenue is one of the key performance indicators of the
Group which gives rise to an inherent risk that revenue could be
subject to manipulation to meet expectations or targets.
EEREHEEBNBMAR A —HARERFE  DREESE
2 BEEN-EEEXRBEET FoIBBAFERENRME
F|7E Bk B R E AR R o

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB R &

FEEEZEE %)
ESREENER S

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNTEEZEE

inspecting a sample of sales contracts to
identify key terms and conditions and the point
at which the Group is considered to have
transferred the risks and rewards of the copper
products sold and assessing the Group’s
accounting policies for revenue recognition with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;
HMEREHEESOUEEE SRR G
K BEEBEHRREEEMEHERDRR R
Bl HEE WRERTEAFEE - F
it BEXEEAHEXRBEERNSETEE

comparing a sample of revenue transactions
recognised during the year with the sales
contracts, sales invoices, delivery orders and
other relevant underlying documentation;

R FANEBABEXBRHEREFEESH
HEER  RXEBERHEMABMXMH

comparing a sample of revenue transactions
recorded around the year end with the sales
contracts, sales invoices, delivery orders and
other relevant underlying documentation to
assess if the related revenue was recorded in
the appropriate accounting period;

BB F RAEFTCSEE X ER FRAE
HESK  HERE XEERAEMEAX
o UM RS R ER S CASEN G
Ml

comparing the details of a sample of journal
entries posted to revenue accounts during the
year, which met certain specific risk-based
criteria, with the relevant underlying
documentation.

LLEF NI E T AR IR £S5 =R RE
DIEBRBRAR BB X M 2 F 15 o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Assessing the recoverability of advance payments to
suppliers

FEEEZEE %)
75 B0 (< PE T 2K OE Y T [ WA

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the 2 FH A B KRR F21 X5 125 B B 7% 3b(i)

accounting judgements and estimates in note 3b(i) on page 125.

The Key Audit Matter

HEEXEE

RSt I R SR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNTEEZER

The Group has made significant advance payments to suppliers in
order to secure the supply of raw materials. These advances were
principally for scrap copper prior to 2016 and principally for
copper rods in 2016 for the Group’s manufacturing operations.
The balance of advance payments to suppliers has increased over
recent years from RMB142 million as at 31 December 2014 to
RMB402 million and RMB605 million as at 31 December 2015
and 2016 respectively. As a result of the decrease in the scale of
the Group’s manufacturing activities in 2016, there has been
limited utilisation of these balances since they were advanced and
the average ageing of these balances has increased.
EEENRMHERANERERIE  UEERRMEHMLE - WS %
FTER BERENEELEMEL  R2016F 2RI RRER - M
2016 FF BI A s o (A /8 7 S A5 B BA TR A4S BRI 55 SR8 P AN -
2014412 A31 B A R ¥ 142,000,000 7T 5 Bl 3 50 & 2015
k201612831 H B A R #402,000,0007 & A R ¥
605,000,0007C © B H & & B #) 4 B AR E R 2016 F 48/ -
ZEEBHNERAR - DEEBMNME R TIIEREIG AR -

Management assesses the recoverability of advance payments to
suppliers with reference to the credit standing of the suppliers and
their past histories of the supply of goods to the Group.
EREK2EMHERNNEERARESAER BEXEHES
B ESE - B R SRR R P E UL
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Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability of
advance payments to suppliers included the
following:

SR BB MHERRIEN A BRI RBHEZ
BEFBETIIEAE :

° assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
over the monitoring and utilisation of advance
payments to suppliers and making provisions
for advance payments to suppliers;
HERLERRMNHEEEFIALRBAHER
TIREL B BN T 2N MEENRET - TR
BRAERUR TR

° assessing whether individual advance payments
to suppliers were correctly categorised in the
ageing report by comparing a sample of
individual items with relevant underlying
documents, which included contracts and bank
remittance slips;

B RERIE B KA EEE XX (BIEEL
NMARTTERIZRE ) - P EE R 2 R
AR RET D ER D ERE



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Assessing the recoverability of advance payments to
suppliers (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter

BARELER

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB E

FEEEZEE %)
75 B0 ({5 PE T K OE Y R [ WA ()

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNTEEZSERE

We identified assessing the recoverability of advance payments to
suppliers as a key audit matter because the limited utilisation and
ageing of the balances increases the risk that they may not be
recovered and because the advances are to many individuals and
private companies and therefore significant management
judgement is required to be exercised to assess their
recoverability which can be inherently uncertain.
EERBNHEERRIEN A REEE R EREE - THEZ
EERNAEERNEERERIEMN T A e A KmRER - M
EaHRTRARE EARARBMEL - daP b E R BRIt R A
EREBELERAE  MaEFENENTHREL -

assessing the recoverability of a sample of
advance payments to suppliers with reference
to the ageing analysis of the balances, the past
history of each supplier, including previous
defaults or delays in the delivery of goods,
settlement records and post year end deliveries;
DEGERNRROT  SHERNBEEL (B
RRTENNTEERNER)  HELHERTF
REATREE - AP AN H R IR A AT E
U

conducting site visits to a sample of suppliers
to assess the existence of the suppliers and
whether their operations appeared to be
commensurate with the level of the Group’s
business with those suppliers;
HERBETHEENZER U AHERN
BRREENCLEERE EEEMELSMHE
RFRORBKFEE

performing a retrospective review by comparing
management’s assessment of the recoverability
of advance payments to suppliers as at 31
December 2015 with actual utilisation and
recoveries of these balances in the current year.
MAKEEREY 20159 12 A 31 &AM ER
TR B R R F AN A FENE
BRE AR R EIERIELL B - T BB RET
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Assessing potential impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the 2344 BIFER&AM 5112 1 25 108 B i 5% 2(K)(ii)
accounting policies in note 2(Kk)(ii) on page 108. VTR -

FEEEZEE %)
UMY BERBENBENE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNTEEZER

The Key Audit Matter

HEEXEE

The Group held significant property, plant and equipment (“PPE”)  Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment
with a carrying value of RMB407 million as at 31 December 2016,  of PPE included the following:

which principally comprised buildings of RMB269 million and plant & &A% - BE MR HETREMNEZREF
and machinery of RMB135 million. BIENT&IA :

EXEHBREYE BEARE(DE BELEED B
20164 12 A 31 HHERHEE A AR 407,000,000 * HFFE
BIEE F AR #269,000000T W E K # 3 ARE
135,000,000 T °

Due to the downturn in the copper market, the Group significantly
reduced its scale of production of copper products during the
year ended 31 December 2016 and only resumed production
activities in Miluo, Hunan Province in July 2016.
HRIAHIETRR - EEEREE2016512 A31 B ILFEH|
WA MEMOEERE - WER2016F7 AR AEE AET K
BEELH -

Given the above factors, management considered that indicators
of potential impairment of PPE existed at 31 December 2016 and
performed an impairment assessment of the Group’s PPE.
EREMAER  BEERAME - WEKBRER 201612 A 31
BECETRETR Ui EEENWE - BRERZEET
BB RS ©
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assessing management’s identification of
indicators of potential impairment of PPE, the
identification of CGUs and the allocation of
assets to these CGUs, with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

S2EZBRITGHERNRTE @ fHHEEREAEA
WY BMERBBELREDTR  ReESE
BUMNERAZEREELEMHENE
=

assessing the competence, qualifications,
experience and objectivity of the third party
valuation specialists engaged by management
to assess the fair value of PPE;
HEBREMIEBUNNEYDE  BEERBLIT
ENE=FHEERNES BE  &LHBEE
B ELRHE

conducting site visits to all of the Group’s
copper production facilities to observe the
physical condition of the PPE;

¥ BEENFAREERMBETEHER
BEmE - BEREENEERMR



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Assessing potential impairment of property, plant and
equipment (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter

BARELER

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB R &

FEEEZEE %)
UMY BERSENBEERES)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNTEEZSERE

Management considered that each of the Group’s subsidiaries
with manufacturing as their principal activity represented a
separately identifiable cash generating unit (“CGU"). Management
determined the recoverable amount of each CGU based on the
higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal
(“FVLCOD").

EERERES BEEENLEFERAIZEINZWNBRARIRES
WAlRpIReEFEM((ReELSEM]) EREREREE
RAFERHEXNAN(AFEREERA D BHRSEEES
WeEFBEMAFTEIRSEE

Given the uncertainty as to when the Group will resume full scale
of its manufacturing operations, management has primarily relied
on FVLCOD in its impairment assessment. In determining
FVLCOD, management engaged third party valuation specialists
to assess the fair value of PPE and estimated the costs of
disposal of PPE based on an internal assessment.

ER EERTHEMNESREEHEESERE  BEEE
ERBATEROEXNRNETRENG - REEAFEREE
AR BEREZBRE=FHEZRTHYE  HEREREN
RNHE - WERAIHEEETDE - BB RERENEERAE

As at 31 December 2015, the Group recognised impairment of
PPE at its production facilities in Mianyang, Sichuan Province in
the amount of RMB54 million. The Group recognised no further
impairment of PPE in 2016.

R20165F 12 A31H - EREFENI)IIE 45T 8 EER M
WRWE - BE KRB EA R ®54,000,0007T ° #2016
F BEEEVESRDE  BELRBHERE—LRE -

We identified assessing potential impairment of PPE as a key
audit matter because of the significant judgements, estimates and
assumptions made during the impairment assessment which can
be inherently uncertain.

ZERAEME  BEMRENEERERSAREZEE

TERERN EBRETEHERALE - A5t RER MEFER
FER)NHETE M o

with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, evaluating the valuation models
adopted by the third party valuation specialists
and assessing the key assumptions and
parameters applied, including the estimated
useful lives and the physical condition of the
assets, with reference to industry practice and
standards and comparing the fair values of PPE
with valuations for comparable market
transactions;

EENAMBEEZEROBET - BB2ET
FEOIREERLLERYE - BERREBOHDT
BEHEABLBRTSRHHME @ FHHE=71
BEERMKANGERE KT EAERNEE
BERR2E REGHAIEAFHLEENE
BRARR

assessing the future costs of disposal of PPE
estimated by management by comparing the
estimations with available market data and
considering the applicable taxation expenses
with reference to the prevailing tax laws and
regulations.

FHEEIRE AT YR - BB LREARKLE
PR AR LT AR IS5 8IS
WRERITREEERERE B EABRIAR
% o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VR

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

@ China Metal Resources Utilization Limited / 2 B4 B & J8 M A AR A 7
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

BB R &

BRBMRERGRS B RRAEN
BfE

BEENBERIRGEAMBERREBRE T FE
R IKEF S AR M M B A RRAEG &
BERE THABRESERNEKHBM®RSE -
tHREER BT (ERSRBE)EL - Rtz
AHEFNEEMBH -  BEEIRARENAR
AEAEMALTBERAEEE -

ARREBEKTHEE BREELEEE
RIITHOB R THET AR B RS RN
AR -

£ e Rt AT I BRRE Sk BB AR 51 A - il 8 5| S BE 8
EREBEHBEATAZEERERESRSMB
BREFHOLERER - RIRRSEAERRK

S

yl[o

RIREBEBBTENETECNBET  BF
ERBEAE  REBXEREE - BF

— B RFERRRFRERMERSZE
M mRFEEAFERBAOER - RE
RBITEZEF ARSI ERR - IAKER
BREMEENEZERE FRESE
MVELHE - RNERFFERIRES R - B3
BEEER BRI - EERAEREE
ZE - B REHRFARFMERNEXN
ERRANERREERMEHNER
R ER AR o

—  THEZEPHEEOAMER  ARFTEE
MEZEF  BEMAIFE BHEBERE
EENAMMRRER -

— WMAEEFARASHERNREERE
et et MR REN SR -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Muk Chung Wing.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2017

BB R &

BB F RS M RREAREN

BEFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FaERaR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BB 2016 4F 12 A 31 HILFE (AN R#Z i)

2016 2015
2016 20154
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AR® T ARET T

Revenue o 4 4,933,625 1,790,750
Cost of sales 5 & B (4,890,742) (1,930,181)
Gross profit/(loss) ER(E8) 42,883 (139,431)
Other revenue Hith 2= 6(a) 179,144 136,968
Other net loss M FEsE 6(o) (227,276) (254,923)
Selling and distribution expenses HE MR (20,280) (8,223)
Administrative expenses ITERFA X (158,937) (161,141)
Loss from operations REEE (184,466) (426,750)
Finance costs 2RI 7(a) (134,045) (113,671)
Loss before taxation FATEE 7 (318,511) (540,421)
Income tax FriSHt 8(a) 6,893 37,285
Loss for the year FREE (311,618) (503,136)
Attributable to: U AL B

Equity shareholders of the Company A EE IR R (310,820) (499,045)
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR RS (798) (4,091)
Loss for the year FRER (311,618) (503,136)
Loss per share ERERE 11

Basic (RMB) AER(ARETT) (0.14) (0.24)
Diluted (RMB) e (AR%T) (0.14) (0.24)

L P AR A B A ER R A0 — &6

The notes on pages 94 to 201 form part of these financial statements.

\

D

94 B =5 201
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FERaRAMRZEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi)
EIZ2016F 12 5 31 H1FF/Z (UA BB )

2016 2015

2016 £ 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARETT

Loss for the year FREIE (311,618) (5083,136)

Other comprehensive income for the year FRHE 2 EH %

Item that may be reclassified subsequently to BEE A B iR IEzmIEE -
profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of financial — #8.& FFh 5] & f2 A1 75 27 2 7

_Statementsofnon-PRCentities EaEE (17,468) (13,280)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZ2ENFEHAEE (329,086) (516,416)
Attributable to: BT ALRERL:

Equity shareholders of the Company AR ARERR (328,288) (512,325)
Non-controlling interests JEEAR i (798) (4,091)
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2EKHALE (329,086) (516,416)

The notes on pages 94 to 201 form part of these financial statements.

D

94 B EF 201 B MM FEREA B 5k R 89 — 20
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBERAR

At 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi)

R2016%F 12 A31 H (AN EEEZL 1)

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
12831 H 12 A31 H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETIT
Non-current assets FREBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - WENRERE 12 594,070 584,429
Lease prepayments HEFEMNK 13 97,794 99,916
Interest in associates RN 15 37,435 135,957
Goodwill [EES 16 23,227 23,227
Pledged deposits B ER 17 4,800 5,320
Other non-current assets HuIER#HEE 18 23,922 26,424
Deferred tax assets BT EE 19(b) 61,638 37,749
842,886 913,022

Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 208,200 249,002
Trade and other receivables B NEME HQ%KIE 21 1,001,927 1,033,039
Amounts due from associates g N B 22(a) 496 458
Amounts due from related parties JrE LAt B gt ETAIE 22(a) 4,899 3,345
Pledged deposits B ER 17 55,926 53,886
Cash and cash equivalents Be MBS EEER 23(a) 164,142 82,559
1,435,590 1,422,289

Current liabilities =R
Trade and other payables B 5 N E M EAE 24 386,529 474,799
Obligations under finance leases BMEMEETHEME 25 13,322 15,192
Bank loans and other borrowings R1T m&ﬁﬁmﬁﬁ 26 681,536 661,510
Amounts due to associates & ﬁ%ﬁ%/& WIE 22(a) 5,150 6,520
Amounts due to related parties FE1T A E?KIE 22(a) 764 6,098
Loan from a related party oK 8 B T M E K 22(b) = 83,780
Liability component of convertible bonds ~ AJ#2 AR &AM B ES D 27 211,810 =
Derivative component of convertible bonds A3 A% (&5 B $T4 T B EE5 27 133,344 -
Current taxation BNHARH IR 19(a) 19,645 9,662

I T e | e 1,452,100 1,257,561
_Net current (liabilities)/assets =~~~ # FRm (AW AE (165100 164,728

Total assets less current liabilities WEERTRBER 826,376 1,077,750
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FaEMBRKAR

At 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi)

R2016%F 12 831 H (AN BB )

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
12831 H 12 A31 H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR®T T ARETIT
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Obligations under finance leases MEHETHEE 25 11,336 23,090
Liability component of convertible bonds A48 [% (& %5 8 & (& 3017 27 - 166,488
Derivative component of convertible AR ESMITET AL D
bonds 27 - 130,989
Deferred government grants EREBR AT # B 28 7,332 3,000
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 18,668 323,567
NET ASSETS REE 807,708 754,183
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARREE
Share capital B& R 29 182,579 166,075
Reserves e 625,129 578,913
Total equity attributable to equity AATERRREGEER
shareholders of the Company 807,708 744,988
Non-controlling interests FEiERER - 9,195
TOTAL EQUITY R 807,708 754,183

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30

March 2017.

Yu Jianqiu
MEMN
Directors

EF

The notes on pages 94 to 201 form part of these financial statements.

R2017F 3 A30 AEEESHE RIRET) 3 -

Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

D

94 5

E
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BES
Directors

EE

201 A fY R AR B 15 Sk B — &P
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FeEgnR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BZ 2016 F 12 A 31 H1LFIE (UARHZK )

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RARERRRER.
Share- Retained
based profits/ Non-
Share Share  Exchange Capital ~ Statutory  payment Warrant (accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserves reserve reserve losses) Total interests
DRGAER AR REEFR/
B ROEE EXRE  EARE  iERE  OOREE  EREE  (RHER) &t FERER
(Note 29(d)  (Note 29(d) (Note29(d) (Note 29(d) (Note 29(d) (Note 29(d)
(Note 29(c]) (i)} (i) (i) (iv)) (v) (vi))
(W=E2o(d) (HiE2o(d) (M&E2o(d) (Hf&E29(d) (H&E29(d) (H&E29(d)
(HE29(c) (i) i (i) (iv)) W) (vi)
Note RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
i ARETL ARETn ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR®TR AR®TR ARET:R
Balance at 1 January 2016 20164 1 B 1 B A0&eh 166075 245136 2042 132,055 76,142 40,700 12,079 70750 744,988 9195 754183
Movements in 2016 R216ENEE
Loss for the year FREE = - - - - - - (3108200  (310,820) (198)  (311,618)
Other comprehensive E2ERE
income - - (17,468) - - - - - (17,468) - (17,468)
Total comprehensive income 2 Fl iz 4% - - (17,468) - - = - (3108200  (328,288) (798)  (329,086)
Issuance of orcinary shares ~ E{TEBR 2900 11,500 283,460 = = = = = - 299,960 - 299,960
Exercise of share option iERIE 29(c)i) 5,004 51,541 - - - - - - 56,545 - 56,545
Transfer of share option ERERERE
reserve 29(c)() - 17,855 - - - (17,855) - - - - -
Appropriation to statutory BB AT
resenve 29()(v) - - - - 4775 - - (4,775) - - -
Share-based compensation ~ JRDAERAOBE 290y - - - - - 37,406 - - 37,406 - 37,406
Share options lapsed BAMzERE 29(d)(v) - - - - - (571) - 571 - - -
Acquisition of non-controling B £ Bz
interest 14 - - - - - - - (2,903) (2,903) (8,397) (11,300)
As of 31 December 2016 201651231 R 182,579 602,992 (15,426) 132,055 80,917 59,680 12,079 (247,168) 807,708 - 807,708
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FeaEEnR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi)
B2 2016 F 12 7 31 HiFFJZ (UA ¥ )

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

f
Share-
based Non-
Share Share Exchange Capltal Statutory payment Warrant controling
capital premium Tesenve Tesenve resenves reserve ( interests
Ha ; i i
(Note 29(d) ~ (Note 29(d) (Note29(d) ~ (Note 29(d)
(Note 29(c) ( i) ) ) (vi)
(W29 (h3 o) (2o
(M 29(0) (i) 0 ()
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT T ARETT ARETT ARETT ARET L ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Balance at January 2015 R201551 A& E 166,075 204,842 16,322 132,055 76,142 10,365 - 568265 1,263,066 10287 1,273,303
Movements in 2015 ROIENED
Loss for the year FRFE - - - - - - - 499,045) (499,045) (4,091) (503,136)
Other comprehensive Eth2ENE
income - - (13,280) - - - - - (13,260 - (13,260
Total comprehensive income - - (13,280) - - - - (499,045 (512,329) (4091 (516,416)

Issuance of warrants BRI F 29(d)vi) - 186 - - - - 12,079 - 12265 - 12,265
Share-based compensation PUGEES

expenses HERR 29(d)) - - - - - 31874 - - 31874 - 31874
Share options vested but EEREEXNZ

lapsed Bk 20y - - - - - (15%9) - 1539 - - -
Dividend declared and paid REEEREIMZ

in respect of prior year Re 29(0) - (49,892) - - - - - - (49,892) - (49,89)
Non-controling interest WE-RNBAAELE

afsing from acquisition LHERER

of a subsidlary - - - - h - - - - 3049 3049
As of 31 December 2015 R2015E12A31 R 166,075 245,136 2,042 132,005 76,142 40,700 12,079 70,759 744,988 919 754,183

The notes on pages 94 to 201 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HelaRE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BE 2016 F 12 31 HIFFE (UARHZFK )

2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AR¥T R AR®ETT
Operating activities RESER
Cash (used in)/generated from operations & (FrA) FrisH 4 23(b) (62,826) 83,555
The People’s Republic of China (‘PRC”) D At#EARFLME ([FE])
Corporate Income Tax paid S 19(a) (7,013) (11,489)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KESEE (FTA) /FEERE
operating activities (69,839) 72,066
Investing activities RETE
Payment for the purchase of property, BEBEWE  BEMKRENTE
plant and equipment 12 (40,235) (108,863)
Payment for lease prepayments YHHEEENR 13 - (16,256)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant HEME - WEREH
and equipment FriS 5118 12 - 1
Cash (outflow)/inflow arising on WEHBARELENR S
acquisitions of subsidiaries (net of cash G,/ A (5 Al B
and cash equivalents acquired) MRS MRS EEEER) (12,800) 23
Payment for investment in associates MIEEBERT 2 NR 15 = (134,929)
Interest received B FILE 6(a) 22,616 1,276
Decrease in pledged deposits B SR 17 2,082 699
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFAZERS (28,337) (258,049)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HeNanER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi)
EE 2016 F 12 A 31 HILFE (AN R#EZ i)

2016 2015
2016 20154
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AR® T ARET T
Financing activities Eﬂ{ﬁ)’éiﬁ
Proceeds from new bank loans and FTIIRITE R R E M SR
other borrowings ﬁm%?k 26 429,450 287,900
Repayment of bank loans and other BREBRITERREAMES
borrowings 26 (409,424) (817,060)
Repayment of sale and leaseback AR ERMEREZHE
arrangement 25 (13,810) (14,216)
Proceeds from advances from local b5 B 2R TS R
governments 1,000 78,457
Repayment of advances from local B3& b 7 BUT AR
governments (720) (45,802)
Increase in pledged deposits [REEETIES 6Pl 17 (3,602) (3,800)
Interest paid B F B (106,068) (93,213)
Dividend paid BAIEE 29(b) - (49,892)
Advance from related parties KB R T B 5,100 11,280
Proceeds from loan from a related party 3K 5 — % a8 5 & X
O] 68,975 79,990
Repayment of loan to a related party m—Z AT ERER (149,765) -
Issuance of warrants IR 29(a) - 186
Net proceeds from issuance of BITAI R RE S 2 FTiS5R0E
convertible bonds @%E 27 - 187,814
Net proceeds from issue of BT LR 2 TSR IRF R
ordinary shares 29(c)(i) 299,960 -
Proceeds from exercise of share option 1TEBIRHE 2 FriE R IE 29(c)(ii) 56,545 -
Net cash generated from financing RETEREFRS
activities 177,641 121,644
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReREEESEEEW
and cash equivalents BN GRAD) 79,465 (64,339)
Cash and cash equivalents at R1B1ENEBEERES
1 January £EEAE 82,559 145,765
Effect of foreign exchange rate ERgEE
changes 2,118 1,133
Cash and cash equivalents at R12A3MENEER
31 December HEZEEEHR 23(a) 164,142 82,559
The notes on pages 94 to 201 form part of these financial statements. FMBEEF 201 BRI FEEK I SR A — 30
S o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited (“the Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 22 February 2013. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”)
are principally engaged in the manufacturing, sales and trading of
copper, aluminium and related products. The shares of the
Company have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) since 21
February 2014.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs), which collective term includes
all applicable individual International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (IASs) and
Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the group. Note 2(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b)

2 FESHBE®)
FRPEREEE

The Group incurred a net loss of RMB311,618,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2016 and, as of that date, the
Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB16,510,000. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had
cash and cash equivalents of RMB164,142,000 and pledged
deposits of RMB55,926,000. As at that date, the Group had
convertible bonds with the principal amount of
USD32,610,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB226,216,000) that would mature on 13 April 2017 (note
27) and overdue entrusted loans of RMB299,116,000 (note
26). The overdue entrusted loans of RMB299,116,000
constituted a cross breach of loan covenants of other
interest bearing borrowings totalled RMB 289,450,000,
comprising entrusted loans of RMB129,450,000 and other
bank loans of RMB160,000,000, all of which are recorded as
current liabilities. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concemn.

The Directors have made an assessment on the liquidity
position of the Group as to whether the Group is able to
continue as a going concern for at least the next twelve
months from the end of the reporting period and to meet its
obligations, as and when they fall due. Certain measures
have been and are being taken to manage its liquidity needs
and to improve the liquidity position which include the
following:

i. the Group is actively discussing with the convertible
bonds holder to transfer 50% of the principal sum of
the convertible bonds into loan; and to convert the
remaining 50% of the principal sum of the convertible
bonds to ordinary shares of the Company;

ii. as announced in the Group’s announcement dated 24
November 2016, the Group is in negotiation with an
investor in relation to a possible subscription for
convertible bonds with a principal amount of HKD200
million. The negotiation is still in progress as at the date
when these consolidated financial statements were
authorised for issue;

AEBHZE2016F12 A1 HILF
EiSEIEFEARK 311,618,000
L MREZAB  AEBERBEE
BiBE R EE AR 16,510,000
T e N2016F 12 A31H » N&EE
BERSMRESEBEBEBEARE
164,142,000 T X EEHBERAR
¥ 55,926,000 ° Rz H » AEE
A A4 E 432,610,000 3% 7T (18
BN AR 226,216,000 7T ) &) A]
HRGE AR 2017 54 513 H B H
(Fiz¥27) - WHEBBBEZTERA
R #299,116,000 7T ( i 7£26) °
BZ Tt E A R 299,116,000 7T
HMEMFEERELXARE
289,450,000 L (BIEZAERAR
129,450,000 7T & H #0188 17 B X
A R #160,000,0007C * FT B #Z %
RBEHERBDEBEAR)BREX
RHEMRZNEY - ZFBNERBPF
EEATHERZ  AJgeEAEE
RSB E B DR E RS -

EEEERAEENRBE SR
A AR ERE BN R E IR &
TRED T EARFERLE REN
HEIMER - AEED RN AR
BETHEANEEERBELER
RBZERBEMRN - ZFERER
THIBIE

NGRS IE AR 5 B A A (R 250
B AR A i & 55 50%
MASBEERER « Mffr 8
P& & 5 | 82 50% &Y X & FH ¥
BRARRAE B

i. WMAAFIBHIA2016F 11 A
ARMNHAEM - AR A
FE—FIEER A LRER
% 78 /200,000,000 7% 7T &9 7]
MR EHEITHAH o RZELR
U BHmRERETERER
HPUDTEEITH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHBE®)

(Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b) EEMBEBRROEEE)

(Continued)

ii. the entrusting party of the entrusted loans of
RMB299,116,000 has confirmed that the entrusted
loans would not be repayable because the entrusting
party is in negotiation with the Group on a debt equity
arrangement to transfer the debt of one of the Group’s
subsidiaries, Mianyang Tongxin Copper Co., Ltd. into
equity interest of the Company; and

iv.  the Group maintains a strong relationship with its
bankers and entrusting party. None of the Group’s
bankers have demanded the Group for early loan
repayment. Subsequent to 31 December 2016, the
Group is able to refinance the borrowings when they
fell due through its existing bankers. In addition, the
entrusting party of the entrusted loans of
RMB129,450,000 as at 31 December 2016 has
confirmed to waive the Group’s obligations arising
from the breach of loan covenants.

The Directors are satisfied that if the above measures are
successful the Group will be able to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the next twelve
months from the end of the reporting period. Accordingly,
the Directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 on a going concern basis. The
consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments relating to the carrying amount and
reclassification of assets and liabilities that might be
necessary should the Group be unable to continue as a
going concern.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 comprise the Group and the Group’s
interest in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except for
derivative financial instruments (see note 2(g)) that are stated
at their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 & it #Z5) -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 3.

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group. None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

RA 35 88 R P 5E

U BB E)

2 FESHBE®

(b)

(c)

(d)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHBE®)

(Continued)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (d MEARIRIFEERERE)
(Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flow and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and
other contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position in accordance with notes 2(0), (p), or (q)
depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 & it #Z5) -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate (see note 2(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position (see note
34), an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(k(ii), unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including 2(k)(ii) participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date
fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see notes 2(k(ii). Any acquisition-
date excess over cost, the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

RA 35 88 R P 5E

U BB E)

2 FESHBE®
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTBE®
(Continued)
(e) Associates (Continued) (e) H&EQT(E)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the BAEERBE QAR DL EIEREER
associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and BEREZSE REBR ISR
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the 2T WHTBERBINGE -
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive AREBBBITEAFRHEST =X
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For REEEHF L NFZBBRIBKRAIN - B
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of I NEEER AL BERS AR
the investment under the equity method together with the BREZHRAME  UREE FEK
Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part of AREBEBENRKREFE LY
the Group’s net investment in the associate. ZREARERS BYE o

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions REBREBERNRBIGEEZ
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the REINBZ  HIEAEBREIRE
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where FRT R 2 IR RE 8 WA E
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the BEEBATNCEZEELRBE "
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised A2 = RIS IE s
immediately in profit or loss. R o

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant MEABEEMBAMES @ B ANERY
influence over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal BME N THAEREAXE HEE -
of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or Aleif HERZWIRE T 2 2 5hkE
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained mAER - MATEE 2 WamskEIERn
in that former investee at the date when significant influence BEANER EAXEEAFENS
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded ARAIHKRE T RE 2 Ef#Em
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset. T R EER  BHZEEIIER

RRaEREMEER 2 A FE -

In the Company’s statement of financial position (see note AR R Z B kR (M 5E34)
34), investments in associates are stated at cost less RN /N o = 8- N B
impairment losses (see note 2(k(ii)), unless classified as held EEEHE (RWE20)i) © BRIER
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as PDHEAEBELE (ST ADE AR
held for sale). EL SR mEAR) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method as at the acquisition date — i.e. when

(9)

control is transferred to the Group.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the
issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group incurs in
connection with a business combination are expensed as
incurred.

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or group of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(Kk)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value. At the end of reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, except where the
derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or hedge
the net investment in a foreign operation, in which case
recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the
nature of the item being hedged.

2 FESHBE®

(f

(9)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

2(K)(i).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve
to retained profits and is not reclassified to profit and loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:
— Buildings The shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than
20 years after the date

of completion

— Plant and machinery 5to 10 years
— Furniture, fittings
and equipment

3to 10 years

— Motor vehicles 4 to 10 years
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on
a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

@)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and equipment pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(k)(ii). The cost of self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on
which they are located, and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads and borrowing costs (see note 2(x)).
Capitalisation of these costs cease and the construction in
progress is transferred to property, plant and equipment
when the asset is substantially ready for its intended use.

No depreciation is provided in respect of the construction in
progress until it is substantially completed and ready for its
intended use.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made
based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal
form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

—  property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on a
property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease; and
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

(Continued)

— land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building
situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance
lease, unless the building is also clearly held
under an operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the Group, or
taken over from the previous lessee.
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(ii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments of such assets are
recognised as property, plant and equipment and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are
recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out
in note 2(h). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in
note 2(k)(ii). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period
of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(1)
(iii)
(iv)

Leased assets (Continued)

Sales and leaseback arrangement resulting in
finance lease

A sales and leaseback arrangement which results in a
finance lease is a means whereby the lessor provides
finance to the lessee with the asset as security. To
reflect the substance of the transaction, any excess of
sales proceeds over the carrying amount of the asset,
or any deficit of sales proceeds lower than the carrying
amount of the asset, is deferred and amortised as an
adjustment to the depreciation of the asset.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal installments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property is
classified as an investment property or is held for
development for sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(k) Impairment of assets

2 FESHBE®
(k) BERE

() Impairment of investments in debt and equity (i) REERBREABFZFZBRERH
securities and other receivables 1 FE W R IE R (E

Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-
for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and.

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below
its cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

@

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in associates accounted for
under the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements (see note 2(e)), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with note 2(k)(ii).
The impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in accordance
with note 2(k)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset where the effect
of discounting is material. Impairment losses for
equity securities carried at cost are not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets carried at amortised
cost share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

@

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity

securities and other receivables (Continued)
If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result
in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except in
the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held under an operating lease;

— intangible assets;

—  goodwill; and
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(1)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)
— investments in subsidiaries, associates in the
Company’s statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount of goodwill is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of time
value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2 FESHBE®

(Continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (Continued) (k) EERMEE)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued) (i) HtEENBREE)
—  Reversals of impairment losses —  BRREEEE
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an MEEUIBOEEM
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a s WHARET A YKE
favourable change in the estimates used to SENMEERENE
determine the recoverable amount. An g RIEEREESE-
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not BENREEETSE
reversed. [g] o
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the BEEBERERERRE
asset’s carrying amount that would have been EBRATFEIWRERA
determined had no impairment loss been BEEEREETHNE
recognised in prior years. Reversals of EREE - REBER
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in O R O ) F E &t
the year in which the reversals are recognised. Az o
(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment (i) PEABIHERERRE
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on BIEEBHAEZFMAR AR
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group EEETRA REBBEIZR
is required to prepare an interim financial report in BIEEEReERFE345H
compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in B FSRE - AFEERE E N
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At BB meirh BB RS s - IR
the end of the interim period, the Group applies the HRHRAOK - ANEEfER ZRENR
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal = RERR N B o) £ BI| B 7E BA R
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see FEREREER (BIFE2)0)
notes 2(K)(i) and (ii)). R (i) °
() Warrant granted to suppliers ) BFHERMNZRER

Warrant issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or service received,

PR an Bk AR 5 T B 1T RO SR AR
ERDWERIRBE A FER

unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which £ BRIFZAFERED SFHA
case the goods or services received are measured by 2 EZBEATEWERSRES

ZERERBEZOQFERE -
EAKBENSERNEYFHIRH
RFE - EWE M RBH A FE
R MR - M m (RERERE R
) SR BATIEI - BRIFE K
ERIMBTRERERREE -

reference to the fair value of the warrants granted. The fair
values of the goods or services received are recognised as
expenses, with a corresponding increase in equity (warrant
reserve), when the Group obtains the goods or when the
counterparties render services, unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(m) Inventories

(n)

(o)

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(k)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using an effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHBE®)

(Continued)

(p) Trade and other payables P EBESZRHMESRKE
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. B NEMEMTENSIEATE
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in TR o BRARIRMIZE 2(0)() 5T 2 M0 81 75
accordance with note 2(u)(i), trade and other payables are EREBEIN BHLREMERATIE
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of HiZ B3 # 85K A% B - BRIERLIR
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are W BN TEK - EZRER TR
stated at cost. PR 7RI B

(d) Convertible bonds () "TERES
() Convertible bonds that contain an equity (i) EEsEZIINTERRES

component

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity
share capital at the option of the holder, where the
number of shares that would be issued on conversion
and the value of the consideration that would be
received at that time do not vary, are accounted for as
compound financial instruments which contain both a
liability component and an equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible bonds is measured as the present value of
the future interest and principal payments, discounted
at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of
initial recognition to similar liabilities that do not have a
conversion option. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the liability component is
recognised as the equity component. Transaction
costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial
instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of
proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
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A - BT IR BE A
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Aﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁlf DN
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ﬁ?"ﬁi—ﬂfﬁ‘@/—\ﬁﬁﬁilﬂﬂ’]?&%
A RIZRE EMERT D
LSRR DB FI#ETTH
fig o

fé%%ﬁ/ BE 12 DA 3 55 pX AN 5

amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in BE - RNIBREZNBEZISF
profit or loss on the liability component is calculated EYH  EHATEMNERE

using the effective interest method. The equity
component is recognised in the capital reserve until
either the bonds are converted or redeemed.

If the bonds are converted, the capital reserve,
together with the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion, is transferred to
share capital and share premium as consideration for
the shares issued. If the bonds are redeemed, the
capital reserve is released directly to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(q) Convertible bonds (Continued)

(i)

Other convertible bonds
Convertible bonds which do not contain an equity
component are accounted for as follows:

At initial recognition the derivative component of the
convertible bonds is measured at fair value and
presented as part of derivative financial instruments
(see note 2(g)). Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the derivative component
is recognised as the liability component. Transaction
costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bond
are allocated to the liability and derivative components
in proportion to the allocation of proceeds. The portion
of the transaction costs relating to the liability
component is recognised initially as part of the liability.
The portion relating to the derivative component is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The derivative component is subsequently remeasured
in accordance with note 2(g). The liability component is
subsequently carried at amortised cost. The interest
expense recognised in profit or loss on the liability
component is calculated using the effective interest
method.

If the bonds are converted, the carrying amounts of the
derivative and liability components are transferred to
share capital and share premium as consideration for
the shares issued. If the bonds are redeemed, any
difference between the amount paid and the carrying
amounts of both components is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share-based payment reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date using the
Binomial Option Pricing Model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the options, the total estimated fair value of the options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

(t)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(i) Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based payment
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the share-based payment reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the share-
based payment reserve until either the option is expires
(when it is released directly to share premium or the
option expires when it is related directly to retained
profits).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purpose, the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided that they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of
taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTHBE®w)
(Continued)
(t) Income tax (Continued) ) FEH#E)
Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of B D IRFTEANSEINTEREE
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related AT NBEREH B ERER -

dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and BVERARR B A MR IE R B R R H

movements therein, are presented separately from each BEEHSETEERAETTE

other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against o HARNRIAER B ETE R

current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred HITRER| LABNEAFL 1B & EE HK S BN ER

tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally MEaE  TASE T InEE

enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current T RIBDHAR 18 & 7 AT 45 85 R HA Y

tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met: HEE URELERIEEER K

RERIAB(E -

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the — WARMHREEEHAE &K
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net UNSIEFNCE R 87 on R
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability . AR EENSE
simultaneously; or ZBE

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they — (NAERLEHRBEEENLBE M
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation HEEENBERR —FHIEHK
authority on either: ST A —IBRU B TS

BAER :

—  the same taxable entity; or — [FE—ERUEE %

— different taxable entities, which, in each future — TEBEZRHRTE It
period in which significant amounts of deferred EERAIEREEE
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled FEHAERBEELERIES
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax EEEEENAREIEL
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a T8 & E 0] LA B /9 ER
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously. BN ZFEEEER

BIEAM IR & B M B (B BT
HHERE  KFARE
RuBENBEZAE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHBE®)

(Continued)

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and u BEBREHNHBER BERD
contingent liabilities REE
() Financial guarantees issued () CRHNTHER

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. The fair value
of financial guarantees issued at the time of issuance is
determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by
reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing
the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees
not been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 2(u)(iii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (i)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHBE®)

(Continued)
(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and u BEBREHNHBER BERD
contingent liabilities (Continued) REEBE)
(i) Contingent liabilities assumed in business (i) REXSHIRENIAEE
combinations
Contingent liabilities assumed in a business REBEHFRAENSAREE
combination which are present obligations at the date REBHRABREEE 914
of acquisition are initially recognised at fair value, BAFERER  HERTREAF
provided the fair value can be reliably measured. After EEEIEES: R AN -]
their initial recognition at fair value, such contingent VEER%E - BESAREER
liabilities are recognised at the higher of the amount NS EEINSERRTE
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation (fwi@ 4 ) BLAR R B &% 2(u) (i) AT
where appropriate, and the amount that would be EETM&ENRREER - K
determined in accordance with note 2(uj(iii). Contingent BEA] SEHb AT E A E IR
liabilities assumed in a business combination that BHWIFR BB ENNERE
cannot be reliably fair valued or were not present PR EIER SR B EIRIEM
obligations at the date of acquisition are disclosed in 2(u)(ii) FIAIEEE -
accordance with note 2(u(iii).
(iiy Other provisions and contingent liabilities (i) HtBERIREE

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(v) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable.

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as
follows:

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards
of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

(i) Contract manufacturing income
Contract manufacturing income is recognised when
the contract manufacturing services are rendered.

(iii) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 & it #Z5) -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(v)
(iv)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of
financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful
life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense. An unconditional government grant is
recognised in profit or loss as other revenue when the
grant becomes receivable, other government grants
are recognised in the balance sheet initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received and
that the Group will comply with the conditions attached
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss
over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

(w) Translation of foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss, except those arising

from

foreign currency borrowings used to hedge a net

investment in a foreign operation which are recognised in

other

comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESFHBE@®

(Continued)

(w) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued) (w) BEIEEE)
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in NONERE SR BRI EE
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated ENEBENERARZSBHERN
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction GNESTE R E o I A B BEAY LA
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in SNEE A EIFEMEERBETER
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated Rt EAFEE A& B NEIE &
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair BE o

value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Renminbi BINEREETIRENZ 5 B H
at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange AN ERAENERBE A
rates ruling at the dates of transactions. Statement of ARE - BN KRER (BHED
financial position items, including goodwill, are translated into E)HliZmEHRZKMERSBRE
Renminbi at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of BARE - FTEAMER Z580NE
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are b2 E U S P RERR - W08 S A E
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated BIENEENZEST -

separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of P EFINERR  EZFINER
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is BENAFEN =8N ERALEIE
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or EREERETOEEER -

loss on disposal is recognised.

(x) Borrowing costs x) EERE
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the g BEsyEESRER S AE
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which HEBRTERGBRREENEENERE
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for FEGE BB TH1E A% A E W R AN
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of —ZD FLAE AL o HfbEE KA
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period TR EEEHRES -

in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a EERAREEESRS  ELEE
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset ERANMETEEEERERTA
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and B ERNUEEE TERREMS
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its B - fEEBEBREENKAL
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of —ZD o EEKANMERLRFES
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially EREEEHERTRELERN
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for BB KB D sE B sk Te Ak
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete. T2 NEHETT o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESFHBE@®
(Continued)
(y) Related parties (y) BIEAL
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is (@ HFEUATERT  EALSHR

related to the Group if that person: HREKBEAEEAS M

()  has control or joint control over the Group; ()  AI¥EHIgk R E SIS

= ;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEBEFEAFZE

7758k

(i is a member of the key management personnel (iy "RASZEEHIAEESGA
of the Group or the Group’s parent. RIMEBEE ABMHK

/E\ o
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (o) HEUTERBERT  KEHEH
conditions applies: REEHF @

() The entity and the Group are members of the () %EBERASEHER
same group (which means that each parent, —S£BMRKE AR (BN
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the NE > WBAR KRR
others). MEBARSEHEAEME

aE)

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy RXERBES—EEOH
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a BEREINAERAR(HS
member of a group of which the other entity is a —EBAEKBEANTINE
member). EEHKE QR R B E

NEIHAZERA]) e

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MREEHER-—F=
party. Pl kNI

(v)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy XERBEE=7EEN
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. AERNAMS —E8BA

RHEZTEROHE
NS

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for v ZEBEECRHERER
the benefit of employees of either the Group or TAREENERNEERE
an entity related to the Group. MBI ERBHEB MR

et al o

(v  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a V) ZEBX@BEFE

person identified in (a). B9 A b ok R o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTBE®
(Continued)
(y) Related parties (Continued) vy BEAL#E)
(o)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following b) TEATEMANBERT  HXEFES

conditions applies: (Continued) RNEEGME : (8)

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (Vi) TE(@)) B FT IR E A
influence over the entity or is a member of the THZEREEATE
key management personnel of the entity (or of a 7 SHZATRZER
parent of the entity). (ZRZEBHNERA)

MEBREEABMKE -

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a Group of which it (vii) ZEBXIEMBEEN
is a part, provides key management personnel ERIKERRIMASE
services to the Group, or to the Group’s parent. BN E I RS E/NITE T3

TEEEABRS -

Close members of the family of a person are those family HARGOBEREKEATHTES
members who may be expected to influence, or be SRBHELEZELATHZEZ
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity. ZANTHENREKE -

(z2 Segment reporting (2) 2EBHE
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item &S B MR B TS TR NPT ER SR
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the EOEIBERSEE I ER A ASE
financial statements provided regularly to the Group’s most B fR{THEEABREUZAK
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating EEERNMMIBRIGETERSAE
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s RRIRT(EO T BHRFB AR -
lines of business and geographical locations.
Individually material operating segments are not aggregated M EHREMS @ ERERAHKLE
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have DEWX TN TFNEE  BIEFZEDT
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of BEBEHEUEERN - ARFLE R &
the nature of products and services, the nature of production REMHE - AERFEE - BPE
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods AlekfESE « A SHE mE iR AR
used to distribute the products or provide the services, and B A A MESIRENMEE 5 EME
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating Ll B2 E R o MEFASZ A
segments which are not individually material may be DEBIEME  WIEERE AR KL
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria. DEA] FIAEHE -

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3 gEEtFIETRMAE

ESTIMATES

(@) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (a) fAFFTFEEMENEERR
Note 33 contains information about the assumptions and MzE33&H BN ZELm T AN
their risk factors relating to the fair value of financial FEMEREEREEEZHEER -
instruments.

(b) Critical accounting judgements in applying the b) REAXEBEHEHRRFZE
Group’s financial statements =gt HE
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, RERAREBSFRER  EEE
management has made the following accounting VEH T o &5t -
judgements:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)
(b) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s financial statements (Continued)

@

Impairment

Notes 16 and 33(a) contain information about the
assumptions and risk factors relating to the impairment
of goodwill and trade debtors. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

In considering the impairment losses that may be
required for certain assets of the Group, the
recoverable amount of the asset needs to be
determined. The recoverable amount is the greater of
its fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. In
determining the fair value less cost of disposal, the
Group engaged third party valuation specialists to
assess the fair value and estimated the costs of
disposal of the assets based on an internal
assessment. In determining the value in use, expected
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to
its present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to items such as level of revenue and amount
of operating costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is a
reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of items
such as revenue and operating costs.

Impairment losses for doubtful debts are assessed and
provided based on the regular review of ageing
analysis and evaluation of collectability by the
management. A considerable level of judgement is
exercised by the management when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each
individual customer.

Recoverability of advance payments to suppers are
assessed based on the regular review and ageing
analysis and past histories of the supply of goods to
the Group of each supplier. A considerable level of
judgement is exercised by the management when
assessing the credit worthiness of each supplier.

3 BItHERMEF @)

b) RERAEEHBERREZE
ESRHEE)

(i)

WA

B 5 16 & 33(a) & 5 B i i 2
N E 5 REFURER R M AR
EERER o AT AbET T
FEHENEMESHR

ERAREETEEMNRER
AHERREREER  TEET
ZEEEMNAREIESE - ATl
O & FE = A T ER L & KA R
ERBEEMEPZRRE - B
BERAFEBLENA - K&
BREF=HEZERFEE
ENATE  WERREFE
At EENRERA - £EE
EREER  BIREHEEE
FISMRERESRMIRNELR
B ERFREMERRKRF
K EKRAFRBEHERH
o AEBEER—YIRNEE
£ EERRE e S B
WEF  BRERREHZEXER
LERAEFRB ZAEMAX
Fr 2 BB R PrAE L 2 1h
At e

REREBERDREEREE
HI BRI AT R AT E A2
AP A SR A R R AT R A
EEEMHERERNEFPNER
B MR WBRRDEET - B1EHD
HEIRE A -

(7] £44 7 B R A AT M [ 1
REREH - RO R BH]
ERAAREHEE RGBT
FCECETTRHA - EEBNFHE
BEHEBNEEERELRE
RERY A -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)
(b) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s financial statements (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of completion and
distribution expenses. These estimates are based on
the current market condition and historical experience
of selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles or changes in
market conditions. Management reassesses these
estimations at the balance sheet date to ensure
inventories are shown at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual value. Management reviews the estimated
useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful lives of the
assets are based on the Group’s historical experience
with similar assets and taking into account anticipated
technological changes. The depreciation expense for
future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
Management carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of these transactions is reconsidered
periodically by taking into account all changes in tax
legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
deductible temporary differences. As deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available,
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets, if any, are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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3 BItHERMEF @)

b) RERAEEHBERREZE
ESRHEE)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

FEWERFE

FEA ARG EER
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B FEE - ARRT
&R AR A] B3R FE A I
EEZ5 -

e

WE  BEMREBREEZE
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AR SRR E SRR
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T A 2 A 4 HA DA E SE FE (AR
BEHABARNITERS B
B BEMAERFHIAS
EREBEELUEENBTERYL
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BEMTHREERZE AlE
FER R AT 9T & P S 7T 3

B o
=

Fria%t

BEMSHEBHEIREETR
SARFISEIR MR - 12
EBREFHZIOBBELE -
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ETHETEEEBRIINH
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BB o EEFIEE E R A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sales of
copper and related products, sales of aluminium products, and
provision of contract manufacturing services in the PRC.

Revenue represents the sales value of goods sold to customers
less returns, discounts, and value added taxes and other sales tax,
and contract manufacturing income which is analysed as follows:

Sales from trading of electrolytic copper ~ ERIAE 54 (Hfsh)

EXE
AEENTBEBRETAEERKE
ARANER - HEEEQMRRARY
R -

EERERETEFPNERMNIEEEER
BE - II0 - RERMEAMHER - LR
AN

2016 2015
2016 £

20154
RMB’000
AREETIT

RMB’000
AR®T T

(Note) 3,522,236 584,108
Sales of recycled copper products SHEBEIRER 1,367,891 1,078,879

Sales of power transmission and SHE XA EE
distribution cables 3,099 70,616
Sales of communication cables HEREEE 35,832 29,398
Sales of scrap materials SHEBEZEME 447 15,755
Sales of aluminium products & SR E M 3,055 10,834
Contract manufacturing income A RIREW A 1,065 1,160
4,933,625 1,790,750

Note:  The Group has entered into trading activities of electrolytic copper beginning
in 2015 whereas the Group is considered the principal of the transactions as
it controls the electrolytic copper before they are sold to the customers. The
gross inflows of the trading activities are therefore recognised as revenue.

Two customers (2015: two customers) of the Group represents
more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31
December 2016. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the
revenue from these two major customers (2015: two major
customers) amounted to RMB1,544,892,000 (2015:
RMB738,862,000). Further details of concentrations of credit risk
arising from customers are set out in note 33(a).

Mz : AKBEB2015FEHREFRINNEHEE -
BN SR [ A () 35 P 3 5 BB AR S Al 122 ) s
o MARERERAZERINEBELE
A o RIBE 505 B OB F 25 4007 A B LA
TERHN ©

HZE2016F12A31HILFE - MK (2015
F W) AEBREPNEXEBHAEER
B EZEFE10% A E o HE2016F12 A
31RLEFE  REZMBETEERF (2015
F WMAETERFP)MNEEBEAARE
1,544,892,0007C(20154F : A R ¥
738,862,0007T) - BB ZEEF K
EEETRBANE —FHBHAWE
33(a) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by business operations. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has presented the following four reportable segments,
namely recycled copper products segment, power transmission
and distribution cables segment, communication cables segment
and aluminium products segment as at 31 December 2016.

(i) Recycled copper products segment: use of scrap copper
and electrolytic copper for the manufacturing of recycled
copper products;

(i) Power transmission and distribution cables segment:
manufacturing sales of power transmission and distribution
cables;

(i) Communication cables segment: manufacturing and sales of
communication cables; and

(iv)  Aluminium products segment: sales of aluminium products.

(@) Segment results
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most
senior executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment loss is “loss after
taxation”. To arrive at reportable segment loss, the Group’s
loss is further adjusted for items not specially attributed to
individual segments, such as head office or corporate
administrative costs.

A measurement of segment assets and liabilities is not
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management and accordingly, no segment assets or
liabilities information is presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a)

Segment results (Continued)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the year ended 31 December
2016 and 2015 is set out below:

5 oEHE®

DEEE(E)
NEEPE E 2016 F K 2015F 12
A31BIEFENE RS BN ES
HRRAEBNMEFAEESESR
THEREMN @S »HERET)
I

(a)

Power
Recycled  transmission
copper anddistribution Communication Aluminium
products cables cables products Total
BEWER PREE BEES HEM @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT NG S ARBTT ARETR
Revenue from external customers & BSMEFE B #I % 4,891,639 3,099 35,832 3,055 4,933,625
Inter-segment revenue SEE s E 10,942 222 - - 11,164
Reportable segment revenue  AR&E S Bk 4,902,581 3,321 35,832 3,055 4,944,789
Reportable segment loss AREHTER (59,629) (49,814) (732) (484) (110,659)
Interest income MEHA 22,558 12 213 - 22,843
Finance costs R A 64,123 2,616 1,876 - 68,615
Depreciation and amortisation R E K &4
for the year 24,433 8,322 3,292 86 36,133
VAT refunds, government grants SR EH R EFFEE
and subsidies R 141,245 13,155 1,791 - 156,191
Impairment loss of trade debtors B 3B R ENEE
and bills receivable REEE 102,932 48,821 1,375 - 153,128
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 5 & it 8IZ5) -

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a)

Segment results (Continued)

UAEBSE)

5 DE®E )
(a)

DEBRAE(E)

Power
Recycled transmission
copper and distfoution  Communication Aluminium
products cables cables products Total
BEHER FREE | BEM @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFL ARBTL ARBFIL ARBTL ARBTT
Revenue from external customers R E4MFZE Pl 1,679,878 70,616 29,422 10,834 1,790,750
Inter-segment revenue N e 137,478 44 726 - 138,645
Reportable segment revenue W44 MU 1,817,356 71,057 30,148 10,834 1,929,395
Reportable segment (loss)/profit ~ FJREH 2 (E518) /% A (296,031) (18,506) (26,873) 101 (341,309)
Interest income FIEKA 716 146 405 - 1,267
Finance costs BB A 65,346 4,181 2,587 1 72,065
Depreciation and amortisation ~ FRHE K
for the year 29,921 10,654 2,364 15 42,954
VAT refunds, govemment grants (&7 B5 B HU B
and subsidies R 134,728 666 298 - 135,692
Impairment loss of goodwill HERESE 16,081 - - - 16,081
Impairment loss of property, ¥ BEREE
plant and equipment ZREBE 54,313 - - - 54,313
Impairment loss of trade debtors & 585 R EINE1E
and bills receivable ZREER 80,374 14,907 17,549 - 112,830
Warrant expenses RIREERFAS 12,079 - - - 12,079
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5 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue
and profit or loss

(c)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

DERERE (&)
(b) TAI$RE D BURFERISIHEHEEE

2016 2015
2016 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREETIT
Revenue g
Reportable segment revenue EE s 4,944,789 1,929,395
Elimination of inter-segment revenue  ¥J84 % ZBR U ES (11,164) (138,645)
Consolidated revenue (see note 4) e (REEE4) 4,933,625 1,790,750
Loss BB
Reportable segment loss derived from 2K B REEIMEEFEH)
the Group’s external customers AIERE o SRR (110,659) (341,309)
Unallocated head office and ROMBMER K
corporate expenses PEME (202,752) (162,855)
Share of profit of associates FE(HEE N AR T 1,793 1,028
Consolidated loss for the year FREEEER (311,618) (503,136)

Geographic information

The Group carried out its business operations in the PRC,
thus no separate geographical segment analysis based on
the location of assets and the revenue and loss are

presented.

(c) WEEHHR
AEENRPRHLEEER  Ftir &
EHIREE M WS E B AT E 2
DHE AR D EL DT ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 5 & it 8IZ5) -

UAEBSE)

6 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET LOSS

Other revenue

(a)

6

Hitlhs Rk HibFEE
(a)

H s

2016 2015
2016 £F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
VAT refunds REBRD

— Comprehensive utilisation of — HREMAER(BHEEG)
resources (note (i) 40,098 96,681
Government grants (note (ii)) BT 8 B (B 5 (i) 48,576 20,141
Government subsidies (note (iii)) R RN (B & (i) 67,517 18,870
Interest income F B WA 22,953 1,276
179,144 136,968

(i

(i)

The Group is entitled to government grants for refunds of 30% for the
year ended 31 December 2016 of the net VAT paid/payable.

The Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation jointly
issued a notice concerning the “Catalogue on Products and Labour
Services relating to Comprehensive Utilisation of Resources Eligible for
Concessions of Value-added Tax” (Cai Shui [2015] (No. 78)) (the “New
VAT Policy”) on 12 June 2015, which replaced, amongst others, Cai
Shui [2011] No. 115 (the “Former VAT Policy”)). Under the Former VAT
Policy, certain subsidiaries of the Company are entitled to government
grants for refunds of 50% of the net VAT paid/payable. The New VAT
Policy took effect on 1 July 2015. According to the New VAT Policy,
the applicable VAT refund for such subsidiaries are reduced from 50%
to 30%.

The amounts represent local government grants received by operating
subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC for the purpose of providing
immediate financial support to those subsidiaries for general operating
use with no future related costs. No specific conditions are required to
meet in connection with the grants.

In 2016, the Group was granted unconditional government subsidies
of RMB67,517,000 (2015: RMB18,870,000) from Youxian District
Finance Bureau, Mianyang City, Sichuan Province. The subsidies were
received through Sichuan Baohe Fushan Resources Recycling
Development Co., Ltd. (“Baoche Fushan”), an associate of the Group.
Baohe Fushan is principally engaged in the operation and the
development of an industrial park in Mianyang City, Sichuan Province,
where most of the Group’s subsidiaries are located.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

6 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET LOSS 6 HMWFIREMBEEZ)
(Continued)
(b) Other net loss (b) HMFEEE)

2016 2015
2016 £ 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREET T

Net (loss)/gain on copper futures HEE S KA EI1ERF

contracts upon settlement (E518),Wa (28) 6,111
Net foreign exchange loss TRIE H E 18 (9,190) (34)
Net loss on sale of property, HEWE - BEMZEN

plant and equipment SFEE (22) (116)
Change in fair value of derivative ARREFHITET A HH

component of convertible N EEE (M 27)

bonds (note 27) 6,633 (77,091)
Impairment loss of goodwill (note 16)  F52 Z SFiEEE (FI:X16) = (16,081)
Impairment loss of property, Wz - BEREREZ

plant and equipment (note 12) BEEE(FE12) = (54,313)
Impairment loss of interest in R—EEE R alER 2 RE

an associate (note 15) fE18 (f13E15) (100,315) -
Share of profit of associates FEMREE R ElE T 1,793 1,028
Reversal of provision for bad debt B ol BR B S (B sE21(d))

(note 21(dl) 28,574 -
Impairment loss of trade debtors and  Z SRR M EWEZ1E 2

bills receivable (note 21(d)) BEREE (FFE21(d) (153,128) (112,830)
Others Hitb (1,593) (1,597)

(227,276) (254,923)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 5 & it 8IZ5) -

7 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging:

(a) Finance costs (a)

Interest on bank loans and other

UAEBSE)

7 BABE

FRATETIB TR A T S IHESE

2016
2016 £

RMB’000
AR®T T

RITER R EAEKEOFE

2015
20154
RMB’000
AREFIT

borrowings 59,669 67,431

Finance charges on obligation BMEMRETEFZRERY
under finance lease 2,362 3,460
Interest on loans from related parties KB E RE R B 4,790 68
Interest on convertible bonds AR ESH 2 E 60,639 35,114
Guarantee fees and other charges ERERARHEMKE 6,585 7,598
134,045 113,671
2016 2015
2016 £F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT

(b) Staff costs (b) BIRAE
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITERHMER 35,908 41,295
Contributions to defined contribution FE HFGRINET MR

retirement schemes 2,918 6,280
Share-based payment expenses AR BETE R RS 37,406 31,874
76,232 79,449
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

7 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

(b)

Staff costs (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) organised by the local authorities whereby the
subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the
Schemes based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
salaries for the year. Contributions to the Schemes vest
immediately. Under the Schemes, retirement benefits of
existing and retired employees are payable by the relevant
scheme administrators and the Group has no further
obligations beyond the annual contributions.

(c) Other items (c) HfhiEH
Cost of inventories (Note) BFERA ()
Depreciation of property, Yz - BB &

plant and equipment
Amortisation of lease prepayments

TR EFE B 5

Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH

Group auditor’s remuneration NEEZEENB &

— Audit services — BT

— Review and other services — BN AR

Local statutory auditor’s  HE TE i B B
remuneration

— Audit services — BZART

Research and development costs iR DTN

RENITE

(b)

7 FEIEEE)

BT A ()
RIBETHEBES SRR PER - &
SERFEOKEARSEB S

77 HE B AE A 0 S R BUR IK R MR
2 (TaHED - &t W%’Aﬂﬁf‘i
NERGEREEHENREED

REE Ko/ qu%\JE‘Mﬁ(?K;T
B iR - IRIBATE - M TR
WEARRE R KEEX N Eﬁi
‘A mASERESEHR
AAEREMELE -

2016
2016 &

2015
20154
RMB’000
AREFTT

RMB’000
AR®T T

4,890,742 1,930,181
34,011 37,340
2,122 1,958

= 3,656

2,150 2,000
934 937

268 211

1,221 1,637

Note:

Cost of inventories includes RMB16,914,000 (2015: RMB20,101,000) relating
to staff costs, depreciation and amortisation, which amount is also included in
the respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in note 7(b) for
each of these types of expenses, and nil (2015: RMB12,079,000) relating to
warrant expense, which is also included in the respective amount disclosed
above or in note 5(a).

GEE

FERABERE TN  ERBHEH
7 A R #16,914,0007L(2015F : A R &
20,101,0007T) * BLEEZEHEAFAIME -
BESENGT A LM 7(0) EBHED
EHBEN UREBRREEAZIAT
(20154 : AR¥12,079,0007T) * % FKB IR
ATA XSS FEE BT -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 SMEBEBZRANFEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (a) FAEBBERAMNBIIEIRE :

or loss represents:

2016 2015
2016 F 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT

Current tax — PRC Corporate ENEAFIE — AR EFEHR
Income Tax
Provision for the year FNE A 15,897 218
Adjustment for prior year BEFEARE 1,099 945
16,996 1,163
Deferred tax IEFER 18
Origination and reversal of TR AN E S LR
temporary differences (23,889) (38,448)
(6,893) (37,285)
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands BREREHENEBEREZEE([®
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not subject BEZES])NBEAIEBRY - KE
to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI. BHEBEHRERENRBELES
BN FTISER -
No provision has been made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as HRAEERAFERBEFEL
the Group did not earn any assessable profit subject to Hong EMDUASME ST SR TR E
Kong Profits Tax during the current and prior years. The BEERA A ERE BN EFE
payment of dividends by Hong Kong incorporated L o BB ZHME A A
subsidiaries are not subject to any Hong Kong withholding RIS B B BN A B TEIES ©
tax.
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8

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 & it #Z5) -

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax credit and accounting
loss at applicable tax rates:

8

RA 35 88 R P 5E

U BB E)

REBBERANAER @)

(b)

BEEEERBERABRITEN
BB ENHR

2016 2015
2016 £F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARETIT
Loss before taxation FiRIEE (318,511) (540,421)
Notional tax on loss before RS R AR
taxation, calculated at the rates FTRT R E R
applicable in the tax jurisdictions A EERNHERIE
concerned (16,189) (57,145)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses “~a] ¥ 5z M FiTE 228 3,781 2,128
Tax effect of non-taxable income R AR TR E (1,145) (238)
Tax effect of unused tax losses and AENVATHIEEE N
deductible temporary difference RERATNRERZ5E
not recognised KRR TS & 4,488 16,974
Adjustment for prior year BEFERFE 1,099 945
PRC withholding tax on interest income 7~ [& A E 52 ~ &1 78
among entities within the Group ) BU AR AR a0 54 1,073 218
Others HAh = (167)
Actual tax credit EREMBER (6,893) (37,285)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

9 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9 EEM<E
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383(1) of the BRI E B D FHED 5 383(1) 16 K~ &) (3
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies BEENEEMN) BAE —_HMBIRBECES
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation e :

are as follows:

2016
2016 %
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors’  and benefits Discretionary scheme based
inkind bonuses  contribution Sub-total payments
e BE BN NRBR
RENHE HEA HiE 75 Mt ERHAR
(o) 0 (a)
(C] (e) (a)
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
Wi ARMTz ARMTz ARETn ARETr AR¥Tx ARMTR
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Yu Jiangiu AN EE - 2,732 - 15 2,747 - 2,747
Mr. Kiwong Wai Sun Wilson BEREEE - 1,535 - 15 1,550 1,192 2,742
Mr. Huang Weiping BRERE 171 98 - - 269 146 415
Ms. Zhu Yufen REART 1 120 - - 291 730 1,021
342 4,485 - 30 4,857 2,068 6,925
Independent non- BUHTES
executive directors
Mr. Leg Ting Bun Denny TEELE 17 - - - 171 238 409
Ms. Ren Ruxian i e (o) 171 - - - 171 33 544
Mr. Pan Liansheng BEBLE 171 - - - 17 238 409
513 - - - 513 849 1,362
855 4,485 - 30 5,370 2917 8,287
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 5 3R R B 5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 5B it8HZ ) - LA E#ZI1E)

9 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 9 EEME )

2015
20156

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme based
in kind bonuses  contribution Sub-total payments

B E/N
Wi N EREFR
@)
c]
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Wi ARETr ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETTE ARETT ARETR

Executive directors HITES

Mr. Yu Jiangiu mEmEE - 2,553 - 14 2,567 - 2,567

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson B E% 4 - 1,435 - 14 1,449 1,129 2,578

Mr. Liu Hanjiu ERSE () 146 131 - 11 288 700 988

Mr. Huang Weiping BESELE 160 175 1,520 - 1,855 311 2,166

Ms. Zhu Yufen fE5a+ 160 121 1,280 - 1,561 1,553 3,114
466 4,415 2,800 39 7,720 3,693 11,413

Independent non- BUkHTES

executive directors

Mr.Lee TingBunDenny iR A 160 - = - 160 226 386

Ms. Liu Rong Eut (d) 146 - - - 146 = 146

Ms. Ren Ruxian Bt (b) 14 - - - 14 - 14

Mr. Pan Liansheng BEBLE 160 - - - 160 226 386
480 - - - 480 452 932
946 4,415 2,800 39 8,200 4,145 12,345
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

9 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@)

These represent the estimated value of share options
granted to the directors under the Company’s share option
scheme. The value of these share options is measured
according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-
based payment transactions as set out in note 2(s)(ii). The
details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms
and number of options granted, are disclosed in note 30.

Ms. Ren Ruxian has been appointed as the Company’s
independent non-executive director effective from 30
November 2015.

Mr. Liu Hanjiu has resigned as an executive director effective
from 30 November 2015.

Mr. Liu Rong has resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company from 30 November 2015.

The amount represents the emoluments/retirement benefits
paid in respect of the services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking.

The amount represents the emoluments paid in respect of
service from the directors.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for the current or prior years.
No director has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
for the current or prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

10 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 10 HESHMA L
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2015:
one) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 9. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2015:

TEmETHMATEFRBMRE (20154 ¢
—Z)EF HFEMRMEToORE - £4
=H (20154 : 0% ) A TR E 4%

four) individuals are as follows:

BN

2016 2015

2016 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARETIT

Salaries and other emoluments 54 N E A R EN 1,752 514
Discretionary bonuses EIEIEAL - 4,879
Share-based payments AR AR B ERER 3R 3,498 7,273
Retirement scheme contributions IRORETEIHE R 40 36
5,290 12,702

The above individuals’ emoluments are within the following bands:

AEATEFMNFLATEE :

2016 2015

2016 20154

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 2 1,000,000/ 7T = -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 %702 1,500,000 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 2 2,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 77T £ 2,500,000 % 7T 2 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 # 7T E 3,000,000 % 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 # T E 3,500,000 7 7T - 2
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7 7T = 4,000,000 78 7T - -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 77T £ 4,500,000 7 7T - 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

11 LOSS PER SHARE 11 BREE
(a) Basic loss per share (a) BRELXEE
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss FIREREER TIRIEARRD 7L @R
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company of A% 52 fE 15 BT R A R 310,820,000
RMB310,820,000 (2015: loss of RMB499,045,000) and the (2015 K B A R &
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during 499,045,0007T) RFAE BEITE B
the year. R INiEFIHEE Mt & -
2016 2015
2016 £F 20154
Loss attributable to equity shareholders 7/~ T4 25 I B2 fE (L B9 18
of the Company (RMB’000) (AR®BFT) (310,820) (499,045)
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January W1 A1 EHRNBERITE @A 2,105,145,600 2,105,145,600
Effect of issue of new shares BT (D B 2 2 (B7E 29(0)()
(note 29(c)() 50,532,787 -
Effect of exercise of share option ITHEER RN E
(note 29(c)(i) (B EE29(c)(i) 10,645,902 -
Weighted average number of ordinary 2 21T mAREI INE L HE B
shares in issue 2,166,324,289 2,105,145,600
Basic loss per share (RMB) FREREE(ARET) (0.14) (0.24)
(b) Diluted loss per share (b) EFREHEE
The calculation of diluted loss per share is based on the loss FREEEBEEA AL BRRR
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company FE {5 & 8 A R % 310,820,000
of RMB310,820,000 (2015: loss of RMB499,045,000) and (20154 - 518 AR ¥ 499,045,000
the adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares L) RBERALIB B BT #E LR
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential & 89 BT IE N AR 2 45 T B hn e
ordinary shares. Diluted loss per share is the same as basic FHERBFAE - REEMEFE
loss per share for both years as all potentially dilutive A BRETFEBRSERNERER
potential ordinary shares were anti-dilutive. EiE - BRMBEEBEH#ENELE

B R REEIER o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 V¥ BERRZE

Furniture,
Plant and fittings and Motor Construction
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total

HE kB

BEYM BER#R R#fR nE  HEEIR @t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000

ARBTRE ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR AR®TR AR®T:R

Cost: B

At 1 January 2016 ®2016F1A1H 286,421 231,683 5,252 5,811 203,469 732,636
Additions NE

— others - H 19,567 3,493 71 381 20,162 43,674
Transfers #i 25,263 11,493 82 - (36,838) -
Reclassification Egiva 10,870 (10,870) - - - -
Disposals RE - (1) - - - 1)
At 31 December 2016 #2016 12 A31 A 342,121 235758 5,405 6,192 186,793 776,269

Accumulated depreciation ZitiTERHEFSE :
and impairment losses:

At 1 January 2016 R2016%1 A1 H 59,004 81,871 2,640 4,069 623 148,207
Charge for the year FRIR 14,425 18,144 818 624 - 34,011
Additions NE

Reclassification EXior] 86 537 - - (623) =
Written back on disposals BB R A - (19) - - - (19)
MG Decombor o0t Ko06E12ASIA TSt 10058 34 4683 - e
Net book value: SREFE .

At 31 December 2016 R2016%F 12 A31H 268,606 135,225 1,947 1,499 186,793 594,070
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 Y%  BERZRE &)
(Continued)

Furniture,
Plantand fittings and Motor  Construction
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress

KB KE
BEYM BEREE LB nE EEIR T
RMB'0O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBOOO  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR

Cost: B
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1 A1H 284,301 219,527 4,989 5,309 101,753 615,879
Additions NE
— through business - BREBAH

combinations - - 35 416 - 451
— others - Hft 906 3,123 308 46 112,125 116,503
Transfers (=74 2,714 7,695 - - (10,409) -
Reclassification ENE (1,500) 1,408 6) 9% - -
Disposals RE - (70) (69) (58) - (197)
At 31 December 2015 2015512 A31H 286,421 231,683 5,252 5,811 203,469 732,636

Accumulated depreciation R FERFERFSE
and impairment losses:

At 1 January 2015 R2015%1 A1 8 20,911 30,966 1,560 3,134 - 56,571

Charge for the year ERMGk 14,100 21,580 973 687 - 37,340

Additions through business B BEBAMGFE

combinations - - 4 59 - 63

Impairment loss BEBE 23,993 29,336 146 215 623 54,313

Written back on disposals B &[T - (11) (43) (26) - (80)
_At31December2015  M2015%12A31H . o004 et 2640 4089 623 148207

Net book value: RERE -

At 31 December 2015 2015512 A31 B 207 417 149,812 2,612 1,742 202,846 584,429
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

@)

All of the Group’s property, plant and equipment are located
in the PRC. At 31 December 2016, property, plant and
equipment with net book value of RMB202,891,000 (2015:
RMB214,270,000) were pledged for certain banking facilities
granted to the Group (see note 26(b)).

At 31 December 2016, the Group has yet to obtain property
ownership certificates for buildings with an aggregate net
book value of RMB42,605,000 (2015: RMB2,605,000). The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group
owned the beneficial title to these buildings as at 31
December 2016 and 2015.

During 2015, due to operating loss in the Group’s business,
the Group tested related cash generating units (“CGUs”) for
impairment. An impairment loss of RMB54,313,000 was
recognised in “other net loss” for property, plant and
equipment in CGU Jinxin. Considering Jinxin has suspended
its production activities since September 2015, and there
was no market price of similar assets, its value-in-use and
the fair value less cost of disposal is nil. Thus, the carrying
amount of Jinxin’s property, plant and equipment was
written down to its recoverable amount of nil.

In addition to the leasehold land in note 13, the Group leases
production plant and machinery under finance lease expiring
from 3 to 5 years. At the end of the lease term the Group
has the option to purchase the leased equipment at a price
deemed to be a bargain purchase option (see note 25).
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

At 31 December 2016, the remaining lease periods varied
from 1 month to 24 months and the net book value of plant
and equipment under finance leases included in property,
plant and equipment amounted to RMB49,286,000 (2015:
RMB55,575,000).

12 Y% - BERRE@®

@

REBMBYE - BERE&HEY
MLARE - R2016F12/8318 -
BREF(E A A R 202,891,000 7T
(20154 : AR #214,270,0007T )
MY ERRED TER
BAEEREAR THRITHENER
(B 5E 26(b))

2016412 A31 B » ANEE h Ak it
IREF(E BT AR 42,605,000 7T
(20154 : A R #2,605,0007T) K
BEYEBSEER - ARTEER
BAREBMN20164F K 2015412 A
S1EMEZSEEMNERERE -

R2015%F « ARG B E B EEK
BEE AEEARNAERSES
BEU(REELAEN])RETAR
B -RREELEBNEEZWE -
R R a2l [ EAth 548 | FERRUR
BB AR 54,313,000 ° E &
BHeEZA2015F0 AR EEHE
EEE  RARTEBUEEMNT
B HEREAERAFERTEK
AEZ Al ¢B2WE - BE

REZEEAEEHREHEATRE
T8 BT -

BRBTEE 13 E LN - AREEIA
SESFEMNBEHEHELER
F Rz e REEMNR  ANEEA
BEUWG SREWEEEENE
RIBEMMEERRE (HiE25) - 8
EMTIBEEIAESR

R2016F 12 831 H @ T4 TH & 5
BN F1EEE24EATE > MY
¥ BELAREBRRERERER
ERBNBENMREREFEAR
#% 49,286,000 7T (2015 4F : A R #&
55,575,0007C) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

13 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 13 HEEANR

2016 2015
2016 £ 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

Cost: R
At 1 January ®W1A1H 104,887 88,631
Additions NE - 16,256
At 31 December K12 HA31H 104,887 104,887
Accumulated amortisation: RETEes
At 1 January ®n1A1H 4,971 3,013
Charge for the year FRHBR 2,122 1,958
_At31December ~  Mi12A8H 708 4971
Net book value: BRIENEE
At 31 December M®12H31H 97,794 99,916
The lease prepayments represent costs of the land use rights in MEEMFIEB BN R E R T (K&
respect of land located in the PRC, on which the Group built its B AR B A Y
production premises and buildings. The land use rights are long- B b (E R RERC AR - (e FAE AR EATE
term lease expiring in 2056 to 2085. 49 - F2 2056 F = 2085 F FEfE W °
At 31 December 2016, land use rights with an aggregate carrying MN2016F 12 A31H - EEEAHXAA
amount of RMB90,936,000 (2015: RMB53,390,000) were pledged E #90,936,000 T (20156F : A R #§
for certain banking facilities granted to the Group (see note 26(b)). 53,390,000 7T ) Ky - ff D Bk T
SENETRITEEFEHER(RME
26(0)) °
14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14 RHMBARKNKRE

The Company
PIN/NC|
2016 2015

2016 £ 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETAR G AR 208,322 298,322
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 5B it8HZ ) - LA E#ZI1E)

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Details of the subsidiaries are set out below.

14 R BATIMNIKRE &)
B A T SR T o

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
and business and issued and Attributable equity interest
Name of company kind of legal entity paid-up capital held by the Company Principal activities
AL REE BERTRER
AEEH R R BRI B FEfh A2 B Firds B e TEXK
Direct Indirect
HE L
Engen Investments Limited The British Virgin Islands (‘BVI"), United States dollars 100% - Investment holding
(“Engen”) limited liability company (‘USD”) 10,225
BEREBRAF(BL]) RERUHE 10,225% 7T REER
((EBRIHEE]) FRAR (EA)
True Excel Holdings Limited Hong Kong, limited liability 1 ordinary share - 100%  Investment holding
(“True Excel”) company
REERERAR(TRE]) B BRRA 1 IRE R REER
Alpha Legend Holdings Limited Hong Kong, limited liability 1 ordinary share - 100%  Investment holding
(“Alpha Legend”) company
BRERER AR (&) B BRRA 1R BR REER
Alpha Business Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited liability 1 ordinary share - 100%  Investment holding
(“Alpha Business”) company
EHREBRARES)) & BRRA 1RE BB REER
Alpha Universe Group Limited Hong Kong, limited liability 1 ordinary share - 100%  Investment holding
(“Alpha Universe”) company
BARERERAR ([HH)) B BRRA 1REBR REER
Fanmay Limited (‘Fanmay”) BVI, limited liability company HK$1 100% - Investment holding
ZXERARER]) RBREAES BRAA 1B REER
China Recycling Aluminium Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HKS$1 - 100%  Investment holding
(“Recycling Aluminium”) company
REEREAFARAA ([EREX]) EE  BRRA 18T REER
Mianyang Jinxin Copper Co., Ltd. The PRC, limited liability Renminbi (‘RMB”) - 100%  Processing of scrap

(“Jinxin”)* company 100,000,000 copper and electrolytic
R sREERAR(£2]) B BRAF AR (AR copper for the
100,000,000 7T manufacturing of

copper related products
MI4ERERERSRA
HREIA R R IR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Details of the subsidiaries are set out below. (Continued)

14 R BATIMNIKRE &)
WHEBATSBEHIIMT - (&)

Name of company

DEAER

Place of
incorporation/
and business and
kind of legal entity

Particulars of
issued and
paid-up capital
ERTRER
BXFE

Attributable equity interest
held by the Company

FEfh AR A R Firs B
Direct Indirect

i %

Principal activities

FREH

Hunan Yinlian Xiangbei Copper Co., Ltd.  The PRC, limited liability RMB80,000,000 - 100%  Processing of scrap
(“Xiangbei”)* company AR 80,000,0007T copper and electrolytic
MR RE AL E AR AR (ML) HE - BRAR copper for the
manufacturing of
copper related products
NI4ERERERSRA
RREIA R B R IR
Mianyang Tongxin Copper Co., Ltd. The PRC, limited liability RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Processing of scrap
(“Tongxin”)* company AR 50,000,0007T copper and electrolytic
BEREREBRAR([HE]) FE - BRAR copper for the
manufacturing of
copper related products
NI4ERERERSRA
HREIA R B R IR
Sichuan Baohe Xinshiji Cable Co., Ltd. The PRC, limited liability RMB150,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
(“Baohe Xinshiji")* company AR 150,000,0007T power transmission and
M)l RFIE R SR BB IR A ) HE - BRAR distribution cables
([RAHEL D) EERHEARSE
Mianyang Baohe Taiyue Communications  The PRC, limited liability RMB80,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Cable Co., Ltd. (“Baohe Taiyue”)* company AR ™ 80,000,0007C communication cables
BERNFEREREERAF HE - BRAR EERHERESE
([RAZH)
Mianyang Jin Xunhuan Metal The PRC, limited liability RMB30,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Materials Co., Ltd. company AR ®30,000,0007C anodic copper and
(“Jin Xunhuan’) *(note (i) FE - BRAT trading of electrolytic
IR EREBMRBRAR copper
(T %% (M) HEMEEGE RN
Shanghai Epoch Keen Metal Trading The PRC, limited liability HK$60,000,000 - 100%  Trading of copper related
Limited (“Shanghai Shijian”)* company 60,000,000 7T products
FERESBHEARLA HE - HRAR BEMRRER

(T Ligrz])
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14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 14 ABATNKRE #)
Details of the subsidiaries are set out below. (Continued) B A RIEIEEY T - (48)
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
and business and issued and Attributable equity interest
Name of company kind of legal entity paid-up capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERTRER
ARER R AR B ER BXFE BAR R RE FEXH
Direct Indirect
HE M
Mianyang Xinhuan Aluminium Company  The PRC, limited liability RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Trading of aluminium
Limited ("Xinhuan Aluminium”)* (note (i)) ~ company A 5,000,000 related products
BHERREEERAA HE - HRAR BEERRER

(T&maz ) (i

Shanghai Bujiang Metal Material Limited ~ The PRC, limited liability - - 100%  Inactive
(‘Bujiang”)* company
FESIEBMHERDR ([H1)) HE - BRAR BEER
Sichuan Boxin copper Co., Ltd (‘Boxin”)*  The PRC, limited liability RMB10,500,000 - 100%  Inactive
company AE%10,500,0007C
mEEmEER AR ([1EE]) HE - BRAR EEER
Sichuan Epoch Keen Recycling Resources The PRC, limited liability - - 100%  Inactive
Development Limited (“Sichuan Shijan”)*  company EEEK
mIESREEEERAZEERAR B - BRAE
([m)lEsE])

* The English translation of the name is for reference only. The official names of * BNAHEZFLHERSE - ZFRANE
these companies are in Chinese. T BT LARR SR ©

0] On 29 January 2016, a subsidiary of the Company Tongxin acquired the [0) R2016F1 A29H * A AR EBAARNEIK
remaining 35% non-controlling interests of Jin Xunhuan at a cash BEERFRIBNIFTRER  BeRER
consideration of RMB8,200,000. Upon completion, Jin Xunhuan became an AR 8,200,0007T ° MTTH & @ £EIRK A
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. AQRNEEEENBAR -

(ii) On 4 July 2016, a subsidiary of the Company China Recycling Aluminium (ii) R2016F7 A48  AARIMBARFRHGER
Limited (“Recycling Aluminium”) acquired the remaining 70% interests of IREARAR(EIRIEE]) WEHSEIRE
Mianyang Xinhuan Aluminium Company Limited (“Xinhuan Aluminium”) at a EERAR([BRIEE]) Fer70% e - B
cash consideration of RMB3,100,000. Upon completion, Xinhuan Aluminium S REAARMES100,0007T « REMkE - &
became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. RIREKARNARNEEZEWB AR
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15 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 15 BiE QTR

2015
2016 £ 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T

Interest in associates BeENTER
Share of net assets B FEE 37,435 35,642
Goodwill kS 100,315 100,315
Less: impairment loss (Note) R EETIE (MY EE) (100,315) -
37,435 135,957
Note: The Group considered that there is impairment indicator for the interest in an MizE : AREEARIRMNE ILUMEBRIVENTER -

RRAREE R AR AT AR E -
AT EE S A AR A TR S

associate, Baohe Fushan, as the business performance of the associate was
below expectation. The Group therefore assessed the recoverable amounts of

the interest in associates and as a result, the carrying amount was written HMBEDEMBEHETKESEEARE
down to its recoverable amount of RMB37,435,000. An impairment loss of 37,435,000 7T ° JR (B E51E A R % 100,315,000
RMB100,315,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or TR EE20165F12 31 B IEFENEGES
loss for the year ended 31 December 2016. BRERNER -

Particulars of the associates are as follows: ENTIMEBOT

Proportion of

Particulars of ownership interest
registered share capital/ Place of incorporation attributable to
Name of associate issued and paid in capital and business the Group Principal activities
HMER, BERTR AR AR 3
BENR BB BRERFHE REwH AEBEGERELS TEXK
Direct Indirect
HE i
Deda Holdings Limited Issued and paid in capital of USD1,000  BVI 30% —  Investment holding
BEERER AT BEITRARRAR1,000%7T EERLHES REER
Hong Kong Fuijian Issued and paid in capital of HK$1.0 Hong Kong - 30%  Investment holding
Investments Limited N REERR
EBREREBRRA BETRERRA10ET
Sichuan Baohe Fushan Registered capital of RMB100 million ~ The PRC - 30%  Industrial park operation
Resources Recycling &R AR 100,000,000 7T F and development
Development Co., Ltd. BaRERIERE
mlERAEILBEER
FEERAT
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15 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

On 22 April 2015, the Group entered into an agreement, pursuant
to which the vendors of Baohe Fushan agreed to transfer 100%
equity interest in Baohe Fushan to Hong Kong Fujian Investments
Limited (“Fujian”), a company wholly-owned by Deda Holdings
Limited (“Deda”) which, in turn, was then a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Upon the above equity transfer taking effect, Deda issued to the
vendors 700 new ordinary shares at a nominal value of USD1.0
per share, representing 70% of Deda’s issued share capital after
the issue of the new ordinary shares.

Upon completion on 27 May 2015, Deda ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Company. Since then, the Company holds 30%
of the entire issued shares of Deda, which in turn indirectly holds
100% equity interest in Baohe Fushan.

15 &N afEzms)

R2015F 4 A22H » REBR Y HE
BHRMNELHNEFRBERASSEER
ERMR AR ([1EE]) #EERMNE L 100%
Bt - EEAEEERARAR([1EE])
2EHENRG  MEBEERARATN
2ENBAFR -

Pl R e R A s - RERE AT
700 B EEA1.0ETTHF L@ -
HERBERETZENLTAREND
BEITIRART0% ©

MR2015F 5 H27T HEikig - EETHA
AARMWBAR - it - AARIFHE
EREEEITIRM M30% ¢ iR
EREARME L 100% I HE
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15 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of the material associate,
adjusted for fair value adjustments at acquisition and differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

15 &N afEzms)

FWERHOATFEAERSHTBRER
MR REGE I BRERANREES
REVE REE AR M B AR Z RN
T~

Baohe Fushan

RAE L
2016 2015
2016 5§ 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®ET T
Non-current assets IEMBEE 180,848 192,529
Current assets MENVEE 53,989 81,217
Non-current liabilities EREEE (89,630) (120,680)
Current liabilities mEAE (20,384) (34,242)
Net assets (100%) FEEE (100%) 124,823 118,824
Group's share of net assets (30%) REE FELFEE (30%) 37,447 35,647
Goodwill Bz - 100,315
Carrying amount of interest B A RERNIREE
in associate 37,447 135,962
Revenue* (100%) BT (100%) - 1,980
Profit * (100%) " (100%) 5,999 3,442
Other comprehensive income * (100%)  Hb 2 E U5 * (100%) - -
Total comprehensive income * (100%) EHEWELBEE (100%) 5,999 3,442
Total comprehensive income* (30%) FHEYELBEE (30%) 1,800 1,033
Elimination of unrealised profit on H5H TR S E B R Z IR F
downstream sales - -
Group’s share of total AEEEGEEZE KR HEEE
comprehensive income 1,800 1,033

For the year ended 31 December 2016 and the period from 23 April 2015 to

31 December 2015.
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15 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually

material:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

B N TR ()
WIEERBE A BL AT AR -

15

2016
2016 &

2015
20154
RMB’000
AREFIT

RMB’000
AR®TR

Aggregate carrying amount of EE N ARG BEREEERD
individually immaterial associates in ERIZEEREE A Al BREAE
the consolidated carrying amount
of interest in associates (12) (5)
Aggregate amounts of the group’s AEBEGZEHE AR
share of those associates’ loss SECE R
from continuing operations BeEEMEEYE
Other comprehensive income (7) (16)
16 GOODWILL 16 BHE
RMB’000
AR%ET
Cost: B
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015, 201591 A1H ~2015F12A31 8 ~
1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 201641 A1 8 K&20164F12 431 H 39,308
Accumulated impairment losses: RIEEES !

At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and

A2015%F1 A1H - 201512 A31 1 »

___1January 2016 and 31 December 2016 : 20161 ATHK2016F12A81H 16,081
Carrying amount: BRMEE :
At 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016 W20154F12 A31 B X 2016412 A31 H 23,227
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16 GOODWILL (Continued) 16 HE @)
Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwill BEeHENESELENWRERS
Gooduwill is allocated to the CGUs identified as follows: BAEDNASR TN TEHINRGEELES
fir
2016 and 2015
2016 &
X 20154
RMB’000
ARETTT
Jinxin T -
Xiangbei Mk 22,766
Xinshiji 4 213
Taiyue i 248
23,227
The recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined based on ReEASBAMlE S EEENER
value in use calculations. These calculations use cash flow BEAEREAETE  -ZSFHERAFEAD
projections based on financial budgets approved by management WEEEBZENAIFTFHYKEEFNIR
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period SRERE - BBRAFHZRERETIE
are extrapolated using a zero growth rate. The growth rate used ATREREEE - TRAEERERTHERRES
do not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the business EEBULEMEEBORATHER
in which the CGU operates. The cash flows are discounted using & o A2016F 12 A31H F BEREHE
pre-tax discount rates of 14% (2015: 14%) at 31 December 2016. FA14% (20154 : 14%) &9 % i L 3R 2K 8k
Key assumptions used for the value in use calculations are the B FRERTEREXNEIZREAET
gross margins, growth rates and the availability of VAT refunds. o BERRISETRBEATITE - B2
Management determined the budgeted gross margins and growth BB TR R HE M5 %R TED
rates based on past performance and its expectation for market ETREEMNEIERE - NirEHEAE
development. No government grant is assumed to be received in B ERR I AW S R ©
the value in use calculations.
Based on the results of the valuation, the recoverable amount of REGHELER SN RESENAE
Jinxin has been assessed as being lower than the carrying REREE - ALt - EREE20155F12 A
amount. Accordingly, an impairment loss of RMB16,081,000 has 31THIEFER [ HMFEE | mARARES
been recognised in “other net loss” for the year ended 31 B A R #16,081,0007T © 72016 F &
December 2015. The recoverable amount of other CGUs based 201512 A31 H ' ILRFABEIEE
on the value in use calculations is higher than its carrying amount AFENEMBEeEFSELNATKE
as at 31 December 2016 and 2015. Accordingly, no impairment R EREE - U MEELREER
loss on goodwill regarding those CGUs has been recognised in the RARZERSELEVEREENOR
consolidated statement of profit or loss. EEE -
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16 GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwill
(Continued)

After the impairment loss recognised in 2015, the management
believes that any reasonably possible change in the key
assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would not
cause the revised carrying amount to exceed its recoverable
amount.

17 PLEDGED DEPOSITS

16 BE (%)

BEHENRESELEBENUNRERNR
(&)

R2015FHERRERRL - EEERR -
A E S EAREBENEERENEMNS
EBEARZ2IO8 TS RETREER
HE RO S o

17 SEBERK

2016 2015
2016 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Deposits with guarantee companies RIERARNTER 6,000 8,000
Deposits with banks RIBITHFR 20,900 22,982
Deposits with lessors of finance leases REEHERARNEFER 5,320 5,320
Deposit with other companies REMRTINFER 28,506 22,904
60,726 59,206

Represented by: Bp
Current BN ER 55,926 53,886
Non-current JERNER 4,800 5,320
60,726 59,206

Pledged deposits were placed with guarantee companies for the
purpose of obtaining bank loans of RMB21,500,000 (2015:
RMB53,800,000), which were guaranteed by the guarantee
companies (see note 26(b)).

Pledged deposits with banks were mainly placed as security for
bills payable of the Group (see note 24(a)).

Pledged deposits were placed with lessors of finance leases as
security for the obligations under finance leases as at 31 December
2016.

Pledged deposit was placed with other company for the purpose
of obtaining bank loans of RMB50,000,000 (2015:
RMB70,000,000), which were secured by the property, plant and
equipment of other company(see note 26(b)).

FLEB IR 1T E A R #21,500,0007T
(20154 : AR # 53,800,000t ) i 7 ¥
RABDFHEEBTH - BERTERNH
BRAFER(RME26(0))

RITHEERFREESRATED
e R IF I F IR an (RHEE24()) ©

MR2016F 12 A31H  FHRRERE
ANANBRFEFERIRBERHETNE
EFHEERARR -

A 1S iR 17 B 3 A R ¥ 50,000,000 7T
(20154 : AR ¥70,000,0007T) i1 A E
R BFREEIFFR - BERITENRA
HMAaIMYE - BEREBEER(EH
X 26(b)) °
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18 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 18 HitERBEE

2016 2015
2016 £ 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T

Prepayments for property, plant and VI - R SRR A - Hb (5 PR A
equipment and land use rights EOREERE 23,054 24,512
Deferred differences arising from a sales &% R 5 ELRIELE5E
and leaseback transaction (Note) ) 868 1,912
23,922 26,424
Note: Deferred differences arising from a sales and leaseback transaction represent Mizk : ERHARXSEENELERERHENREM
the deficit of sale proceeds over the net book value of the assets disposed of ENEAHERNR S ERELEEENHEN
under the sales and leaseback transaction which resulted in a finance lease. BREERNEREFEMELNE - Lt
The differences are deferred and amortised as adjustments to the depreciation ERERHEENENABRTEEMMTA
of the assets over their estimated useful lives. ERF RN T IAIRIE K 8K -
19 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 19 HREPBRARANWIEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (@) HMEMBRRERAWEEBE
financial position represents: 1

2016 2015
2016 £ 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T

At 1 January ®w1A1H 9,662 19,988
Provision for PRC corporate income £ (A /R B 1> 2 iS5 8448

tax for the year 15,897 218
Adjustment for prior year BEFENAR 1,099 945
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid BB EMSH (7,013) (11,489
At 31 December ®12 A31H 19,645 9,662
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19 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 19 ZEMBRRRANAER 2
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised (b) ERAELEHEEE (AF)
() Movement of each component of deferred tax () ELEHEEEREESHIZ
assets and liabilities #E
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RERE B IS AR R 2R FER A IR
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial EFIEEE,(BE) AR
position and the movements during the year are as S RREAREE T -
follows:

Depreciation/
amortisation
allowances in
excess of the
related
Deferred tax depreciation/ Provisions Deductible

arising from: amortisation  and accruals losses
BHAERNE
B/ BHEn B
R E IR : il V& Filiy REHER B ER @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBFT ARETFT AREFT ARBTT

At 1 January 2015 R2015%1 818 2,908) 2209 - 699)

Credited to profit or loss HFAER 679 21,108 16,661 38,448

At 31 December 2015 R2015F12A31H (2,229) 23,317 16,661 37,749

At 1 January 2016 R2016F1 A 1H (2,229) 23,317 16,661 37,749

Credited to profit or loss SHAER 98 17,071 6,720 23,889

At 31 December 2016 R2016 12831 H (2,131) 40,388 23,381 61,638
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of (i) EEREMBRRREE:

financial position:

2016 2015
2016 & 2015 4

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT

Net deferred tax assets recognised 4R & BT ISAR R RIEZH
in the consolidated statement FIREIBEE
of financial position 61,638 37,749
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19 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
the following items, because it is not probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the Group can
use the benefits therefrom.

Deductible temporary differences

19 GZEMBRARANFAER 2

(c) RERHEZEHHEEE
MARATIEEHARLEREE
E - BRTKAIEA ARERD G
MAARE A HEEHEEEZ A

Ng
S o

I

2016
2016 &

2015
20154
RMB’000
AREFTT

RMB’000
AR®TR

AN ERER (BERBH)

(No expiry date) 68,790 73,404
Tax losses (will expire in year 2021) MIEEE (B 2021 Ef@m) 52,728 27,076
121,518 100,480

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2016, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
amounted to RMB257,563,000 (2015: RMB374,875,000).
No deferred tax liabilities in respect of these undistributed
profits have been recognised as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that these profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

20 INVENTORIES
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

(d) FAERPELEHRIEEE
A2016F12 A31H > BAEEH
FEMBRARNADERFEEN
e b = 58 & A R 257,563,000 7T
(2015F : A R %374,875,000
J0) o MERZE AR 9 Il s T ERIE
ERIEEE  RERARGHEHZ
EWNBRARINKREEIE  mMAZSE
HABEERAETSETERN
RIRDIK °

20 FE
(a) GEMBRREANEEEE

2016 2015

2016 2015 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREETIT

Raw materials R 93,892 40,742
Work in progress Pl 16,272 14,798
Finished goods BURY T 80,571 71,314
Goods in transit HEh 2850 17,465 122,148
208,200 249,002

At 31 December 2016, inventories of RMB29,000,000 (2015:
RMB53,063,000) were pledged for banking facilities granted
to the Group (see note 26(b)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 & it #Z5) -

20 INVENTORIES (Continued)
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense and included in the
profit or loss is as follows:

RA 35 88 R P 5E

U BB E)

20 FE (&)
(b)

BRAMXIAFABENTE
IO

2016 2015
2016 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFENEREE 4,885,454 1,887,716
Write down of inventories WoRFE 5,288 42 465
4,890,742 1,930,181
21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21 EZRHMEWIE

2016 2015

2016 £ 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFTT ARKETT

Trade debtors and bills receivable B HEANEREE 499,114 565,742
Less: Allowance for impairment loss o OREE RS (237,384) (112,830)
261,730 452,912

Advance payments to suppliers B ER R 605,450 402,531
Government grants receivable JFE W R AT 8 B 67,141 111,055

Other deposits, prepayments and Hiize - B R EWEIE

receivables 67,606 66,541
1,001,927 1,033,039

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered
or recognised as expense within one year.

(a) At 31 December 2016, government grants receivable of
RMB8,550,000 (2015: RMB8,550,000) was pledged for
certain banking facilities granted to the Group (see note
26(b)).

FEE S hEMEBRFREBRRR —FR
Y Bl ek iR R

R2016F 12 A31H @A AR
8,550,000 7T (2015 4F : A B ¥
8,550,000 7T ) HY & UK ER /5 45 Bh 2 3t
BRI AEBNE TRITEEELKR
1 (RRIEE26(0))

(a)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES continved) 21 B SR EftFEWERIE 2)

(b) Trade debtors and bills receivable included
amounts due from related parties as follows:

(b)

EZRRREREERERK
BAME T RRIRMT ¢

2016 2015
2016 £ 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T

Guangzhou Taiyue Communications  EINH RS BELEAEE AT
Cable Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Taiyue”) ([ &M Z=i |) - 4,730
Sichuan Xijiulong Investment Co, Ltd.  PIJI|& AN EEREBR AT
(“Xijiulong”) * (fnsEh* = 17
- 4,901
Xijiulong is a company wholly owned by Ms. Yu Yanyan and Ms. Yu * AAEARMBERZ T RAEELZLTE
Jiajia, daughters and associates of Mr. Yu Jiangjiu. BEHRBENRR BERMEMNAERN
ZRNHEA -
(c) Ageing analysis (c) BREDM

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade debtors and bills receivable (which are included in
trade and other receivables), based on the invoice date and
net of allowance for impairment loss, is as follows:

RBEHR - BHERARERRE
(FtAE B R A EURIR) BRI
DT (AR B B R ERE
BER/EE)WT

2016 2015
2016 £ 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T

Within 30 days 30 KA 113,056 64,139
31 to 60 days 31 260K 64,698 4,931
61 to 180 days 612180K 53,732 39,752
Over 180 days HBi® 180K 30,244 344,090

261,730 452,912

Trade debtors and bills receivable are normally due within 90
days from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s
credit policy are set out in note 33(a).

@ China Metal Resources Utilization Limited / 2 B4 /B & J8 M A AR A 7

BEHEAMEREEAENHER
HIEEOORNEH - AEENEE
BUR AV — 2 S B E BT RE 33(a) ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21 ESREMERR®)
(d) Impairment loss of trade debtors and bills d ESREIREREEZRES

receivable B
The movement in the allowance for impairment loss during
the year, including both specific and collective loss
components, is as follows:

FARREBRRBEZS (BIEE
R R AREEED) TR

(e)

2016 2015

2016 § 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

At 1 January Mm1A1H 112,830 -
Reversal of provision for bad debts B[O BR B (28,574) -
Impairment loss recognised BEHERBESE 153,128 112,830
At 31 December Mm12H31H 237,384 112,830

Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not
impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that
are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired are as follows:

(e)

WEBENEZRARERE
B’

R AE B RAR SIRMIE N E 58
REERRBORREDITANT -

2016 2015

2016 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ TR ARETT

Current BN HA 138,756 51,159

Less than 30 days past due BHEA LR 30K 27,338 18,619

31 to 60 days past due #HEIZ1 £ 60K 25,738 7,958

61 to 180 days past due #mHI61 £180K 40,630 314,439

Over 180 days past due #EAFRIA 180 K 29,268 60,737
_Amountspastdue @R 122974 401,753

261,730 452,912

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

R 380 HA Ko AR R (B #O) FE LUK R 25T A
W EHRCBNEFER

Annual Report 2016 / —Z — /N FF R @
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 5 & it 8IZ5) -

UAEBSE)

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(e)

Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not
impaired (Continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

22 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED
PARTIES/ASSOCIATES

(a)

(b)

(a)

Amounts due from/to related parties/associates

The amounts due from/to related parties/associates are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand at 31
December 2016.

21 ESREMERIES)

(e)

WEBRENEZRARERE
B#)

B BB 1 AR E B B R FUR R A
AEBERE RIFBECENE TH
VEFARM REBEBELR EE
B W0 A 7R L AR B A R F R (B 13
B AREEERYBHIRERE
1t A BERIDIR SR 28K
B - REEIY FH A FHEHRITAE
A & o

22 W FENEBEHE DT

IE
(a) FEW FESEREES HEE DR

i}

MN201645E12 A31 B - W JE K
RABG B N B FR0E A EEE
T B M BIRERER -

Loan from a related party (b) REBBESNER
The loan from a related party in 2015 is unsecured, at 5% 2015FREMB TN ERAEK
annual interest rate and repayable within 12 months. The W FREE5% MER12(EA A
Group repaid the loan in 2016. B8 - REBMN2016EEBZER
23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23 RERAEEHEER
Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BEeRBEELLEEEEERE:
2016 2015
2016 § 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Deposits with banks RIRTTHTER - 33,000
Cash at bank and on hand RITEREFERE 164,142 49,559
Cash and cash equivalents in the REVBARRERANNIE S &
consolidated statement of REEEEE
financial position 164,142 82,559

At 31 December 2016, cash and cash equivalents of the
Group in the amount of RMB145,748,000 (2015:
RMB51,130,000) are denominated in RMB and are
deposited in banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of the
PRC is subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

@ China Metal Resources Utilization Limited / 2 B4 /B & J8 M A AR A 7
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23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of loss before
generated from operations:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 & it #Z5) -

taxation to cash

RA 35 88 R P 5E

U BB E)

23 BEeRRELZEEEB &)
(b) ﬁm@ﬁﬁ” EFfEESNY

2016 2015
2016 F 20156
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(i3 AR¥T R ARETT
Loss before taxation FiRiEa (318,511) (540,421)
Adjustments for: ATIEERE
Finance costs B TR AR 7(a) 134,045 113,671
Share-based payment expenses RS BER R AR Y 7(b) 37,406 31,874
Warrant expense RREEFRY 5(a) - 12,079
Depreciation e 7(c) 34,011 37,340
Deferred expense BERY 18 1,044 1,044
Amortisation of lease prepayments T8 & & 24 4 7(c) 2,122 1,958
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHH 7(c) - 3,656
Interest income LB A 6(a) (22,953) (1,276)
Share of profit of associates FE(E B & A B F B(b) (1,793) (1,028)
Net loss on sale of property, plant ~ HE9E - MEKEREZ 6(b)
and equipment FER 22 116
Foreign exchange loss b i &5 18 3,911 1,492
Change in fair value of derivative TTETAMATEES 27
instrument (6,633) 77,091
Impairment loss of trade debtors BIERFRERER 2 21(d)
and bills receivable BEERE 153,128 112,830
Reversal of impairment loss of BOESEFREREE, 210
trade debtors and bill receivable HERE (28,574) -
Impairment loss of goodwill BEZREEE 6(b) - 16,081
Impairment loss of property, ME - BERREZ 6(b)
plant and equipment REEE = 54,313
(Reversal)/write down of inventories 17 & (B [al),/H#iUR 20(b) (37,177) 37,522
Impairment loss of interest in B ARER 2 REEE 15
associate 100,315 -
Changes in working capital: BEESEY
Decrease in inventories FERD 77,979 175,175
Increase in trade and other B 5 N E b fE YR R T 1 A
receivables (93,104) (128,801)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and g 5 REMERNFIE
other payables )ﬂ A /1N (98,064) 73,839
Cash (used in)/generated from LB (A, FEEs
operations (62,826) 83,555
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 BFREMENFIE

2016 2015
2016 £ 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T

Trade payables E SN FUR 48,969 15,176
Bills payable AN 41,800 45,800
Receipts in advance e FRIE 15,397 41,299
Accrued expenses and other payables JE =B S N B A B~ RRIE 280,363 372,524
386,529 474,799
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or FreEg S REMEMFIEERR —FR
recognised as income within one year or repayable on demand. BB ERRBA - HBREREER -
(@) Bills payable are normally issued with a maturity of not more (@) ENZEZENIHE-—RTSHEEN
than six months. At 31 December 2016, bills payable were @ B - $2016F12 431 H + fEf
secured by pledged deposits of RMB20,900,000 (2015: ZERTRIRITHEERTHIAR
RMB22,900,000) placed with banks (see note 17). #20,900,0007T (20154 + A R #&

22,900,000 70 ) VEFEAR (R FE17) -

(b) At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of the (b) RHMEHKR ERXZBEHNES
trade and bills payable, based on transaction date, is as NEAMERFIERE DT T
follows:

2016 2015
2016 £ 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT

Within 30 days 30 KA 6,955 2,846
31 to 60 days 31E60K 78,799 52,948
61 to 180 days 61ZE 180K 1,447 1,335
Over 180 days i 180K 3,568 3,847

90,769 60,976
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
(c) An analysis of accrued expenses and other
payables is analysed as follows:

Salaries, wages, bonus and other

¥e I8 Ak

24 ESZREMEMRTIE S

(c)

Bt REMENSREND
FaT

2016
2016 &

2015
20154
RMB’000
AREFIT

RMB’000
ARBTT

accrued benefits H i fEET4E F 1,906 10,293
Payables for the purchase of property, BEE 3 - E MR EM

plant and equipment and B A& EMERNFIE

intangible assets 44,468 42,487
VAT payable FEHBER 166,626 188,360
Unearned government grants (i) T8 UK B IR AT 47 B (1) 10,779 50,565
Other taxes payable HAb ERTTRIE 21,051 22,357
Advances from government authorities I fiF 28F3 & 5% - 17,960
Advances from a government TR 2 161 2 B8 R (i)

controlled entity(ii) 20,000 22,000
Others Hi 15,533 18,502

280,363 372,524

(i)

The amount represented conditional government
grants received from various government authorities
including Mianyang Youxian District Finance Bureau,
Sichuan Province, and the Provincial Finance
Department, Hunan Province. The government grants
from Mianyang Youxian District Finance Bureau are
conditional to meeting certain tax payment thresholds
by the Group. The government grants from the
Provincial Finance Department, Hunan Province are
conditional to utilising the funds for the designated
purpose of procurement of fixed assets.

Advances from a government controlled entity
represents an advance of RMB20,000,000 received
from Mianyang Fule Investment Limited for the
purchase of property, plant and equipment in 2016.
The amount bears an annual interest rate of 12% and
is payable within one year.

(i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

25 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 25 MEHE FNWEE
At 31 December 2016, the Group had obligations under finance R2016F 12 A31H  ZEEEARA U T
leases repayable as follows: JEEERMEME THET

2016 2015
2016 20154
Present value Present value
of the Total of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHERE BEHE SEHERE RIEHE
HERE RIEHRE BEE RIELEER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR%STR ARETT ARBTET

Within 1 year 1R 13,322 13,956 15,192 15,986

After 1 year but within 2 years 1FZBE2FR 11,336 12,679 12,462 13,956

After 2 years but within 5 years 2FEBESFER - - 10,628 12,679
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 11,336 IR 23090 26635

24,658 26,635 38,282 42,621
Less: total future interest expenses &, : & JEH EF L %8 (1,977) (4,339)
Present value of finance MEHERAENRE
lease obligations 24,658 38,282

Pledged deposit of RMB5,320,000 (2015: RMB5,320,000) was MR2016F 128318 & & # F &
placed as security for the obligations under finance leases as at 31 A R #5320,0007T(20154%F : A R #&
December 2016 (see note 17). 5,320,0007C) EFIEABMERE TH

BEMEM (RMFE7) -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

26 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 26 SBITERKHMER

(@) At 31 December 2016, the analysis of the carrying (@) M2016F12A31H - & M
amount of borrowings is as follows: EEEESHWMT :

2016 2015
2016 £ 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T

Secured bank loans BEIFRITE 252,970 312,050

Entrusted loans ErEER

— secured — A 299,116 300,000

— unsecured — MK 129,450 49,460

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 428,566 =~ 349,460

681,536 661,510

Represented by: Bp :

Current BNER 681,536 661,510

Non-current JEBNER = -
681,536 661,510
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

26 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 26 RITERREMER &)

(Continued)

(b) The amounts of banking facilities and the (b) R2016F12A31B KR ITHE
utilisation at 31 December 2016 are set out as BERFEABRERATX :
follows:

2016 2015

2016 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

Secured banking facilities available BRI HIRTTEERE 298,118 369,640
Amounts utilised EE)EE e

— bills payable — EREE 41,800 45,800

— bank loans — RITER 252,970 312,050

294,770 357,850

There are cross default provisions in certain banking facilities,
the default on a loan by the Group would then cause a
default on other loans which have cross default provisions.

The banking facilities were secured by the following assets:

Property, plant and equipment WE - BB KaEE (EE12()

ETROGEERMARXENK
X AREER-BERKEEM
ERMAER EIEXEME -

SZEFRITHERNATEERR

2016
2016

RMB’000
ARBT T

2015
20154
RMB’000
ARETIT

(note 12(a)) 202,891 214,270
Lease prepayments (note 13) HAETE K (FIEE13) 90,936 53,390
Inventories (note 20) & (KMts£20) 29,000 53,063
Government grants receivable (note 21)  FEUX BT # Bh (BT 5E21) 8,550 8,550
Pledged deposits (note 17) EHEBER(HE17) 55,400 53,800

386,777 383,073

At 31 December 2016, no bank loans (2015:
RMB10,000,000) was secured by property, plant and
equipment of Sichuan Gushan Vegetable Fat Chemical Co.,
Ltd. (“Gushan Vegetable”), a private company controlled by
Mr. Yu Jiangiu.

@ China Metal Resources Utilization Limited / 2 B4 /B & J8 M A AR A 7
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

26 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)
(b) The amounts of banking facilities and the

(c)

utilisation at 31 December 2016 are set out as
follows: (Continued)

At 31 December 2016, bank loans of RMB35,000,000
(2015: RMB35,000,000) were secured by prepayment for
land use right of Baohe Fushan.

Pledged deposits included RMB28,500,000 (2015: RMB22,900,000)
paid to a third party. At 31 December 2016, bank loans of
RMB50,000,000 (2015: RMB70,000,000) were secured by property,
plant and equipment of this third party; also included RMB6,000,000
(2015: RMB8,000,000) paid to independent guarantee companies. At
31 December 2016, bank loans of RMB21,500,000 (2015:
RMB41,000,000) were guaranteed by these independent guarantee
companies to which the Group was charged a total of non-recoverable
guarantee fees of RMB735,000 (2015: RMB1,639,000) during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

At the end of reporting period, bank loans were repayable
within one year.

Significant terms and repayment schedule of
entrusted loans

At 31 December 2016, entrusted loans are repayable within
one year or on demand, and were interest-bearing at 9% to
12% per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has
defaulted in its repayment of entrusted loans which matured
in August and September 2016 (“the loans payable”). At 31
December 2016, the loans payable in default totalled
RMB299,116,000. The loans payable were secured by
413,522,200 ordinary shares in the Company held by Mr.
Huang Weiping, key management personnel of the Group,
representing 18.0% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2016.

26 RITERREMER &)

(b)

(c)

MN2016 FE12A31B WE 1T
BEREABRERTX : (&)

R2016F12A31H: A R #
35,000,0007C (20154 : A R #&
35,000,000t ) Z RITE K AR M
= Ly L FRAE TR SRIE AR -

* CEBEREECNEZTOARE
28,500,0007T (20154 : A R &
22,900,0007T) ° #2016%12A318 -
R 17 & 3 A B % 50,000,000 7E (2015
& AR¥E70,000,0007T) WAZE=
FHIME - R REEAKE  BIK
RAERANBECSMNBLERAFNA
R #6,000,0007C(20154F : A R #
8,000,0007T) ° 2016412 A31H »
A E 21,500,000 7T (20154 : A B
41,000,000 7T) KIERITE R 508
ERARHEMIEIF - MAKERE
E2016F12A31ALEFEEHZER
AIXAAAKEEREALEAR
735,0007T(20154F « A% 1,639,000
TT) e

RI|BEHR - |RITERER —FR

ZEXERNERGRRERY

A2016F12 A31H  LEERE
R—FERRIZEREE WK%
E12% WFREREE -

HE2016F12A31HIEFE &
SEEREREBEN20165F8 A K9
AEHHZREaER(ENEFRK]D -
MR2016F12 A31H EHNENE
B AR 299,116,000 7T © &
NEFUFEBEIEZEBEAESRE
S & 45 B B9 413,522,200 % AN A
AT @R (AR RER2016F 12 A
31 BB ETTIRAN18.0%) A -

Annual Report 2016 / —Z — /N FF R @



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

27 CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The movements of the components of the convertible bonds

27 AERRES
AHIRI R AR B S AR 2 # 8

during current period are set out below:

AT -

Liability

component Derivative

(at amortised component

cost) (at fair value)

a8E&Hs TEIARS

(FR 88 B 2<) (RAFE)

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AR® T

At the date of issue EE4T A HA 137,164 50,767

Interest charge FLEFZ 35,114 =

Interest paid E RS (14,657) =

Changes in fair value N EEZE - 77,091

Exchange realignment ERRECE 8,867 3,131
At 31 December 2015 and MR2015F 12 A31 B &

1 January 2016 2016F1 A1H 166,488 130,989
Interest charge FEFSZ 60,639 =
Interest paid EH FE (28,058) =
Changes in fair value NEEEE) = (6,633)
Exchange realignment ERRECE 12,741 8,988
At 31 December 2016 2016412 A31H 211,810 133,344

On 13 April 2015, the Company issued convertible bonds with a R2015F 4 B13H » KRBT ASH
principal amount of USD32,610,000 (equivalent to approximately 32,610,000 ;t( H & RN 4 A R #
RMB200,208,000). The Company incurred transactions cost of 200,208,000 7T ) # 7] #2 i& ﬁ o A 1T

approximately HK$15,497,000 (equivalent to approximately AIBRRKRES KRAAEER S AL

RMB12,277,000) for the issue of the convertible bonds. Major 15,497,000 T( H & R AR &

terms of the convertible bonds are as below: 12,277,0007T) ° AIARREH ) E Z KN
UM
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27 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(@)

The convertible bonds carry 10% coupon interest per annum
payable in arrears quarterly. Unless previously converted, the
convertible bonds will be fully redeemed by the Company at
its principal amount upon maturity at the second anniversary
from the date of issuance. If the convertible bonds are not
fully redeemed or converted before the first anniversary from
the date of issuance, the Company has to pay additional 3%
of the outstanding or unconverted principal amount to the
bondholder. If the average closing share price of the
Company during any six consecutive months within the
period commencing from issuance date on 13 April 2015 to
the maturity date has never, at any point of time, reached or
exceeded the conversion price, the Company shall, upon
redemption of the convertible bonds, compensate the
bondholder in cash so that the bondholder is guaranteed an
annualised return of 13% for the period commencing from
issuance date to the first anniversary of issuance date and
an annualised return of 16% for the period commencing
from the day following the first anniversary of issuance date
to the date of redemption.

From issuance date to the first anniversary, the Company
may with the consent from the bondholder, at sole
discretion, request for early redemption of all, but not in part,
the outstanding convertible bonds.

The convertible bonds are secured by 362,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company held by Epoch Keen Limited, a
company wholly owned by Mr. Yu Jiangiu. If the aggregate
shareholding of the senior management of the Company and
their associates in Company is less than 50% of the entire
share capital of the Company or the collateral ratio of the
security falls below the specific ratio prescribed in the
agreement and the Company has failed to provide additional
collateral, the bondholder may request early redemption.

The bondholder has the right to convert the principal amount
of the convertible bonds into ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
of the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$1.40 per
share but subject to adjustments at any time during the term
of the convertible bonds, subject to the minimum public float
requirement. At the date of conversion, the exchange rate
between the principal amount of the convertible bonds and
the conversion price is fixed at USD0.18. Aggregate amount
of principal converted into shares should not exceed
USD16,300,000. The conversion price had been adjusted to
HK$1.39 per share on 24 October 2016.

27 WBRRES#)

@)

AIMRESFIZFEREMNEI10%E
B BEES - BRIELADESR
# BAIREE B (A13%1T B 8
BT EBR)ARNRANAS T
THELOAIRRES - MATRERE
FRETAART —BFEARD
K2 EREE R sk ik - BIZARQR]AM
BEHRE AR REESIRE
ARG EEN 3% « BARFIREE
17 H BI(BI20154F4 A13H) &
FIHAH B E M — B EE N @A
Y HA RS A (R B T A S I TR (B A%
RERFELBENR L - BIEA
RIEERZERRESRR - AN
ReFAHERFFEA  WRE
ZEFBEANEITEHEERTH
HpREr—EF 2 BIEBEF(E13% 8
B3R LT H R —BFEH
ZEERHIEAF16% KER o

BETEMERTAR-BFL
ARRAEEEAFRBAEARETRE
BB REAED 2 (EIER
7)) M AR AR AR E 5 o

AR ESFUAREBRATEEN
362,000,000 % 2~ A~ 7] & @Ak 1E &
IR BEARARAENLE
28R -  EARFNEHREREA
ERESHNBBEALBEENAR
AR HE HREARRBBREER
50% -+ SIK A R L RER
HREMEE LA M AR B KRR
HEIMEIR G - BEHFFEATEXR
IRAEED -

R AR AR E S HAIR R AR R -
BEHFFEABRUNTS L BESR
1,407 70 (7] TR B R ESH
R AR SRR 5N A B R EEO. 1
BITHEBR  EARFRENT
BERSEERESR - REginE - ATH|R
BEHM AT RN IRE 2 FHER
EEETE0.18ETT c M ARMH KR
S 4AFE 151838 16,300,000F T °
HIBREDR2016F 10 A24 H AR
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27

28

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The convertible bonds contained two components, liability and
derivative component. The initial fair value of the both components
combined was determined based on gross proceeds at issuance.
The initial fair value of the derivative component was estimated to
be approximately RMB50,767,000 as at the issuance date of using
the Monte Carlo Model and Binomial Option Pricing Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions of the convertible bonds. In
subsequent periods, derivative component is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss. The
residual amount, representing the value of the liability component
at approximately RMB137,164,000, was subsequently measured
at amortized cost using effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate of the liability component of the convertible bonds is
34.35% per annum.

The fair value of the derivative component was determined using
the Monte Carlo Model and Binomial Option Pricing Model and the
major inputs into the model are as follows:

27

At issue date

RNE

AR ES 2
AMREFBEBERITETARILS °
BEBHIRITET AR, ZAXTHBER
FETIRETRNATSIBREEET - 17
S TERD 2 m A ETIRETHE
BESFRETEEAR-ENHETE
EERHE B4 ARKS50,767,0007T ¢
EEZEAI R ES 2GR R AE - RER
B TETABDEAFERNE TR
BRERAANTELY - FeERRAE
o2 BEHARE137,164,0007T * K&
BEABERFREIZEHEN AR - AT
BREFNEELII>NEBRINERAETF
34.35% °

TTETARLD ZAFEDRARERE
EERAN_AASREERREE R
AT ERABENT :

At

31 December
2016

2016
12H31H

At

31 December
2015
2015 4

12 H31H

Stock price REEE HK$1.64787C = HK$2.99%TT  HK$2.86/5 7T
Exercise price 1TEE HK$1.40787c = HK$1.39%t  HK$1.40/E 7T
Expected volatility TEERR 1R 42% 19% 55%
Dividend vield f& B 3% 0% 3%
Option life HRfEF HA 24 months & A 8.5months{EA 15.5 months & A
Risk free rate ) [ A1) R 0.46% 0.62% 0.15%

Up to 31 December 2016, no conversion of the convertible bonds
have taken place since the issuance date.

DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

The amount represents government grants received from
Provincial Finance Bureau, Hunan Province. These government
grants are assets-related are amortized over ten years since July
2014.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDEND 20 EX - RERKRE
(@) Movement in components of equity (a) EZHIEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances REBIGAEERSZI D EAY KB
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set REGNEBREANRNGAERRES
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. F e AREMEARIEZ I D RF &
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual FERNE WO -

components of equity between the beginning and the end of
the year are set out below:

The Company N F

Share-
based Accumu-
Share Share  Exchange Capital  payment Warrant lated
capital  premium reserve reserve [CEET reserve losses
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
(Note29(c) 29 (i) 29(d)(I)  29(A)Gi) 2o ()  29(d) (i)

NRHAER RBER
Bx  KfteR  EXGRE  RRER  ONRER B RER
(Wi (W20 (W20 (Wi2o  (WH2 (W2
@) (o) 1 1 A [ ) A [ 1)
Note  RMB000  RMB'OOD  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'00
WE  ARMTZ ARNTR ARETR ARRTn ARETR ARRTZ ARMTR ARWTR

Balance at 1 January 2016 R201651 A1 BILEE 166,075 245,136 11,444 289,836 40,700 12079  (243978) 521,292
Changes in equity for 2016: D165 HEEET

Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - (27363 (217,363
Other comprehensive income Eh2mkE - - 17,111 - - - - 17,411
Total comprehensive income SENRET - - 17,11 - - - (17233 (200252
Issuance of ordinary shares BTLaR 290 11,500 288,460 - - - - - 299,960
Share-based compensation expenses IRG BERNRERT 290d)v) - - - - 37,406 - - 37,406
Share options vested but lapsed EEBEXINBRE = = = = (671) = 571 -
Exercise of share option TEERE 29(c)(i) 5,004 51,541 - - - - - 56,545
Transfer of share option reserve BERRERE - 17,855 - - (178%) = = =
Balance at 31 December 2016 R2016512 5 31 AfiEE 182,579 602,992 28,555 289,836 59,680 12079 (460,770) 714,951
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDEND (continued) 29 B - #ERKRE (ﬁ,)

(@ Movement in components of equity (Continued) (a) ERHTDEE (&
The Company (Continued) RNTF (&)

Share-
hased Accumu-
Share Share  Exchange Capital payment Warrant [ated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve osses
(Note (Note (Note
(Note 29(c)) 29(0) i) 290) ) 29(d) (i)

e " EL: . 2iE ol
(29 | ( 09
) (d) ) (o) (i) (o)) ‘
RMB'000 MB' RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 I RMB'000 RMB'000
T ARETR ARETR ARETR T L L

Balance at 1 January 2015 R2015%1 A1 AMES 166,075 294,842 639 289,836 10,365 - (68,431) 693,326
Changes in equity for 2015 W55 HERET
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - (77088 (177,089
Qther comprehensive income Eh2EhE - - 10805 - - - - 10805
Total comprehensive income SAbEES - - 10,805 - - - (177086 (166281)
Issuance of warrants BITBRE 20(d)vi - 186 - - - 12,079 - 12,065
Share-based compensation expenses MR AERNEERR 29(0)}) - - - - 31,874 - - 31,874
Share options vested but lapsed BRBRXNNERE - - - - (1,639) - 1,539 -
Dividend declared and paid inrespect ~~ RBAEEERREAZHE

of prior year 290) - (49,892) - - - - - 49,89
Balance at 31 December 2015 R2015E 12 A 31 AEE 166,075 245,136 11,444 289,836 40,700 12,079 (243,978) 521,292

(b) The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting (b) RW|EHEELEREEIENRIARERN
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the WEBART AERABE -

reporting period.

2016 2015
2016 F 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T

Dividend in respect of prior years RENRBEEEZH
paid during the year A% 8. - 49,892
The board of director does not recommend the payment of EEETERKREHE2016F12
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: nil). A318 It & E /M A& B (20154 :

z)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDEND (Continued) 29 B - #ERKE (&)
(c) Share capital () BAK
Authorised and issued share capital EERBRITIRA

Par value No. of shares

[N R E

HK$ HK$’000
BT THAT

Authorised: ERE
At 31 December 2015, M2015F12A31H »
1 January 2016 and 2016 F1 A1H K
31 December 2016 201612 A 31 H 0.10 100,000,000,000 10,000,000

(equivalent to RMB8,071,000,000)
(FHEN AR 8,071,000,0007T)

No. of shares

RO E

HK$’'000 RMB’000
FET  ARKTRL

Issued and fully paid: ERITREHAZE :
At 1 January 2015 and R2015F1 1B X

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H  2,105,145,600 210,514 166,075
At 1 January 2016 720161 A1H 2,105,145,600 210,514 166,075
Shares issued as at R20164F8 17 H

17 August 2016 BATHAR D 135,000,000 13,500 11,500

Shares issued under share BB E 31T
option scheme A7 57,300,000 5,730 5,004

At 31 December 2016 M2016F 12 H31H 2,297,445,600 229,744 182,579

Annual Report 2016 / —Z — /N F4F 1R @



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 5 & it 8IZ5) -

UAEBSE)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDEND (continued)
(c) Share capital (Continued)

M

(i)

On 17 August 2016, 135,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 were issued at a price of HK$2.58 per share
by the Company to Hong Kong Zhong Liang Recycling
Mining Investments Limited (& R BARARESR
[R 2~ A]). The total gross proceeds from the issue of
these shares amounted to HK$348,300,000
(equivalent to RMB299,960,000). Proceeds of
HK$13,500,000 (equivalent to RMB11,500,000),
representing the par value of the share issued, were
credited to the Company’s share capital. The
remaining proceeds of HK$337,439,000 (equivalent to
RMB288,460,000) were credited to the share premium
account.

On 25 October 2016, options were exercised to
subscribe for 57,300,000 ordinary shares in the
Company at a consideration of RMB56,545,000, in
which RMB5,004,000 and RMB51,541,000 were
credited to share capital and share premium
respectively. RMB17,855,000 was transferred from
share based compensation reserve to share premium
account in accordance with policy set out in note 2(s)

().

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

@

(i)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign currency
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of subsidiaries with functional currency
other than Renminbi. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
2(w).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises mainly capital
contributions from shareholder in respect of the
contingent considerations for the acquisition of Jinxin
and Xiangbei in November 2010 and August 2011
amounted to RMB33,226,000 and RMB11,555,000
respectively borne by the shareholder and deemed
capital contribution of RMB77,700,000 amount due to
shareholder waived by the shareholder on 31
December 2012.

@ China Metal Resources Utilization Limited / 2 B4 B & J8 M A AR A 7

20 EXR - RBERRE @)
(c) BA&(#)

)

(i)

MR2016F8A17H » AR
LA & B% 2.5878 TV 1B Wﬁ%ﬁ
BHRBERERERRA
%’%ﬁ135,ooo,ooo%ﬂ§ﬁfﬁ
0BT TR - B1TZE
H&fﬁ%ﬁﬁ%?ﬂlﬁ%ﬁé#%
348,300,0007 7t (#8 & K A
R #299,960,0007T ) ° FT &5
FXIE 13,500,000 7T (HHE R
AR #11,500,000 7T ) A& FfT 3%
T M EE - Tyt ARA T
RRR A F &8 FT 15 X 1B
337,439,000 ;L (HE R A
R #% 288,460, OOOTE ) BIEEA
R 150 & (B iR

R20164F 10 A 25 B - BEHLHE
1T - LA R 857,300,000
AR REEEE  REAAR

#56,645,0007T © EH AR
#5,004,0000 K& A R ¥
51,541,000 7T 5% BIFF ARE AR
N0 8 o R I% MY 5 2(s) i)
Frs sk - AR 17,855,000
TCE AR BEREREERE
ERERDEER -

(d) RBEHOEERAZR

(i)

(i)

BE R

(R HRERRELIFAAR
B RDEEENMNB AR MY
BRERMELENMAINEE
B o R BIRIRIEE 2(w) FTEL
SRR

BRGHE
ERREEFTEBDREBRERLRL
20104 11 A k201148 A Uk
Bem BIEMSARE(H
B & A R # 33,226,000 7T &
A R #11,555,0007C © B i%
HAE)TE UERKRER
2012412 A 31 BB R EN K
HFIB AR 77,700,0007T °
BEREEE -
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDEND (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of the business.

Statutory reserves

According to the PRC rules and regulations, the
Company’s operating subsidiaries are required to
transfer 10% of the net income after tax, as determined
in accordance with general accepted accounting
principle in the PRC, to a general reserve fund and an
enterprise expansion fund until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of the registered capital of the respective
companies. The transfer to the reserves must be made
before distribution of dividends to shareholders can be
made. These amounts are not available for distribution
to shareholders, except upon liquidation.

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve represents the portion
of the fair value of unexercised share options granted
to employees of the Group at grant date that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 2(s)(ii).

The amount will either be transferred to the share
premium account when the option is exercised, or be
released directly to retained profits if the option is
lapsed or forfeited.

Warrant reserve

Warrant reserve arises from the issue of warrants less
the expenses incurred pertaining to the warrants issue,
Upon the exercise of the warrants, the warrant reserve
will be transferred to share capital and share premium.

20 BEX - REERKRE #)
HENEERARE)

(d)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDEND (Continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(vi) Warrant reserve (Continued)

On 19 January 2015, the Company issued
133,650,000 warrants to 7 subscribers at an issue
price of HK$0.001 per warrant. Each warrant will entitle
its holder to subscribe for one share of the Company
at a subscription price of HK$1.30 per share. The
warrants will be vested in phases according to the
vesting conditions. The vesting condition is that the
suppliers shall carry out the transactions under their
respective annual procurement agreements, pursuant
to which the suppliers in aggregate, agree to supply
49,500 tons of copper scrap raw materials to the
Group in 2015 at a fixed discount of RMB1,000 per
ton.

On 24 February 2015, the Company issued
102,000,000 warrants to 3 subscribers at an issue
price of HK$0.001 per warrant. Each warrant will entitle
its holder to subscribe for one share of the Company
at a subscription price of HK$1.50 per share. The
warrants will be vested in phases according to the
vesting conditions. The vesting condition is that the
suppliers shall carry out the transactions under their
respective annual procurement agreements, pursuant
to which the suppliers, in aggregate, agree to supply
30,000 tons of copper scrap raw materials to the
Group from 1 February 2015 to 31 January 2016 at a
fixed discount of RMB2,000 per ton.

No procurement was made from these suppliers from
1 January 2016 to 31 January 2016, therefore no
warrant was issued in 2016. Total discount on the raw
materials purchased for the year ended 31 December
2015 amounted to approximately RMB12,079,000 had
been recognised in warrant reserve for the year ended
31 December 2015.

(e) Distributable reserves
At 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company amounted to RMB432,058,000 (2015:
RMB355,217,000).
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDEND (Continued)

(f)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to financing at a reasonable cost.

The Group manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions affecting the Group.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a net
debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, the Group defines net
debt as total interest-bearing borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents. The Group defines “capital” as all components
of equity.

The net debt-to-capital ratio was as follows:

20 EXR - RBERRE @)

(f

BEXREE
AEEEREANTIE R R RER
AEERELENEN  RERAR
KNS E MRS E BILIRA
M AESRE  BESRRELE
M| 2548 B8 2 7 SR [m SR AN A 2

AEBMEREERER  NERK
ROBsLHm(JEARSEEK
HeE ) BT B ACHR P 75 SR A
BERRENFE  YERERZER
SEMEEN B FEE NG -

AEBRFEBER LR BEEE
BEAGE LM E - AKEHK
FEBER QT EERBERER
ERREEEERR - AEEK[E
] EERESHPIBHEKED -

FEHEARLEMT

2016 2015

2016 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETIT

Bank loans and other borrowings #8717 & 2k &% E th {& 2% 26 681,536 661,510
Loan from a related party Bt B 22(b) - 83,780
Obligations under finance leases FIEHAE THEE 25 24,658 38,282
Convertible bonds Al ES 27 211,810 166,488
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 35, : & RIS % EIEH 23(a) (164,142) (82,559)
Net debt BER 753,862 867,501
Total equity BRER 807,708 754,183
Net debt-to-capital ratio FEBERLLE 93.3% 115.0%

Except for the banking facilities which require the fulfiment of
certain covenants, neither the Company nor any of the
subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

BREEETAETRENRITRE
SN AR B R AT B D RS
BIHNRHEINEY B AR TEFTARR ©
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30 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 30 UREZFEURMR/EBRHR
TRANSACTIONS =
Share option scheme Pﬁﬂﬁ’fﬁ*‘f%
The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on RARIEZEBRESTS - HER2014F1
28 January 2014 and has come into effect upon the Company’s A28 EI RA AR REF2014F 2 A 21
listing on 21 February 2014 whereby the directors of the Company, BEMEBER B ARAREFESE
are authorised, at their discretion, to invite any director or B SR EESERAD B HARE
employee of the Group and any other person who in the sole BEELERNAEEIMNEEZHEE X
discretion of the directors has contributed or will contribute to the {EAa] E Ath A TEBEREARHE - LARBEAR A 7]
Group to take up options to subscribe for shares of the Company. A&7
(@) The key terms and conditions related to the grants under the (@) BEBRBERESIREERESH
share option scheme are as follows; all options are to be E’JE%{%%’X FAGHEIT - BTA B
settled by the physical delivery of shares. BEHERERIMIRMEE -
Number of
Grant date/ instruments Contractual
employees entitled in thousands Vesting conditions life of options
IAHE
RURH ERERZES (Th) BRHEE BRESNES
Options granted to
executive directors
BFRTESNERE
—On 2 July 2014 24,000 One third on the first anniversary, one third on the 10 years

second anniversary, and the remaining on the third
anniversary of the grant respectively

- R2014F7R2A 24000 =HZ—REENE-EBF 10F
ZHZ-REZRER
EARE=BE

— On7May 2015 8,000 Same as above 10 years
— 20155 A7 H 8,000 L 10F
— On 31 May 2016 1,000 Same as above 10 years
- R2016E5 4318 1,000 FE 104
Options granted to

employees
BFREENERE
—0On2July 2014 89,000 Same as above 10 years
— 20147 A2H 89,000 ALt 0%
— On 7 May 2015 94,360 Same as above 10 years
— R2015F5A7H 94360 AL 0%
— On 31 May 2016 26,930 Same as above 10 years
- RN2016F5A318 26930 FE 10F
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30 URELELURDAEEBRHNR

TRANSACTIONS (coNTINUED) 2 (%)
(@) (Continued) (@ &)
Number of
Grant date/ instruments Contractual
employees entitled in thousands Vesting conditions life of options
IA¥E
RiRS/ FRERZES (T1) BEHKHE BRESHES
Options granted to certain
eligible participants
RFETRERZEAN
BRE
—0On 23 July 2015 7,600 On the first anniversary of the date upon which the share  Six months commencing from the expiry
options are accepted subject to the grantees of the first anniversary of the date of
remaining as eligible persons at the date of vesting acceptance and expiring on the last
day of the 6 month-period
- R201557 A 238 7600 RNEREEEANE-BFER ERRARE-BFERFRER
EERARGEEBRANRGERAL NEASESRE-BRILZ A ER
— On 31 May 2016 5,200 On the first anniversary of the date of the grant, subject 10 years
to their respective predetermined annual sales target
were achieved
— R201655A318 5200 REILBHEHE-BE 10%
HEERELEENRERREAR
Total share options granted 256,090
EREBRELR 256,090

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on the Binomial Option
Pricing Model. The contractual life of the share option is used
as an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise
are incorporated into the Binomial Option Pricing Model.

SRR H 2 B AR MR 2 [ S BR 7% 2
RPED2EEREBREZ AT
BFff & - CREBEREZ R FER
AERE AT ERAG
B BEEZAEOFHIIBERE
AZBARE - RETEZEHD
MA - R EERS -

Annual Report 2016 / —Z — /N F4F 1R @



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 5 & it 8IZ5) -

30 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (coNTINUED)

UAEBSE)

30

(b) Fair value of share options and assumptions

%ﬁ%%%%&ﬁ%%@mﬁ
(&)
(b) HRHEZDTPERER

23 July 2015*
2July 2014 7May 2015 Share options 31 May 16
Grant date Share options granted to Share options granted to granted to Share options granted to
21457A2A 2015%587H 01557 23A* 2201655A 318
RHAH ERERT BRERT BRERT ERERT
Executive Other Executive Other  Certain eligible Executive Other  Certain eligible
directors employees directors employees participants directors employees participants
574 574
HTES Hftes YEE AftES EhgRE UTES AtES EhRE
Fair value at R PAN T

measurement date (%71

(HKS) 044 039 0n 0.58 223 1.2 117 146
Share prce (HKS) fECETL) 107 107 168 168 167 305 305 305
Exercise price (HK$) R (ET) 1.13 113 1.68 1.68 2.16 3.66 366 366
Expected volaiity BERE 45.54% 45.54% 46.20% 46.20% 49.43% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%
Expected life EHES 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 1.5 years 10 years 10 years 10 years
Expected dividends EHRE 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 147% 147% 147%
Risk-free interest rate ERRANE

(oased on Hong Kong (NEBINERESE

Bxchange Fund ERZEEE)

Notes) 2.059% 2.059% 1.745% 1.745% 0.239% 1.286% 1.286% 1.286%
Exercise multiple RS 28 2.2 28 22 - 28 22 -
Post-vesting exitrate R 0% 5.44% 0% 16.12% - 9.22% 9.22% -

* On 23 July 2015, the Company granted 10,000,000 share options to * MN2015F7 A28 8 » RARMAETE
certain eligible participants, in which 7,600,000 share options were ARS8 A1 10,000,00007 EALAE -
accepted. H A 7,600,000 17 BRI E IR ©

BEHRERREEEREAEGR
15 B AR 2 0 HE T 1 F 8R4 BT
8 URBAFAIBERBARIK
REOTEREBHE - AHRREAE
BEEBE - TEHABRBERRZN
BHNFENBHEEANTE -

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of
the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to
future volatility based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are determined by the management.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.

BREDRRBGRERL - BRTH
P rE BT SR o

Share options were granted under a service condition. There
were no market conditions associated with the share option
grants.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

30 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 30 UREZFEURMR/EBRHR
TRANSACTIONS (coNTINUED) 2 (%)
Reconciliation of outstanding share options RITHBEIREZHER
The number and weighted-average exercise prices of share BEIREET 2B T RN EN & B L NEF
options under the share option scheme were as follows: HITEEWT
Weighted- Weighted-
average average
Number of  exercise price Number of exercise price
In thousands of options options 2016 2016 options 2015 2015
2016 % 2016 £ 20154 2015 NiE
BRETH BREHE FATHEE RS A THTRE
’000 '000
TR T
Outstanding at 1 January A1 BEATE 198,800 1.45 107,390 1.13
Forfeited during the year FARA (6,874) (1.54) (18,550) (1.21)
Exercised during the year FRTE (57,300) (1.13) - -
Granted during the year FRRL 33,130 3.66 109,960 1.71
Outstanding at W12A31H
31 December WARTE 167,756 1.99 198,800 1.45
Exercisable at W12 H318
31 December AFTE 41,294 1.75 30,483 113
The options outstanding at 31 December 2016 had an exercise M20165F 12 A1 A RITE B REN T
price in the range of HK$1.13 to HK$3.66 (2015: HK$1.13 to FEENT1.138LE3.6687L (20154 -
HK$2.16) and a weighted-average contractual life of 9.61 years 113822168 L) RINEFHEHF
(2015: 9.68 years). H1/49.61 9 (20154 : 9.684F ) »
57,300,000 share options were exercised in 2016 (2015 nil). 57,300,000 17 & I # 72016 4F & 17 (&

(20154F 1 &) »

Expense recognised in profit or loss RIEEERZEX
For details on the related share-based compensation expenses, BENRGN AERHOMER SIS - B
see note 7(b). FE7() e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

31 COMMITMENTS 31 A&iE
(@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 (@) M2016F12A31 A KRE M
December 2016 not provided for in the financial WERMBBRRABENER
statements were as follows: AEWMT

2016 2015
2016 F 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT

Contracted for 2ET4Y
— property, plant and equipment — W BB MRE 23,010 62,010
— land use rights — THh{FE R 17,871 13,956
Authorised but not contracted for BEREERETN 53,638 71,193
94,519 147,159
(b) At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum (b) $H20165F12H31H: E@ &
lease payments under non-cancellable operating IBEERPREENTTHER
leases in respect of staff quarters and office EHEBETENNARRIER
premises are payable as follows: EREABEAT :

2016 2015
2016 £ 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

Within 1 year 1FR 16 1,493

After 1 year but within 5 years 1 FRBEFA - 397

16 1,890
(c) At 31 December 2016, the Group had outstanding purchase (c) M2016F12H31H AEEHEE
agreements with some of its suppliers and was required to HOBERENAERNEEH
purchase from the suppliers an aggregate of 3,598 metric FEAMBEREE A #3584

tons (2015: 30,238 metric tons) of scrap copper with the W8 (2015 4F : 30,238 AME) HYEE R

price to be determined at the time of purchases based on ERENBERIZEMEET -

market price.

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 BEHAERS
In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in B PR 5% 5 B 76 ol 3% LM B0 0 4% 7R A R
these financial statements, the Group entered into the following FERN  AEBRAFERBAFER]
significant related party transactions during the current and prior VA TERBE RS o
years.
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32

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conTINUED)
Significant related party transactions

(a)

(i) Financing arrangements

Interest expense on loan from Epoch

Keen Limited, a private company
controlled by Mr. Yu Jiangiu

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

32 BEMARS &)

(a) EXBEAIRS
(i) ®mEZH

2016
2016 £

2015
20154
RMB’000
ARETTT

RMB’000
AR®T T

KB s RTK I A AR HI Y
A RBIRZERARA
B BRAX

4,790 68

(ii)

Other related parties transactions

Sale of goods

Sales of recycled copper products
to JX E-commerce, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Xijiulong

Sales of power transmission and
distribution cables to Xijiulong, a
company wholly owned by Ms. Yu
Yanyan and Ms. Yu Jigjia,
daughters of Mr. Yu Jiangiu

Others

Payment for Acquisition of Equity
Interest in Xinhuan Aluminium,
(note 14(ii))

Guarantee provided by Baohe
Fushan, an associate of the
Group (note 26)

Guarantee provided by Gushan
Vegetable, a private company
controlled by Mr. Yu Jiangiu
(note 26)

Delivery cost charged by Mianyang
Jin Xunhuan Finance Storage
Limited, a company wholly owned
by JX E-commerce

Administrative fee and consultancy
fee paid to Baohe Fushan

(i) HaEBHAIRS

2016
2016 £

2015
20154
RMB’000
AREFTT

RMB’000
AR®T T

HEEm
HEBENERT
ERIRER
(ANENZENBAR)
HEXKER THNE
(—HBaERTE LR

1,519 -

2EHEBNRGE])
- 149

Hth
IR BB IR IR E R
(B 5 14¢i))
3,100 =
BARMNE L
(REBERBEAR])
R EER
(FFE26)
M2 mAE (e M T A
ikl IN/NCI
REMER (H5E26)

35,000 35,000

10,000 10,000

mEERRTHMAR
BRAR (HEBRER
£ 7 2oL OUNCIDE Ve
AR

ENRMNE LOITERER
A -

1,902 656

160
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the directors of the Company as
disclosed in note 9 and certain of the highest paid employees
as disclosed in note 10, is as follows:

32 B¥MARF (#)

(b) EEEEA ST
AEBTIEERASHTH(BIE
RO ELNFARAFES
HOERIE - LA R SE 10 TR ST A
FEFEEHMESOZE) #

T
2016 2015
2016 £ 2015 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
Short-term employee benefits = HiE B @A 7,471 15,271
Retirement scheme contributions RREH B 109 122
Share-based payments AR B AR S 3R 9,407 15,074
16,987 30,467

Total remuneration was included in “staff costs” (see note
7(0)).

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and commodity price
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage
these risks are described below.

(@) Creditrisk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and

other receivables.

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure
to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.
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AEERAELBBRTEELEE R
§E%  FRRELERRR -

AREEMESNZFRERRASE BRI
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customers’ past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade debtors are normally due within 90 days from the date
of transaction. The Group also offers revolving credit to its
customers. The revolving credit, which provides for a
maximum credit limit that may be outstanding at any one
time, is determined based on such factors as current market
conditions and the customers’ credit history and current
ability to pay. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At 31 December 2016, nil (2015: nil) and nil%
(2015: 71.6%) of the total trade debtors and bills receivable
was due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers, respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account
of any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the balance sheet after deducting
any impairment allowance.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and bills receivable
are set out in note 21.

33

BEEREERERIAND
FE®)

(a)

EERER (&)
E S REMERFIENS » A&
SHMAERR T —ELBEE
HEPETEEEGE o lEF
HEEREPHBEDHERLEIN
MBATHERESN  LEEEHARN
BEPUREPREMERLEREN
FHEEHM -BZER-—KRARXHH
HIEEE OO RAEH - AEEITFAE
PRHUBEREER (HRE R RMER
—REBNESERER)  HRE
BEMREEPNERLCEME R
BRENFREEBTE - — KM=
AEETGZREPREEERR -

AEBRAINEERRFTFEXEER
FMTREFEEMBITXHEH
F)WERERNFE  BtEX
FEEEPERRBREEES [ AEEK
ZEREFERRERE - 742016 4F
12A31H ESEARERELRR
BRI AR E D (20154 © o 5l
BENTI.6%) ERASBE AR
MAKRKBEEL A -

WA EZEAFEFMERR  KSE
ERBEEEERBERTSERE
EEMBAT R ER B R AREE

BEBRASEMEZEE 5 ERRIE
R e SR A5 T 2 A B 12 B R B 6
— S ESWEHNMTE21 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

33

BHEBEEREHRITAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS T (&)
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (b) RBESER

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily
realisable marketable securities and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of reporting period of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay. Note 2(b) explains
the Group’s plans for managing the liquidity needs to enable
it to continue to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due for the next twelve months from the end of the

AEENBRREEHERERDE
EFRRETEERONBER &
IR E 41558 = 3R & A A BE
RERNBEIZFNETRSRE
BRHARZESHE  NEMHRE

TRINRASERTESHMEBE
RBEBRROBKT OB R -
ZEHEDERGORMRAER
E(BREERA QN EN(HEZE)
R E IR RS E RO S50
EARGERERNRNEEAH -
Moo @E T AREEE RS T
FROETE - LNEBATEBEN RS
HREFAK A+ —EARTEEH
BB -

reporting period.

2016
2016
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
BRRFREER

Morethan ~ More than Balance

Within ~ 1yearbut  2years but sheet

1 year or on less than less than carrying

demand 2 years 5years Total amount

—£R —FEHE WESE EEAER

FEREX WESR BELR @t REE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARMTE AR%Tr ARETR ARET:

Trade and other payables B REMERFE 386,529 - - 386,529 386,529

Obligations under finance leases BEMETMESL 13,956 12,679 - 26,635 24,658

Bank loans and other borrowings FIERREER 728,367 - - 728,367 681,536

Amounts due to related parties Rk E 764 - - 764 764

Amounts due to associates B ARFE 5,150 - - 5,150 5,150
Liability component of RREFNEEDD

convertible bonds 232,343 - - 232,343 211,810

1,367,109 12,679 - 1,379,788 1,310,447
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

33 PHEAREEREMIANA

Y {E (@)
(b) REELER(Z)

2015
20154

Contractual undiscounted cash flow
BRRMBAFRER

Within

1 year or on
demand
—FR
FREK
RMB’000
ARBTT

More than

1 year but
less than

2 years
—FpE
R AR
RMB’000
AREFTT

More than Balance
2 years but sheet
less than carrying

5 years Total amount
M E BEARX
AFHA EEE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARMTL ARBFL

Trade and other payables B REMERNTE 474,799 - - 474799 474799
Obligations under finance leases ~ BAME THET 15,986 13,956 12,679 42,621 38,282
Bank loans and other borrowings  $R1TE R H A TR 696,073 - - 696,073 661,510
Loan from a related party RE—BEETNER 87,900 - - 87,900 83,780
Amounts due to related parties JE B 7 3R 6,098 - - 6,098 6,098
Amounts due to associates JEITEE N B E 6,520 - - 6,520 6,520

Liability component of RREFNAERESD
convertible bonds 15,352 21,117 217,638 254,107 166,488
1,302,728 35,073 230,317 1,568,118 1,437,477

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, all of the Group’s trade
and other payables are repayable within one year.

M2016F 201512 A31H » A&

SEMMEE S KEMENFRIBAR
—FARX -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt 35 3R R Bl oE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 33 BIEREERERMIANAD

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{E (&)
(Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) RIREE
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest RNREFENFRR X ERENEBE
-bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and oo LUZBREBMHBERS B
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk SAREFREATRES RENEER
and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group’s EAFEMERAR ANEBEBHERR
interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out [ BE R EY R B B T3 () ©
in (i) below.
() Interest rate profile (i) FIZRER
The following table details the interest rate profile of the TREMAREENATEHER
Group's total interest-bearing borrowings at the end of RIREBIR TR BN

reporting period:

2016 2015
2016 20154
Effective Effective
interest interest

rate Amount rate Amount
BEFI= x| ERA= Gk
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
AR®T ARET T

Fixed rate borrowings: EEf&

Bank loans and other RITER R EMER

borrowings 8.72 681,536 9.40 661,510
Loan from a related party R B — & B8t 7 Y

'R - - 5.00 83,780

Obligations under finance ~ BIEHE THET

leases 6.67 24,658 6.88 38,282
Liability component of AR ERE

convertible bonds BERD 34.35 211,810 34.35 166,488
Total fixed rate borrowings  F.E.{& 2B 28 918,004 950,060
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 88 R P 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis
At 31 December 2016 and 2015, all of the Group’s
interest-bearing borrowings are fixed rate borrowings,
no sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk is presented.

(d) Currency risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily related to
receivables, payables and cash balances that are
denominated in United States dollars, currencies other than
the functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate.

() Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in United
States dollars (“USD”) in connection with entities with
functional currency in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”). For
presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are shown in Renminbi, translated using the spot rate
at the year end date. Differences resulting from the
translation of the financial statements of the
subsidiaries with functional currency other than RMB
into the Group’s presentation currency are excluded.

BHEBEEREHRITAND

Y {E (@)
(c) FIEmEM(2)

(d)

(i) BHRBREDN
R20164F K&20154 12 A 31
B RAEBEWMAMEEERY
BEBMER  MIERHFIE
[R\B SRR AT o

E¥ERE
AEBEBEARERBAUEXT(ZF
R BB EHH I EEE LAY
S8 FTENRKFIA - BHNFKA
MR EHREANERERR

() FERSINEEER
TRANREER R E AR
AZNERERER  ZEERE
BISERABIT(ET]) &
DeEEEmERRET(X
TDFHENERREERER
EMEL - RERENME -
RBREBAARBIIR - WIAF
EHRBAERRE - E
FEUARKERINGEEE IS
RAFBHRERSAEEEZRE
KHELANZBEIEAEHR
A o

2016 2015
2016 £ 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

United States dollars Ep
Cash and cash equivalents ReE K\ SEHEEE 63 684
Net exposure arising from recognised B R AZE R ABMRESR

assets and liabilities F Rk 63 684

(ii) Sensitivity analysis
As HKD is pegged to the USD, the Group considers
the risk of movements in exchange rates between the
HKD and the USD to be insignificant.

(i) SBESH
F OB TSR T - AR
RAETRET Y HEREE)
BEBTE AR o

Annual Report 2016 / —Z — /N F4F 1R @



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 B 785E 5] - A R#EZ1E)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Commodity price risk

The major raw material used in the production of the Group’s
products is scrap copper. The Group is exposed to
fluctuations in the price of copper which are influenced by
global as well as regional supply and demand conditions.
Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials could adversely
affect the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses
copper futures contracts to mitigate its exposure against
price fluctuations of copper raw materials. The market value
of futures contracts is based on quoted market price at
settlement or balance sheet date. As at 31 December 2016
and 2015, the Group did not have outstanding copper
futures contracts.

Fair value measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value
Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
IFRS 18, Fair value measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and significance of
the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date.

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to
meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3
during the current and prior years.
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1R A B R A BUR)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 B :85Z 5] - A FRH#EZ(E)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 33
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2016 are grouped into the fair
value hierarchy as follows.

Level 1
FAR
RMB’000

ARETT

BEEREERERIAND
FE®)

n 2DFEFEE)

(i) BROAFENENSREERSE
&(E&)
N FELERE (E)
R2016F 12 A31H E & &
MEMREANR AT ETED
CREENABEATERE
RIEREEAT o

Level 2 Level 3 Total
E2M% E3R wst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTET

(note (a))

At 31 December 2016 R2016 1231 H

Financial liabilities at fair value &2\ E(EE AIBZ5H]

through profit or loss TRBE
— Derivative component of  — A[¥#REEFHIITE
convertible bonds TEAHD =

(Mi5E(a)

- 133,344 133,344

At 31 December 2015 R2015% 12831 H

Financial liabilities at fair value %A (AT AB2EH]

through profit or loss EREE
— Derivative component of  — A[¥#REFHIITE
convertible bonds TEHD =

- 130,989 130,989
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 33

BHEBEEREHRITAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{E (&)
(Continued)
() Fair value measurement (Continued) n 2DAFEFEE)
() Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () BATEFENTREERE
value (Continued) & (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NFEZEE (B)
(a)  Information about level 3 fair value measurements @ FEIRLAFEF=EME
#

Significant

unobservable

inputs

Valuation techniques

EARTBEN

EERE

BAHE

Monte Carlo Model and
Binomial Option Pricing Model

SHREEERARZEAH
REEER

Derivative component of
convertible bonds
RREHFNITETEID

The fair value of derivative component of the
convertible bonds is determined using Monte
Carlo Model and Binomial Option Pricing Model
and the significant unobservable input used in
the fair value measurement is expected volatility.
The fair value measurement is positively
correlated to the expected volatility.

The movement during the period in the balance
of level 3 fair value measurements is as follows:

Expected volatility

RHR R

19% to 42%

19% £ 42%

ABMBEESFNITETAR
Mo RFEIERRE
FEREEEA R ZHEA
MEETERLETE 5
EQAFEMRANEX
THBREB ABIETE
HgtE - AT EFEHE
8 HA0% 8 A 1E %) 45 Bt
1% o

NEARE B3R N FEE
ENEREFHWT

RMB’000
ARBTT

Derivative component of convertible bonds
at 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016

M2015F 12 A31 B R
201641 A1 BHyA[#

BRIEFITETEH D 130,989

Changes in fair value recognised in the FRNRERERNATEEZES
profit or loss during the year (6,633)
Exchange realignment M S B 8,988
At 31 December 2016 R20164F 12 A 31 H 133,344

The losses arising from the remeasurement of
the derivative component of the convertible
bonds are presented in “other net loss”.
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Fair value of financial instruments carried at other
than fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015 except as
follows:

33

BEEREERERIAND
FE®)

(f 2DFEFAEE)

(ii)

BRAFEUINEETIRN S H
TENAYE
M20164F 12 A31H k2015
F12A31H » REBKEKAK
A AT R e Rl T AR
AEHEEATFETESKE
Al HETHIIEE BRAN

31 December 2015
201512 A 31 H
Carrying
amount
AREE
RMB’000
ARET R

31 December 2016
2016 12 A 31 H
Carrying
Fair Value
NTE
RMB’000
ARETT

Fair Value
AVE
RMB’000
ARMET T

amount

fREE
RMB’000

AR®T R

Liability component of

convertible bonds 211,810 224,644 166,488 174,308

Estimation of fair values
(i) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (i)
The fair value is estimated as the present value of
future cash flows, discounted at current market interest
rates for similar financial instruments at the balance

(9) (99 AFENEE

) FERERRER

RN ERMEFHRER SR
EREBREUESBRT AN
HAMBRTHHN RN

st

sheet dates. 8-
(i) Derivatives (i) FTEIAR

G WM BEEEM ST
HREMTANRETE

Copper futures contracts are measured using quoted
prices in active markets for identical financial
instruments.
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34 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 34 2

FINANCIAL POSITION

3

31 December

JE TH B9 B B AR R

31 December

2016 2015
2016 20154
12H31H 12 A31 H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARETT ARETIT

Non-current assets FIRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B RREIRE 14 298,322 298,322
Interest in associates il /N b ey 15 37,435 135,957
335,757 434,279

Current assets REEE

Amounts due from subsidiaries FEULB B A 7 M FIA 711,684 466,808
Amount due from a related party eI — 22 RA R 5 A 476 444
Other receivables H b B W GIR 76 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeKIBeEEER 17,554 13,786
729,790 481,038
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34 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 34 RAFEIEHEMMERREXE)
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

31 December 31 December
2016 2015
2016 20154

12A31H 12 431 H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARETTT

Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 L E A 508 5,440 12,762
Amounts due to a related party JE{~t— 2 BB  7h0A 2 6
Loan from a related party KB —REHAHER 22(b) = 83,780
Liability component of convertible bonds [ % (&5 8 B E 25 27 211,810 -
Derivative component of convertible ARRESFOTET AR
bonds 27 133,344 -
350,596 96,548
Net current assets FreEE 379,194 384,490
Total assets less current liabilites ~ #EER#ABHEE 7491 818,769
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Liability component of convertible bonds  AJ# % EHH B EE 5D 27 - 166,488
Derivative component of convertible AMRESOITETIALSS
bonds 27 - 130,989
- 297,477
NET ASSETS BEE 714,951 521,292
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E
Share capital AR 29 182,579 166,075
Reserves B 29 532,372 355,217
TOTAL EQUITY R 714,951 521,292
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 MR2017F3 A0 BKESTS A REE
March 2017. T2 -
Yu Jianqiu Kwong Wai Sun Wilson
WEMN BEE
Directors Directors
EE EFE
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35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,NEW 35 C E#G{ERE Z£20165F 12 8

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS 31 B 1EF F e RAERHIERT -
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE MEARREARELENTE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has HEAHBHRETIZEAR  EESFER
issued a few amendments and new standards which are not yet BEeD BHEIENREZE 2016 F 12 A 31
effective for the year ended 31 December 2016 and which have BIFFEMARER B RS BRI DI &
not been adopted in these financial statements. These include the ANAMET &R HPhaE AT e
following which may be relevant to the Group. HAARE B A RS ] RFTER o
Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
NEN=R: =1
ZEBBRNES
HIM £
Amendments to IAS 1, Disclosure initiative BIBR 25T RSB 1S 2 185] « AT E) 1 January 2017
20171 H1H
Amendments to IAS 12, Recognition of Deferred R ERIE 1257 - B RS T EE 1 January 2017
Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses B HIEE E 201741 A1 H
IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers ~ BIBRBATSIREEANE 1558 - EEAL 1 January 2018
oN 201851 H1H
IFRS 9, Financial instruments Bl S EERE O 2 T A 1 January 2018
201841 A1 H
Amendments to IFRS 2, Classification and BIBRBA TS E ERIFE 298 2 185] - LR 1 January 2018
Measurement of Share-based Payment GAEBEN AKX B EHE 201841 A1 H
Transactions
IFRS 16, Leases B B 5 ¥R 5 2RI 16 5% - AV 1 January 2019
201941 A1 H
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, Sales or BB E ERIFE 10 R BB 252 To be determined
Contribution of Assets between an Investor BIEE 2858 2 E:] » WEFZHAE &FE
and its Associate or Joint Venture AleAa &R FAMEENELTE
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the REE EEFEZFETRYIRERR
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of MEHEENTE - 25 BIE  AEBER
initial application. So far the Group has identified some aspects of Rl H T 42 Bl &9 B o5 75 T AT AR AR A B T
new standards which may have a significant impact on the WMREASEATE - BABHZEMNE—
consolidated financial statements. Further details of the expected SEHBEH M T o BHRAE B R TTET
impacts are discussed below. As the Group has not completed its e REEREAEEEREMEE I
assessment, further impacts may be identified in due course and BREEEENER B B2 ATRMAEM
will be taken into consideration when determining whether to ZEFEFT R (W ER A R A AT
adopt any of these new requirements before their effective date E)VERARERE R EREREETE

and which transitional approach to take, where there are alternative
approaches allowed under the new standards.
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35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 35 B

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining
whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. It replaces
existing revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 Revenue,
IAS 11 Construction Contracts and IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty
Programmes.

The Group is currently assessing the impacts of adopting IFRS 15
on its financial statements. Based on the preliminary assessment,
the Group has identified the following areas which are likely to be
affected:

(@) Timing of revenue recognition
The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed in
note 2(v). Currently, revenue from the sale of goods is
generally recognised when the risks and rewards of
ownership have passed to the customers.

Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good in the contract. IFRS
15 identifies 3 situations in which control of the promised
good is regarded as being transferred over time:

(@ When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

(b)  When the entity’s performance creates or enhances an
asset (for example work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced;

(c) When the entity’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the entity and the entity
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

ERE Z=2016 F12 A
31 AL FEERMKREMRWIEE -
HEARZRBUREELENETE
(#8)
EEEREENEISREFAN
ON
WA B R A E 15 AR TR T
WA - RS ERESEHTET — ﬁiﬁ
mmﬁ HIMRIBA M A RERIES]
ﬁl@;ﬁﬁW%m%wx~ﬁ%@ﬁ
HBE N ERESORBRSERESE
BRBEEeF 13T aHtE -

A B B AT IE A SR B R B 7 i
AIE1RHEMBHRRNTE - ARV

G - REEEFA L TR T E
BT

(@) WARREH
N2 B /9 W HE SR BROR B BE BA BT =
2(v)c BRI SHEEMABKABE
RETAERR L EHRER TR PR
ﬁﬁfm"

REBERPBHREEANES - W
ARBFEBANZARE M
HIRERTRERR o BIBR A IS ¥R 5 2RI 2B
16SRFETE T A T EAGH B AR %ll
R RBERREEHEBR

@) EFFREBEORRRER
NEREREHMRM 2 M

=

() EBELBELNAESIEE —ER
BERAIE S IG5 R
2 BE (R TR ) B

) BERBBEAVEAEHERM
FABRRBSENEE  BXE
BECZSTRNBHNKER
RIRITREAIRY -
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35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,NEW 35 CHE#GEREBZE

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)
IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into
any of these 3 situations, then under IFRS 15 the entity
recognises revenue for the sale of that good at a single point
in time, being when control has passed. Transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership is only one of the indicators that will be
considered in determining when the transfer of control
occurs. As a result of this change from the risk-and-reward
approach to the contract-by-contract transfer-of-control
approach, it is possible that once the Group adopts IFRS 15
some of the Group’s contract manufacturing and selling
activities that are currently recognised at a point in time may
meet the IFRS 15 criteria for revenue recognition over time.
This will depend on the terms of the sales contract and the
enforceability of any specific performance clauses in that
contract, which may vary depending on the jurisdiction in
which the contract would be enforced. It is also possible that
for the remainder of the Group’s contracts the point in time
when revenue is recognised may be earlier or later than
under the current accounting policy. However, further
analysis is required to determine whether this change in
accounting policy may have a material impact on the
amounts reported in any given financial reporting period.

Sales with a right of return

Currently when the customers are allowed to return the
products, the Group estimates the level of returns and
makes an adjustment against revenue and cost of sales.

The Group expects that the adoption of IFRS 15 will not
materially affect how the Group recognises revenue and cost
of sales when the customers have a right of return.

However, the new requirement to recognise separately a
return asset for the products expected to be returned will
impact the presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the Group currently adjusts the carrying
amounts of inventory for the expected returns, instead of
recognising a separate asset.
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36 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The following significant events took place subsequent to 31
December 2016:

Exercise of share option

On 23 January 2017, share options were exercised to subscribe
for 4,500,000 ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration
of RMB8,592,000, in which RMB398,000 and RMB8,194,000
were credited to share capital and share premium respectively.

36

EEHESEH
R2016F 12 A1 HIE A T EREH -

TEBRE

B2017F1A23H A RE A A A
4,500,000 % & iE e I AR A JE 1T - 1R
B8 /A ANR#85020007T  HEf AR
398,000t & A R 8,194,000 7T J3 % Bl
AR KD B
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFMBEBE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERES

At 31 December
M12 A31H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

2016 2015 20145 2013 20124
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTIT ARBTT ARETT ARBTET

Total assets BEE 2,278,476 2,335,311 2,408,196 1,694,092 993,035
Total liabilities weE (1,470,768) (1,581,128) (1,134,893) (1,081,287) (694,713)
Net assets FEE 807,708 754,183 1,273,303 612,805 298,322
Notes: PRSE -
1. The financial information of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 31 1. AEBEEHZ2011F12 A31 HE2012F12 831 ALk
December 2012 are extracted from the accountants’ report of the Group as set out FEMMBER B BRENSE—FrEr R EE
on Appendix | to the Prospectus. BETRIRE o
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